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Produktubersicht’

Die COLTENE Gruppe gliedert nach der Akquisition und Integration der
Aktivitdten von SciCan und Micro-Mega ihr umfassendes Sortiment
neu in die drei Produktgruppen Infektionskontrolle, Zahnerhaltung und
Behandlungseffizienz.

Infektionskontrolle

30%

COLTENE ist ein Systemanbieter fiir die Instrumenten-Wieder-
aufbereitung sowie die Oberflachenreinigung und -desinfektion. Die
umfassende Produktgruppe beinhaltet State-of-the-Art-Ultraschall-
reinigungsgerate und -Il6sungen, Thermodesinfektionsgerate und
Autoklaven sowie hochwertige Reinigungs- und Desinfektionstlicher
fur Oberflachen in der Zahnarztpraxis.

Zahnerhaltung
Restauration, Endodontie

30%

Mit restaurativen und endodontischen Systemen zur Erhaltung von
vitaler und nichtvitaler Zahnhartsubstanz bietet COLTENE vielfdltige
Produkte fiir die nachhaltige Zahnerhaltung von der Wurzel bis zur
Krone an. Das abgestimmte Sortiment umfasst hochwertige Adhasive,
Komposite, Wurzelkanalinstrumente, Spiilldsungen samt Zubehor
sowie Materialien fir die Obturation und Versiegelung von Wurzel-

kanalen. —

Behandlungseffizienz
Prothetik, Rotierende Instrumente, Behandlungshilfen

40 % N %

s < ;_ 3
Die Produktgruppe Behandlungseffizienz umfasst ausgekliigelte - :
Hilfsmittel zur Effizienzsteigerung in der Zahnarztpraxis. Dazu -
gehdren hochprazise Abformmaterialien, qualitativ hochwertige N
Produkte fiir die Wundversorgung und Watteerzeugnisse, effiziente
Absaugkanilen und erstklassige rotierende Instrumente. N‘T“\‘\ P M\

! Pro-Forma-Zahlen auf 12 Monate hochgerechnet




Faktenund Zahlen

COLTENE ist ein international tatiges Unternehmen fiir die Entwicklung, die Herstellung und den Vertrieb
von zahnmedizinischen Verbrauchsgltern und Kleingeraten in den Bereichen Infektionskontrolle,
Zahnerhaltung und Behandlungseffizienz. Die Gruppe verfligt in den USA, Kanada, Brasilien, Deutschland,
Frankreich und der Schweiz liber modernste Produktionsstatten. Zudem ist COLTENE mit eigenen
Vertriebsorganisationen in wichtigen Schlisselmarkten wie Nordamerika, Europa, China, Indien und
Brasilien prasent. Die neue COLTENE Gruppe beschaftigt weltweit 1366 Mitarbeitende.

5-Jahresiibersicht (2014-2018)
(in CHF Millionen)

Nettoumsatz Reingewinn
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018* 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 *a‘trs”;“’kt;si":i‘t;zaem
162,3 154,5 160,7 168,0 204,0 156 13,3 17,3 191 14,9 CHF 30,4 Mio.
Betriebserfolg (EBIT) Free Cash Flow

-90,8
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
22,4 20,4 23,3 255 237 16,7 13,7 17,1 16,0
Nettoumsatz nach Regionen in %

H 2018
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Vorwort 6

2018 vollzog COLTENE mit dem Zukaufvon Kenda, SciCan und Micro-
Megaeinenwegweisenden Wachstumsschritt. Der Umsatz erreichte
einneues Allzeithoch. Die Nutzung von Skaleneffekten und Synergie-
potenzialen er6ffnet neue, vielversprechende Wachstumschancen.

Dieneue
COLTENE Gruppe 12

COLTENE ist traditionell eine Unternehmensgruppe, die aus der
Vereinigung von starken Spezialisten und Marken gewachsen ist. Wie
einst Whaledentim Jahr 1990 und ROEKO 2002 sind 2018 Kenda,
SciCan und Micro-Mega zum Firmenverbund gestossen und erweitern
die Expertise und das innovative Produktsortiment der Gruppe.

Operativer Ruckblick
und Finanzkommentar 18

Das Geschaftsjahr 2018 wurde gepragt von wegweisenden Akquisitionen
und starkem Wachstum. Der Zusammenschluss mit Kenda (Diamant-
und Silikonpolierer), SciCan (Desinfektionsgerate und Hygieneprodukte)
und Micro-Mega (Endodontie-Instrumente) festigt die Marktposition der
Gruppe nachhaltig und eroffnet neue Wachstumschancen.

Produktionund Umwelt 24

COLTENE nimmtihre gesellschaftliche Verantwortung als internationales
Unternehmen wahr und arbeitet kontinuierlich darauf hin, die Umwelt-
belastungen entlang der gesamten Wertschépfungskette zu minimieren.
Ziel ist es, den Ressourcenverbrauch zu begrenzen und den Zahnarzten
sowie ihren Patienten sichere und zuverldssige Produkte zur Verfligung
zu stellen.
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Informationen zur COLTENE Aktie

Aktienkapital und Kapitalstruktur

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Nennwert pro Aktie (CHF) 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
AnzahlNamenaktien 5975580 4219000 4219000 4219000 4219000
Dispobestand 29,20% 14,00% 16,30% 12,53% 19,88%
Anzahleigene Aktien 3265 0 3700 5100 100
Anzahldividendenberechtigte Aktien 5972315 4219000 4215300 4213900 4218900
Ordentliches Kapital (CHF 1000) 598 422 422 422 422
Bedingtes Kapital (CHF 1000) 0 0 0 0 0
Genehmigtes Kapital (CHF 1000) 7 0 0 0 0
Total Stimmrechte 5975580 4219000 4215300 4213900 4218900
Borsenkennzahlen pro Aktie
CHF 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Borsenkurs hochst 124.00 103.50 75.50 83.65 65.40
Borsenkurstiefst 80.00 74.50 57.00 54.00 45.03
Jahresendkurs 84.30 94.90 74.05 60.90 63.00
Durchschnittliches Volumen / Handelstag (Stick) 4084 4324 2728 5044 5314
Borsenkapitalisierungin CHF Mio. (31.12.) 504 400 312 257 266
Kennzahlen pro Aktie
CHF 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Reingewinn pro Aktie - unverwassert 3.16 4.52 4.0 3.16 3.71
Reingewinn pro Aktie - verwassert 3.16 4.52 4.0 3.16 3.7
Betrieblicher Cash Flow pro Aktie 5.23 5.19 5.38 4.31 4.73
Free Cash Flow pro Aktie -19.26 3.80 4.05 3.25 3.96
Ausschiittung pro Aktie 3.00' 3.00 2.70 2.20 2.50
Eigenkapital pro Aktie 49.56 28.85 26.63 24.10 24.68

1 Antragdes Verwaltungsrats an die Generalversammlung vom 30. April 2019: Ausschiittung von CHF 3.00 pro Aktie aus Kapitaleinlagereserven ohne Beriicksichtigung der eigenen Aktien.

Entwicklung Aktienkurs (04.01.2016 bis 05.02.2019)
CLTN Namenaktien/Swiss Performance Index (SPI) angepasst
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Der Wert einer COLTENE Aktie gingim Jahr 2018 vorab als Folge der
ricklaufigen Entwicklung an den Finanzmarkten im vierten Quartal um
11,2% von CHF 94.90 auf CHF 84.30 zurlick. COLTENE schittete im
Berichtsjahr Anfang April eine Dividende von CHF 3.00 pro Aktie aus.
Diese vermochte den Kursriickgang nicht zu kompensieren. Die
Gesamtperformance fir das ganze Jahr betrug -8,0 %.
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Aktionarsstruktur?

Per 31. Dezember 2018 waren 2011 Aktionare (1743) im Aktienregister
eingetragen. Die folgenden Aktiondre hielten am Jahresende 3% oder mehr
des ausstehenden Aktienkapitals der COLTENE Holding AG:

31.12.2018 31.12.2017

Huwa Finanz-und Beteiligungs AG 21,98% 26,33%
ArnoHoldingS.arl. 17,20 % n/a.
Ratikon Privatstiftung 10,02% 1,45%
Tweedy, Browne CompanyLLC 4,80% 6,80%
Credit Suisse Asset Management Funds AG 3,75% 5,59%
UBS Fund Management (Switzerland) AG 3,49% 3,95%
Robert Heberlein 3,40% 3,97%

1 Firweitere Details siehe Seite 31 im Teil Corporate Governance dieses Geschaftsberichts.

Kontaktadresse

Gerhard Mahrle, CFO

COLTENE Holding AG, Feldwiesenstrasse 20,9450 Altstatten
Telefon +4171757 54 37; E-Mail investor@coltene.com

Aktienregister
Karin Wagner, ShareCommService AG
Telefon +41 44 809 58 52; E-Mail karin.wagner@sharecomm.ch

Kalender

Medien-und Analystenkonferenz zum Geschaftsjahr2018 4. April 2019
Generalversammlung 2019 30. April 2019
Veréffentlichung Halbjahresbericht 2019 22. August 2019

Medien- und Analystenkonferenz zum Geschaftsjahr2019 5. Marz 2020
Veroffentlichung Jahresbericht 2019 5.Marz 2020
Generalversammlung 2020 2. April 2020



Highlights 2018

204

Neuer Umsatzrekord

Im Geschaftsjahr 2018 erreichte der Gruppenumsatz mit den
dazugekauften Aktivitaten von Kenda, SciCan und Micro-Mega
ein neues Allzeithoch.

1366

Wegweisender
Wachstumsschritt

Mit dem Zukauf von SciCan und Micro-Mega steigt die Zahl

der Mitarbeitenden und damit die Expertise und das Know-how
der Gruppe markant an. Dieser Zusammenschluss eréffnet
vielversprechende Wachstumschancen.



37,2 %

Ausbau der Prasenz
in Nordamerika

Mit der Integration von SciCan und Micro-Mega starkt COLTENE
ihre Marktposition und erweitert das Produktportfolio.

35,9 %

FUihrender Anbieter
von Endodontie-Produkten

Micro-Mega erweitert das innovative Sortiment von COLTENE im
Bereich Wurzelkanalbehandlung und starkt den Anteil der Produktgruppe

Zahnerhaltung am Gesamtumsatz der Gruppe nachhaltig.




Vorwort

Sehr geehrte Aktionarinnen,
sehr geehrte Aktionare

Im Geschéftsjahr 2018 leitete COLTENE mit der Ubernahme der beiden

im Dentalmarkt stark verankerten Unternehmen SciCan und Micro-
Mega eine neue Arain der Unternehmensgeschichte ein. Die Integration der
auf Desinfektionsgerate und Hygieneprodukte respektive Endodontie-
Instrumente fokussierten Dentalspezialisten stellt einen zukunftsweisenden
Wachstumsschritt dar. Der Zusammenschluss starkt die Marktposition
von COLTENE und erhoht den Gruppenumsatz signifikant. Skalen-und
Synergieeffekte unterstiitzen den Aufbau schlagkraftiger, globaler Mar-
keting- und Verkaufsstrukturen. Mit vereinten Ressourcen kann die neu
formierte Gruppe die steigenden regulatorischen Anforderungen zu-
kunftig noch effizienter erflllen. Insgesamt eroffnet das Zusammengehen
der drei Unternehmen vielversprechende Wachstumschancen im wett-
bewerbs-intensiven Dentalmarkt.

Mit dem Ziel, ihre Positionierung im Markt zu starken, strukturiert COLTENE
ihr Sortiment neu in den Produktgruppen Infektionskontrolle, Zahn-
erhaltung und Behandlungseffizienz. Durch die Zukaufe sind insbesondere
die Bereiche Infektionskontrolle und Zahnerhaltung gewachsen.

Der Gruppenumsatz wuchs gegeniiber dem Vorjahr um 21,4 % auf

CHF 204,0 Mio. (2017: CHF 168,0 Mio.), wihrungs- und akquisitions-
bereinigt um 2,7%. Damit entwickelte sich die COLTENE Gruppe

besser als der stagnierende Gesamtmarkt. Hohe Umsatzsteigerungen
erwirtschaftete COLTENE akquisitionsbedingt in den Heimmarkten

von SciCan (Kanada) und Micro-Mega (Frankreich). Dynamisches Wachs-
tum verzeichnete COLTENE auch in den wichtigen Zukunftsmarkten
China und Japan. Die EBIT-Marge fiir das Gesamtjahr 2018 betrug 11,6 %.
Die Sondereffekte im Zusammenhang mit

den Akquisitionen, der Erstkonsolidierung und

Int ti Kenda, SciC d Micro-M ;
negralonyon enda .CI anun icro-Mega Derzukaufvon SCICaﬂ
schlugen mit CHF 7,0 Mio. zu Buche. Unter .

Ausklammerung dieser Sondereffekte erreichte un d M ICro- M ega

35;;';::;?:&5’0% ndbehavpretesichaut bedeutet fur COLTENE
einen wegweisenden
Wachstumsschritt. Er
eroffnet vielversprechende
neue Chancen.



Nick Huber, Prasident des Verwaltungsrats Martin Schaufelberger, CEO

Integration von Kenda, SciCan und Micro-Mega

Mit der Ubernahme von SciCan erlangte die neue COLTENE Gruppe die
klare Marktfiihrerposition im Bereich dentaler Desinfektionsgerate und
Hygieneprodukte. Der Zusammenschluss mit Micro-Mega starkte die
Stellung im Bereich Endodontie markant. Heute zahlt COLTENE zu den
grossen und marktbestimmenden Endodontie-Anbietern. Die Anfang
Januar 2018 iibernommene Kenda erganzt das Portfolio der Rotierenden
Instrumente mit innovativen und hochprazisen Silikonpolierern fir
Zahnarztinnen und Zahndrzte.

Direkt anschliessend an das Closing der beiden Akquisitionen nahm
COLTENE dierasche Integration der neuen Kompetenzen und Teams in
Angriff. Dazu hat das Management verschiedene interdisziplinare und
standortlbergreifende Projektgruppen eingesetzt. Der Schwerpunkt liegt
in der Zusammenfiihrung der Marketing- und Verkaufsorganisation.
Diese soll einen schlagkraftigen, gemeinsamen Marktauftritt unter der
Dachmarke COLTENE sicherstellen und dafiir sorgen, dass Synergien

im Verkauf so rasch wie méglich genutzt werden kénnen.



Erweiterung der Geschiftsleitung D | e ve rk au ]CS regi onen

und des Verwaltungsrats

Mit dem Vollzug der Transaktion wurde die Gruppen- N @) rdame ri |<a un d E M E A
leitung von COLTENE per 1. November 2018 mit Stelge rten 201 8 d |e Abve r-

Stefan Helsing erweitert. Er vertritt die neuen Stand-

orte und Produktgruppen und tibernimmt die opera- |<éU]ce ak q u iS |t|o nsS b e d | ngt
tive Verantwortung fir alle Produktionsstandorte.

Stefan Helsing war bisher CEO der Sanavis Gruppe, Und baUten lhre Prasenz ln
zu der SciCan und Micro-Mega gehdrten. Zudem den |O|<a|en Mérkten aus.

wurde mit dem Vollzug der Zukdufe die von der ausser-

ordentlichen Generalversammlung der COLTENE

Holding AG vom 14. September 2018 vorgenommene Zuwahl von Allison
Zwingenberger in den Verwaltungsrat wirksam. Allison Zwingenberger
ist Associate Professor am Departement fir Veterinar-Radiologie an der
University of California, Davis, USA.

Wechsel auf Swiss GAAP FER

COLTENE stellt nach dem Abschluss des Kaufs von SciCan und Micro-
Mega die Rechnungslegung auf das Geschaftsjahr 2019 von IFRS auf Swiss
GAAP FER um. Die Berichte fiir den Halbjahres- und Jahresabschluss 2019
und folgende werden entsprechend dem neuen Standard erstellt. Mit dem
bereits im Marz 2018 angekiindigten, jedoch aufgrund der Akquisitionen
aufgeschobenen Wechsel auf Swiss GAAP FER hat sich COLTENE fiir einen
pragmatischen Rechnungslegungsstandard mit vergleichbarer Aussage-
kraft zu IFRS entschieden. Er entspricht gleichermassen den Bediirfnissen
eines international tatigen, mittelgrossen Unternehmens und zeichnet

sich durch geringere Komplexitat und Kosten aus. Eine transparente Bericht-
erstattung nach dem «true and fair view»-Prinzip ist mit Swiss GAAP FER
weiterhin sichergestellt. Als Folge des Wechsels des Rechnungslegungs-
standards wird die COLTENE Holding AG bei der SIX Swiss Exchange einen
Segmentwechsel vom International Reporting Standard in den Swiss
Reporting Standard mit Wirkung per 1. Juli 2019 beantragen. Die Aktien
der COLTENE Holding AG bleiben in den Indizes der SPI-Familie sowie

in den beiden SXI-Indizes, SXI Life Sciences und

SXI Bio+Medtech, der SIX Swiss Exchange enthalten.

Die Integration von

Ausblick . .

COLTENE setzt sich zum Ziel, im Markt fir dentale S Cl Can un d M ICro- M ega
Verbrauchsgiiter Akzente zu setzen und Mehr- |<O mmt p | anm éS S |g un d
werte in Form von innovativen Produkten oder .

effizienteren Behandlungsmethoden fiir Zahn- st rateg| e |< O mCO rmvaoran.

arztinnen und Zahnarzte zu schaffen. Im Geschafts-

jahr 2019 rechnet die Unternehmensfiihrung

dank den dazugekauften Aktivitaten sowie der erfreulichen Entwicklung
im angestammten Geschaft mit einem fortgesetzten kraftigen Wachs-
tum. Wahrend die dazugekauften Aktivitaten wesentlich zum Gruppen-
umsatz beitragen werden, erwartet das Management auch bei den
angestammten Produkten eine dynamische Umsatzentwicklung tiber dem



Marktschnitt. Basis dazu bilden der gezielte Ausbau und die Starkung der
Verkaufsteams vornehmlich in den Schliisselmarkten Europa, Asien und
China. Trotz weiteren Kosten fir die Integration der akquirierten Gesell-
schaften geht die COLTENE Gruppe im laufenden Geschaftsjahr von einer
Steigerung der EBIT-Marge aus. Dank den neuen Wachstumschancen
aus dem Zusammenschluss mit SciCan und Micro-Mega, den Synergie-
potenzialen sowie Skaleneffekten erwartet COLTENE, mittelfristig die
Ziel-EBIT-Marge von 15 % wieder zu erreichen.

Dank
Im Namen des Verwaltungsrats und der Dan k d er N utzu ng von

Konzernleitung heissen wir die neuen Teams in der S |<a | en e]cfe |<te nun d

COLTENE Gruppe willkommen. Es ist das Ziel

der neuen COLTENE, das vereinte Know-how und Synergiepotenzi&ﬂen |St
die ausgezeichnete Marktstellung gemeinsam daS Mana ement Zu-
weiter zu starken. g

versichtlich, die Margen-
wieder steigern zu konnen.

Wir danken dem weltweiten Fihrungsteam

und unseren neu 1366 Mitarbeitenden fir ihre
grosse Einsatzbereitschaft und Loyalitatim
vergangenen Jahr. Ein besonderer Dank geht an
unsere Kunden, Geschaftspartner und Lieferan-
ten fur die hervorragende Zusammenarbeit und die guten Geschafts-
beziehungen. Ganz speziell danken wir unseren Aktiondrinnen

und Aktionaren flr ihr 2018 unter Beweis gestelltes ausserordentliches
Vertrauen in den Verwaltungsrat und das Management.

Nick Huber Martin Schaufelberger
Prasident des Verwaltungsrats CEO






SciCanlLtd.istein spezialisierter Komplettanbieter von Produkten zur Infektionskontrolle
und Sterilisationslésungen. Das Unternehmen mit Hauptsitz in Toronto wurde 1957
gegriindet und operiert heute als Marktfiihrer im Bereich der dentalspezifischen Hygiene
mit eigenen Niederlassungenin Kanada, den USA, der Schweiz und Deutschland weltweit.
SciCanLtd., einschliesslich des Vertriebs und Reparaturservices fir den Heimmarkt
Kanada, beschaftigtin Toronto rund 160 Mitarbeitende.

«Wir sind darauf spezialisiert,
evidenzbasierte Empfehlungen
zur Infektionskontrolle sowie
Best Practicesund die
innovativsten und effektivsten
Infektionskontrollgerate
bereitzustellen —zum Schutz
von Patienten und Zahnarzten
gleichermassen.»

Max Cui/ Production Service Technician / Toronto, Kanada




Die neue COLTENE Gruppe

Seit Oktober 2018 treten COLTENE, SciCan und
Micro-Mega im Markt fir dentale Verbrauchsguter

als eine starke Unternehmensgruppe auf. Die drei
Dentalspezialisten erganzen sich in hohem Mass.
COLTENE ist mitihren modernen Produktionsstatten
inden USA, Deutschland, Brasilien und der Schweiz
sowie eigenen Vertriebsorganisationenin den wichtigen
Schltsselmarkten Europa, Nordamerika, China und
Indien ein weltweit tatiger, fihrender Entwickler und
Anbieter mit einer breiten Produktpalette. SciCan

mit Sitz in Toronto, Kanada, ist auf Desinfektionsgerate
und Hygieneprodukte spezialisiert. Das Unternehmen
halt eine fihrende Marktstellungin Nordamerika. Micro-
Mega mit Sitz und Produktionsstatte in Besancon,
Frankreich,istein fihrender Anbieter von Endodontie-
Instrumenten. Die Hauptabsatzmarkte sind

Europa und Nordamerika.

Traditionellist COLTENE eine Unternehmensgruppe,
die aus der Vereinigung von starken Spezialisten
gewachsenist. Unter dem gemeinsamen strategischen
Dach mit einheitlichen Betriebssystemen und
Prozessabldaufen Uberlasst die Unternehmensfihrung den
einzelnen Standorten grosse Selbststandigkeit. Die im
Markt ausgezeichnet eingefiihrten Produkte und Marken
werden unter der Dachmarke COLTENE weitergefuhrt.
Nach der Integration von SciCan und Micro-Mega
gliedert sich das Sortiment von COLTENE neuin die drei
Produktgruppen Infektionskontrolle, Zahnerhaltung

und Behandlungseffizienz.
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Infektionskontrolle

Instrumentenaufbereitung und
Oberflachendesinfektion

SciCan Hydrim

SciCan Statim

SciCanBravo

SciCan Optim

BioSonic® UC150

Umsatz ~CHF 85 Millionen |30 %'

14

Zahnerhaltung

Restauration

ParaCore

=L
ParaPost
Endodontie

MicroMega One Curve HyFlexCM & EDM

Umsatz ~CHF 85 Millionen |30 %'

1 Pro-Forma-Zahlen auf 12 Monate hochgerechnet



Behandlungseffizienz

Abformmaterialien Rotierende
Instrumente

Diatech

Kenda

President

Umsatz ~CHF 110 Millionen | 40 %'

1 Pro-Forma-Zahlen auf 12 Monate hochgerechnet

Behandlungshilfen

’ 4
3 f/ f‘f/

Roeko Surgitip

Hygenic DentalDam

Roeko Gelatamp

15



Das Prinzip, Entscheidungen dort zu treffen, wo sie anfallen,
setzt COLTENE mit Erfolg um und schafft damit die

Basis fur langfristiges Wachstum. Wie einst Whaledentim
Jahr1990 und ROEKO 2002 sind 2018 Kenda, SciCan und
Micro-Mega zum Firmenverbund gestossen und erweitern
die Kompetenzen und das Produktsortiment der Gruppe.
Ein zusatzlicher, zentraler Erfolgsfaktor von COLTENE ist
der grosse Stellenwert der unternehmerischen Ver-
antwortung. Die Ankeraktionare vermitteln der Gruppe
Sicherheit und stehen fir eine langfristig nachhaltige
Ausrichtung der Unternehmensstrategie ein.

Der Zusammenschluss von COLTENE, Kenda, SciCan

und Micro-Mega begriindet einen starken Unternehmens-
verbund mit vielversprechenden Wachstumschancen:

16



Synergien

Mit vereinten Ressourcen kann die
neuformierte Gruppe die steigenden
regulatorischen Anforderungen
noch besser erfiillen. Skaleneffekte
unterstiitzen den Aufbau
schlagkraftiger, globaler Marketing-
und Verkaufsstrukturen, und die
hohen Kosten fiir die Digitalisierung
konnenaufein breiteres
Produktportfolio verteilt werden.

Marktrelevanz @

Durch den Zusammenschluss
entstehteine Gruppe mit

1366 Mitarbeitenden. Die
gewonnene Grosse erlaubtes
COLTENE, noch globalerin
einem Markt zu agieren, der
von Konsolidierung und hohem
Wettbewerb gepragtist.

Better Quality

Unsere hochwertigen Produkte halten, was sie
versprechen. Mitdem Hochleistungskomposit
Block BRILLIANT Crios halt beispielsweise einer
derflexibelsten Dentalwerkstoffe in die CAD/
CAM-Technik Einzug.

® Marktzugang

Die Vertriebsnetze und jeweiligen Heim-
markte der drei Unternehmen erganzen
sichunderoffnender Gruppe somitneue
Wachstumschancen.

® Komplettanbieter
Gemeinsam bieten SciCan, Micro-
Megaund COLTENE ein breites
Spektrumvon dentalen Verbrauchs-
guternund Kleingerdten fir
Zahnarztinnen und Zahnarzte an.
Gleichzeitig steigt dank erweitertem
Sortiment und grésseren Volumen

die Attraktivitat von COLTENE gegen-
uberihren Distributionspartnern.

17



Operativer Ruckblick
und Finanzkommentar

Im Geschiftsjahr 2018 festigte die COLTENE Gruppe dank den
zukunftsweisenden Akquisitionen von Kenda, SciCan und Micro-
Mega ihre fiihrende Stellung im Markt fiir dentale Verbrauchs-
giiter und Kleingerate. Die Verkaufsregionen Nordamerika und
EMEA wiesen deutliche Umsatzzunahmen aus, da sie von den
dazugekauften Aktivitaten am starksten profitierten.

Im Geschaftsjahr 2018 erzielte die COLTENE Gruppe einen Nettoumsatz
von CHF 204,0 Mio. (2017: CHF 168,0 Mio.), was einer Steigerung von
21,4 % in der Berichtswahrung Schweizer Franken entspricht. Anfang Januar
2018 ibernahm COLTENE die Kenda AG mit Sitz in Vaduz, Liechtenstein,
einen Spezialisten fir silikonbasierte Dentalpolierer. Am 9. Oktober 2018
erwarb COLTENE die SciCan-Gruppe mit Sitz in Toronto, Kanada, einen
spezialisierten Hersteller von Desinfektionsgeraten und Hygieneprodukten,
und die DentalDrives GmbH, die Holdinggesellschaft der in Besancon,
Frankreich, beheimateten Micro-Mega SA, einen Hersteller von Endodontie-
Instrumenten. Zusammen mit den Auswirkungen aus der Akquisition von
Diatech Inc.im Jahr 2017 betrug der Gesamteinfluss der Akquisitionen auf
den Nettoumsatz CHF 30,4 Mio. oder 18,1%. Das organische Wachstum der
COLTENE Gruppe vor Akquisitionen Ubertraf mit 2,7 % den stagnierenden
Gesamtmarkt.

Neue Produktgruppenstruktur
Nach der Integration von Kenda, SciCan und Micro-Mega hat die
COLTENE Gruppe eine neue Struktur fiir die Umsatzberichterstattung
nach Produkten eingefiihrt:
- Infektionskontrolle
- Zahnerhaltung (Restauration, Endodontie) und
- Behandlungseffizienz (Prothetik, Rotierende Instrumente
und Behandlungshilfen).

Das Management erwartet, dass die Bereiche Infektionskontrolle und
Zahnerhaltung zukiinftig je etwa 30 % und die Behandlungseffizienz
rund 40 % des gesamten Jahresumsatzes ausmachen werden. Da die
Konsolidierung der Akquisition von SciCan und Micro-Mega erst fiir

die letzten drei Monate des Geschaftsjahrs 2018 erfolgte, unterscheidet
sich die Verteilung der Nettoumsatze noch deutlich
von der kiinftigen Zusammensetzung. 2018 war die
Behandlungseffizienz die umsatzstarkste Produkt-
gruppe mit einem Nettoumsatz von CHF 101,7 Mio.

In einem stagnierenden

Die zweitgrosste Produktgruppe Zahnerhaltung D e ntal mar |<t wuc h S
erzielte einen Umsatz von CHF 73,3 Mio. Der Bereich .
Infektionskontrolle schliesslich erreichte einen C O I—T E N E aus € |ge ner K raft

Umsatz von CHF 29,0 Mio. Die COLTENE Gruppe Organlsch um 2’7 O/O.

vor Akquisitionen vermochte aus eigener Kraft
in der Behandlungseffizienz um 2,6 % und mit der
Produktgruppe Zahnerhaltung um 7,0 % zu wachsen.



Im Bereich Infektionskontrolle hingegen waren die Umsdtze um 8,2%
ricklaufig. Dieses Wachstum ist auf die erfolgreiche Einflihrung und
gute Marktakzeptanz von neuen Produkten wie Brilliant EverGlow und
Brilliant Crios zuriickzufiihren. Der Umsatzrickgang in der Infektions-
kontrolle ist auf negative Wahrungseffekte im Hauptmarkt USA (USD)
sowie auf Lieferriickstande bei einzelnen Geraten zuriickzufihren.

Starkung der Prasenz in Kernmarkten

2018 erweiterte die COLTENE Gruppe ihre Verkaufsteams in wichtigen
Schlissel-und Schwellenmarkten. Die zusatzlichen Aussendienst-
mitarbeitenden erhohten die lokale Prasenz vor allem in Europa sowie

in den Wachstumsmarkten China und Indien. Weiter intensivierte
COLTENE die Kundenbetreuung mit Seminaren und bediirfnisgerechten
Schulungen und Trainings. Vom 12. bis 14. Juli 2018 fand zum Beispiel

das Key Opinion Leader-Seminar (KOL) in Kuala Lumpur fir die Verkaufs-
region Asien statt. Die Key-Note-Referate und Fachvortrdge zu den
neusten Entwicklungen in der Zahnmedizin sowie

denjiingsten Innovationen und Produktlancierungen

von COLTENE stiessen bei Key Opinion Leader,

Professoren und Fachspezialisten aus den Bereichen | nfe ktl ons k ontro | |e un d
Restauration und Endodontie auf grosses Interesse. Zah ner h alt U ng we rd en

Wie bereits in den Vorjahren anladsslich der KOL-

Seminare in Lateinamerika im Jahr 2016 und in Europa Je Zl rka 3 O O/O un d d e

im Jahr 2017 begleitete COLTENE die Veranstaltung T

mit einer Web- und Social-Media-Kampagne. B € h an d | u ngs efﬂ ZIenz
rund 40 % zum Gruppen-

Nordamerika neu grosster Markt fiir COLTENE :

Durch die Akquisition der SciCan Gruppe wird der umsatz b € ltrage n.

nordamerikanische Markt fiir die COLTENE Gruppe

in der Zukunft zur gréssten Verkaufsregion. 2018

erzielte die Gruppe in diesem Markt einen Umsatz von CHF 75,9 Mio.

In der Region EMEA, die 2018 noch den grossten Umsatzanteil erwirt-

schaftete, betrugen die Verkaufe CHF 85,3 Mio. In den Regionen Asien

und Lateinamerika lagen die Umsatze bei CHF 26,1 Mio. respektive

CHF 16,7 Mio. Fir 2019 erwartet das Management folgende geografische

Umsatzverteilung: Nordamerika 45 %, EMEA 35%, Asien 13% und Latein-

amerika 7 %.

In den Emerging Markets nahmen die Verkaufe um11,2% zu, vor allem
dank guten Abverkaufen von Produkten der Bereiche Zahnerhaltung und
Behandlungseffizienz in den Méarkten Russland/CIS, Mittlerer und
Ferner Osten und China. Die brasilianische Gruppengesellschaft Vigodent
verzeichnete als Folge der Abwertung des brasilianischen Reals einen
Rickgang der Verkdufe in Schweizer Franken um 9,1%. In Lokalwdhrungen
stiegen die Umsatze um 4,3 % und unterstiitzten die Wiederholung des
positiven operativen Ergebnisses des Vorjahrs.
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Der Gesamtumsatz 2018 teilte sich nach der rund dreimonatigen Konsoli-
dierung der Umsatze von SciCan und Micro-Mega wie folgt auf die
Verkaufsregionen auf: COLTENE erzielte 41,8 % des Gruppenumsatzes in
der Region EMEA, die Europa, den Nahen und Mittleren Osten sowie
Afrika umfasst (2017: 41,8 %), 37,2% in Nordamerika (2017: 34,6 %), 12,8 %
in Asien (2017:13,2% ) und 8,2% in Lateinamerika (2017:10,4%).

Belastung des operativen Ergebnisses durch Sondereinfliisse

aus der Erstkonsolidierung der Akquisitionen

Das Betriebsergebnis (EBIT) wurde durch nicht operative, einmalige
Sondereffekte aus der Erstkonsolidierung der Akquisitionen beeinflusst
und belief sich auf CHF 23,7 Mio. (2017: CHF 25,5 Mio.), was einer EBIT-
Marge von 11,6 % (2017:15,2%) entspricht. Unter Ausklammerung der
Sondereffekte von CHF 7,0 Mio. wiirde das EBIT CHF 30,7 Mio. und die
EBIT-Marge 15,0 % betragen. Die Sondereffekte vor Steuern belaufen
sich auf total CHF 7,0 Mio. und sind vorwiegend auf die Anwendung des
Rechnungslegungsstandards nach IFRS zuriickzufihren. Sie umfassen
im Wesentlichen:

- Reduktion der Bruttomarge durch den Umsatz von Fertigwaren,
die zum Zeitpunkt der Akquisition auf Verkaufswerte aufgewertet
wurden

- Amortisation auf immateriellen Anlagewerten, die im Zug der
Akquisition bilanziert worden sind (immaterielle Werte fiir erworbene
Kunden, Technologien und Rechte an geistigem Eigentum)

- Im Aufwand enthaltene Transaktionskosten fir die Akquisitionen.

Das um die Sondereffekte korrigierte Betriebsergebnis verdeutlicht, dass
die vielfaltigen Massnahmen im Verkaufs- und Marketingbereich Wirkung
zeigten. Die Starkung der Verkaufsteams, deren konsequente Fiihrung
sowie die in verschiedenen Markten lancierten Promotionen fiihrten zu
hoheren Umsdtzen und verbesserten Margen. Die effektivere Nutzung
moderner Tools wie CRM oder Produktinformationssysteme zeigten den
gewdlnschten Erfolg.

Der ausgewiesene Reingewinn betrug CHF 14,9 Mio.

(2017: CHF 19,1 Mio.). Der Gewinn nach Steuern Dle E B |T_Marge erreic hte
wurde zusatzlich zu den erwahnten Sondereffekten 1 '|)6 OA)) O h ne S on d e reﬂ:e |(te

durch einmalige Steuereffekte aufgrund einer

gednderten Rechtslegung in den USA negativ beein- aus d er E rStkO nso | l d le ru ng
flusst. Weil die Kriterien fir die Zahlung von Ein- von Ken d a, SciCan un d

kommens- und Umsatzsteuern auf Stufe der Einzel- . . . 0
staaten und Countys in den USA geandert wurden, M ICIrO- M ega h atte sien S,O A)
bildete COLTENE eine Steuerriickstellungim b etrage n.

Betrag von CHF 0,7 Mio. Die berichtete Steuerquote

betrug 30,4 % (2017: 22,2%). Die um die Sonder-

effekte korrigierte Steuerquote belief sich auf 25,1%.
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Die Erhéhung der Steuerquote resultierte auch daraus, dass COLTENE
Gesellschaften in Landern mit einer (iber dem Durchschnitt liegenden
Steuerquote akquirierte.

Unter Ausklammerung der akquisitionsbedingten Sondereffekte und des
einmaligen Steuereffekts hatte der Reingewinn CHF 21,3 Mio. betragen
und das Vorjahr Ubertroffen. Die Gewinnmarge hatte auf bereinigter Basis
10,4% (2017:11,3%) betragen.

Belastung der Cash-Flow-Rechnung durch die Akquisitionen

Der operative Cash Flow erhéhte sich im Geschaftsjahr 2018 auf CHF
24,6 Mio. (2017: CHF 21,9 Mio.). Der Cash Flow aus Investitionen fiel vor
allem bedingt durch die erwahnten Akquisitionen mit CHF 115,4 Mio.
(2017: CHF 5,9 Mio.) deutlich hoher aus. Zusatzlich

investierte die COLTENE Gruppe an ihrem

Haupt“sitz in Ntsté'tten in ein neues Fabrikati(?ns— D er \/e rsc h U | d U ngsfa |<tO r
und Birogebaude im Betrag von CHF 12,0 Mio.
COLTENE konnte den modernen Bauin der (N ettoversc h u | d U ﬂg

Zwischenzeit beziehen. Verschiedene Abteilungen, d |V| d | ert d urc h d as E B |-|— DA)

darunter die Verkaufs- und Marketingteams,

und administrative Funktionen sind in die neuen b etrug |< @) m]CO rtab | € 0O,9.
Blrordumlichkeiten umgezogen. Die 2018 personell D|e Eigeﬂ |<aplta|q uote

stark ausgebaute Qualitatsmanagement-und

Registrierungsabteilung der Schweizer Produktions- ve rb | | e b m |t 70)5 OA) a U'F

statte ist ebenfalls in den modernen Neubau um- . .

gezogen. Die COLTENE Gruppe erweiterte diese SO | | d em N IVeau.
Abteilung, um die kiinftigen regulatorischen An-

forderungen der neuen europdischen MDR (Medical

Device Regulation) zu erfiillen, die im Mai 2020 in Kraft treten wird.

Damit stellt die Gruppenleitung auch sicher, dass die Dokumenta-

tionsanforderungen der Audits nach MDSAP (Medical Device Single

Audit Program) erfillt werden.

Diese Schritte waren notig, um die Produktzulassungen auf den welt-
weiten Markten auch zukiinftig zu gewahrleisten. Im ersten Quartal 2019
konnten auch die ersten Produktionsabteilungen ihre Tatigkeiten in

den neuen und hellen Fertigungsraumen aufnehmen.

Der Free Cash Flow war aus den erwahnten Griinden mit CHF 90,8 Mio.
negativ (2017: CHF 16,0 Mio. positiv).

Solide Bilanz dank Kapitalerh6hungen

Aus den Kapitalerhohungen fir die Akquisitionen stieg das Eigenkapital
um netto CHF 180,5 Mio. Davon sind CHF 169,8 Mio. Kapitaleinlage-
reserven, die gemass der aktuell giiltigen Rechtsgrundlage an Aktiondre
(natiirliche Personen mit Wohnsitz in der Schweiz) steuerfrei aus-
geschittet werden kénnen.
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In der Bilanz per 31. Dezember 2018 spiegeln sich die Effekte der Ak-
quisitionen, die zu einer Zunahme der Bilanzsumme auf CHF 420,2 Mio.
(2017: CHF 167,3 Mio.) fiihrten. Die Nettoverschuldung erhéhte sich

auf CHF 29,2 Mio. (2017: Netto-Cash-Position von CHF 13,8 Mio.), da
die COLTENE Gruppe einen Teil der Akquisitionen mit Bankdarlehen
finanzierte. Daflir nahm COLTENE eine kommittierte Kreditlinie mit einer
Laufzeit von fiinf Jahren bis zum 30. Juni 2023 auf. Der Verschuldungs-
faktor (Nettoverschuldung dividiert durch das EBITDA) betrug kom-
fortable 0,9. Die Eigenkapitalquote betrug am Bilanzstichtag 70,5 % (2017:
72,7%). Somit waren die im Finanzierungsvertrag vereinbarten
Covenants eingehalten.

In der Gesamtergebnisrechnung fir das abgelaufene Geschaftsjahr
resultierte ein Gewinn von CHF 7,0 Mio. (2017: CHF 20,5 Mio.). Dieser
Rickgangist auf die im Abschnitt zur Erfolgsrechnung erwdhnten
Einflisse sowie zusatzlich auf nicht liquiditatswirksame Verluste aus
Umrechnungsdifferenzen im Betrag von CHF 8,1 Mio. (2017:

CHF 0,0 Mio.) aus der Umrechnung der Bilanzen der auslandischen
Gruppengesellschaften in Schweizer Franken zurlickzufiihren.
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Produktion und Umwelt

COLTENE nimmt ihre gesellschaftliche Verantwor-
tung als internationales Unternehmen wahr und
arbeitet kontinuierlich darauf hin, die Umweltbelas-
tungen entlang der gesamten Wertschopfungs-
kette zu minimieren. Ziel ist es, den Ressourcen-
verbrauch zu begrenzen und den Zahnarzten sowie
ihren Patienten sichere und zuverlassige Produkte
zur Verfligung zu stellen. Das Kapitel «Produktion
und Umwelt» hilt eine Reihe von Grundwerten
und Handlungsmaximen fest und definiert Rahmen
und Umfang der beobachteten Parameter und
Aktivitdten. Dariiber hinaus bezweckt die Unter-
nehmensfiithrung, das Bewusstsein fiir nachhaltiges
Handeln auf allen Ebenen innerhalb der Organisa-
tion zu erhohen. COLTENE ist bestrebt, die Reichweite
ihres unternehmensiibergreifenden Nachhaltig-
keitsmanagements kontinuierlich auszuweiten.

Die globalen Produktionsstidtten von COLTENE

Die Produktionsstatten der COLTENE Gruppe sind auf
unterschiedliche Verfahren und Produkte spezialisiert.
Die globalen Produktionsstandorte der COLTENE
Gruppe sind:

Das COLTENE Werk in Langenau, Deutschland, ist
auf die Entwicklung und Herstellung folgender Pro-
dukte spezialisiert:

- International bekannte endodontische Produkte und
Marken zur Reinigung, Trocknung und Obturation
der Wurzelkanile. Die Produkte werden unter den
Markennamen Roeko, Hygenic, Luna und Surgitip
vertrieben.

- Zuverlassige, hochwertige Produkte zur Wundversor-
gung sowie Feuchtigkeits- und Infektionskontrolle.
Zahndrzte weltweit schatzen die bewahrten Produk-
te, da sie die Zahnbehandlung erleichtern und den
Patientenkomfort steigern. Die vollautomatisierten
Produktionsprozesse gewdhrleisten einen sehr
hohen Qualitatsstandard.

- Zuden wichtigsten Verfahren zdhlen die Verarbei-
tung von Guttapercha, Papier und Textilien sowie die
Fertigung von Behandlungshilfen.
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Die chemische Produktionsstatte in Altstatten,
Schweiz, die vor allem auf die Entwicklung und Her-
stellung folgender Produkte ausgerichtet ist:

- Ein breites Spektrum hochpraziser dentaler Abform-
materialien, einschliesslich bekannter C-Silikon-
und A-Silikon-Produkte. Die Abformmaterialien von
COLTENE sind weltweit fiihrend und viele Zahn-
arztinnen und Zahnarzte vertrauen seit Jahrzehnten
auf die Fahigkeiten und die Qualitdt dieser Schweizer
Produkte.

- Hochwertige restaurative Produkte flr eine inno-
vative und klinisch bewahrte asthetische Fillungs-
therapie sowie eine breite Palette an Adhasiv-
und Befestigungsmaterialien. Pionierarbeit leistete
COLTENE mit der Entwicklung weisser Zahn-
fullungen aus Kompositmaterial als Ersatz fir die
bis dahin tiblichen Amalgamfillstoffe.

- Wesentliche Verfahren sind chemische Prozesse mit
dem Schwerpunkt auf Mischung und Dosierung.

Kenda mit Sitz in Vaduz, Flirstentum Liechtenstein,

ist auf zahnmedizinische Diamant- und Silikonpolierer

spezialisiert. Zu den hochwertigen Produkten fiir die

Zahnmedizin und Zahntechnik zahlen:

- Autoklavierbare Polierer fiir Zahnarzte fiir den Mehr-
fachgebrauch

- Polierer fiir Zahnarzte fir den Einmalgebrauch

- Polierer fiir die Zahntechnik.

In den USA verfiigt COLTENE neu Uiber zwei Produk-

tionsstdtten: Das Werk in Cuyahoga Falls, Ohio,

ist auf mechanische Verfahren spezialisiert. SciCan Inc.

in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, ist das Logistik- und

Servicecenter der SciCan Ltd. mit Sitz und Produktions-

statte in Toronto, Kanada. Die in den USA gefertigten

Produkte umfassen:

- Breite Palette von Stiften wie das ParaPost X System,
Hartmetallbohrer und Endodontie-Instrumente

- Produktion sowie lokale Anpassungen und Service-
leistungen fir Produkte zur Ultraschallreinigung und
Desinfektion

- Wesentliche Prozesse sind die mechanische Bearbei-
tung sowie die Herstellung und Montage von elektro-
mechanischen Komponenten.



In Rio de Janeiro, Brasilien, produziert Vigodent
chemische Produkte flir den lateinamerikanischen
Markt und deckt damit folgende Bereiche ab:

- Dentale Abformmaterialien, die einfache und schnel-
le Abformungen von hoher Prazision erméglichen.
Dank der breiten Produktpalette kénnen Zahnarzte
fur jede Indikation das passende Material wahlen.

- Kompositmaterialien fir die restaurative Zahnheil-
kunde.

- In Brasilien kommen ahnliche Produktionsverfahren
zum Einsatz wie am Schweizer Standort.

Das neu zur COLTENE Gruppe gestossene Unterneh-

men Micro-Mega mit Produktionsstatte in Besancon,

Frankreich, zihlt zu den marktfihrenden Anbietern

von Endodontie-Instrumenten. Das breite Sortiment

umfasst:

- Wurzelkanalinstrumente fiir unterschiedliche
Anwendungen

- Spiilldsungen fir die sichere Wurzelkanalaufbereitung

- Hochwertige Obturations- beziehungsweise
Versiegelungsmaterialien.

SciCan Ltd. schliesslich mit Produktionsstatte in
Toronto, Kanada, ist ein Komplettldsungsanbieter von
Desinfektionsgerdten und Hygieneprodukten. Das
Sortiment umfasst eine breite Palette von Produkten
zur Infektionsbekampfung, darunter:

- Kassettenautoklav STATIM und den BRAVO-
Volumenautoklav. Insbesondere der Kassettenauto-
klav zahlt zu den bedeutendsten Innovationen im
Bereich der Infektionsbekampfung.

- Reinigungs- und Thermodesinfektionsgerate
HYDRIM

- Wasserdestillationsgerat AQUASTAT: Es eliminiert
99 % der meisten Schadstoffe und schont dabei
die Instrumente und Gerate.

- Dentale Instrumente, Reinigungs- und Pflegegerate
fir Dentalinstrumente

- Das Flachendesinfektionsmittel OPTIM.

Umweltmanagement - zahlreiche neue Initiativen
Die COLTENE Gruppe ist stets auf der Suche nach
neuen Moglichkeiten, die durch ihre Aktivitaten
verursachte Belastung der Umwelt zu minimieren. Als
Herstellerin von dentalen Verbrauchsmaterialien und
Kleingeraten unterliegt COLTENE strikten Vorschriften,
die eine strenge Uberwachung der Produkte und
Fertigungsprozesse vorschreiben. Anhand ausfihrlicher
Qualitatskontrollprotokolle werden die Rohstoffe

auf Identitdt, Reinheit und Gehalt gepriift, um die Sicher-
heit und Wirksamkeit der Produkte zu gewahrleisten.
Zudem werden alle Aspekte der Herstellungsprozesse
vollstandig dokumentiert, um die Rickverfolgbarkeit
und Patientensicherheit zu garantieren.

Das Bekenntnis von COLTENE zu kontinuierlicher
Verbesserung wird durch den COLTENE Verhaltens-
kodex unterstrichen. Er verpflichtet die Vorgesetz-
ten, ihre Mitarbeitenden dazu anzuhalten, Umwelt-
schutz als Bestandteil ihrer tagtdglichen Aufgaben

zu betrachten.

Abgesehen von den Fertigungs- und Forschungsaktivi-
tdten sind die Umweltbelastungen von COLTENE fUr eine
Organisation ihrer Grosse und im Vergleich zu vielen
anderen Produktionsunternehmen gering. COLTENE
produziert weder Implantate noch Amalgamfllstoffe
und verwendet daher keine grosseren Mengen an Titan-
metallen, Quecksilber, Blei oder Mangan, die zu grossen
Belastungen der Umwelt fihren.

COLTENE modernisiert ihre Produktionsanlagen und
Herstellungsmethoden kontinuierlich, dabei nehmen
Umweltvertraglichkeitskriterien einen zentralen Stellen-
wert ein. Die Gruppe ist stets bemiiht, ihren Material-
und Energieverbrauch zu senken und sinnvolle Verbes-
serungen zu erzielen. Wahrend Produktqualitat und
Patientensicherheit im primaren Fokus stehen, priift
COLTENE laufend zuséatzliche Aktivitaten, die dem
Unternehmen und allen Stakeholdern zugutekommen.
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Die beobachteten und veréffentlichten Umweltdaten
zielen auf zentrale Aspekte der Aktivitaten des Unter-
nehmens ab. Die im Produktionsprozess verwendeten
wesentlichen Materialgruppen sind:

- Hygiene und Behandlungshilfen: Gummi, Metall, Textil-
fasern, Baumwolle, Reinigungslésungen
Endodontische Produkte: NiTi-Metall, Gummi, Papier

- Restaurative Materialien: Polyamidmatrix mit Glasftiller
Abformmaterialien: Silikondle

Betriebsmittel: Wasser, Reinigungsmittel, Losungen
fur galvanische Bader, Papier.

Im Rahmen der Optimierung der Produktions-und
Workflow-Prozesse ist COLTENE bestrebt, den Ver-
brauch von Betriebsmitteln von Jahr zu Jahr zu redu-
zieren. Die relativ niedrigen Mengen an unbehandeltem
Abwasser, das in Fassern und Tanks gesammelt und

von zugelassenen Spezialunternehmen entsorgt wird,
enthalten sehr niedrige Konzentrationen an Reinigungs-
mitteln, Losungsmitteln, Sduren und Olen.

COLTENE berichtet seit dem Geschaftsjahr 2014 tUber
ihre Nachhaltigkeitsaktivitidten. Die Datenerhebung
sowie die Ausarbeitung des ersten Berichts haben im
Unternehmen zu einem hoheren Bewusstsein fir
dieses Thema gefiihrt. Darauf aufbauend wurde die
Erhebung und Verarbeitung der Daten fortlaufend
erweitert. Heute verfiigt das Unternehmen (iber einen
standardisierten Prozess, um relevante Daten zu
erheben und zu konvertieren. Die Umrechnung von
Energie in CO-Emissionen erfolgt in Abhangigkeit
von landerspezifischen Energiefaktoren.

2018 hat der Bericht zu Produktion und Umwelt das
Bewusstseinim Unternehmen weiter gestarkt und

zu zusatzlichen Initiativen und Massnahmen in ver-
schiedenen Unternehmensbereichen gefiihrt. Fir

das Jahr 2019 legt das Management den Fokus auf die
Konsolidierung des Reportings der Nachhaltigkeits-
kennzahlen und die weitere Starkung des allgemeinen
Bewusstseins fiir das Thema in allen Bereichen der
Gruppe.
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Folgende Beispiele veranschaulichen die Anstrengungen

von COLTENE zur Reduktion der Umweltbelastung

im Berichtsjahr 2018:

- Inder Schweiz realisierte COLTENE 2018 an ihrem
Hauptsitz in Altstatten einen Erweiterungsbau
mit modernen Biiroflichen auf drei Etagen sowie
einer zweigeschossigen Produktionshalle. Die neuen
Biroflachen bieten den Mitarbeitenden eine zeit-
gemasse, offen gestaltete Arbeitsplatzumgebung und
steigern die Attraktivitdt von COLTENE als Arbeit-
geberin. Die neuen Fertigungsanlagen erlauben es
COLTENE, die betrieblichen Ablaufe weiter zu
optimieren und noch umweltfreundlicher zu gestalten.
Der Neubau wird zudem einen Reinraum fiir sterile
Verpackungen umfassen. Damit entspricht COLTENE
den weltweit zunehmend strengeren Hygienevor-
schriften. Mit dem Ziel im Auge, den Energieverbrauch
moglichst tief zu halten, wurde die Hille des neuen
Gebdudes nach Minergie-Standard gebaut. Dank der
hohen Gebdudequalitat erwartet COLTENE eine ver-
besserte Werterhaltung und deutlich tiefere Energie-
kostenim Neubau am Hauptsitz in Altstédtten. Die
Produktion konnte in den neuen Raumlichkeiten im
Frihjahr 2019 schon teilweise aufgenommen werden.
Parallel zur Fertigstellung des Neubaus trieb COLTENE
2018 die Planung einer Photovoltaikanlage zur Nut-
zung von Sonnenenergie weiter voran.

- In Deutschland fiihrte der Umbau der Kompressoren
zur Warmeriickgewinnung per Ende 2017 zu einer
jahrlichen Energieeinsparung von rund 60 000 kW/h
(hauptsachlich Gas). Die Kompressorenabwarme
wird in den Warmwasserkreislauf der Gastherme ein-
gespeist und als Prozesswarme fiir die Trocknung
der Zahnwatterollen genutzt.

- In Frankreich tdtigte Micro-Mega grosse Investitionen
in die Automatisierung ihrer Fertigungsablaufe.

Diese konnten dadurch effizienter und gleichzeitig
umweltfreundlicher gestaltet werden.

- In Kanada setzte SciCan verschiedene Projekte und
Massnahmen im Bereich Lean Manufacturing um,
was zu einer Verringerung des Ressourceneinsatzes
und der Betriebskosten fiihrte.

- Die Teams weltweit reduzierten in Eigeninitiative das
Abfallaufkommen und erhohten die Recyclingquote.
Parallel wurden neue Massnahmen zur Reduktion des
Wasserverbrauchs ergriffen.



Das Management der Gruppe ist Uiberzeugt, dass die Wasser wird von vielen Einflissen bestimmt. Nebst der
vielfaltigen Verbesserungen wesentlich zur Nachhaltig- ~ Witterung, den Produktionsvolumen und dem Pro-

keit des Unternehmenserfolgs beitragen. COLTENE duktionsmix hdangt der Energie- und Wasserkonsum
wird sich weiterhin daflr einsetzen, die operativen auch von den stetig steigenden regulatorischen
Prozesse entlang der gesamten Wertschopfungskette  Anspriichen ab. Diese stellen hohere Anforderungen an
der Gruppe moglichst umweltfreundlich zu gestalten. die betriebliche Hygiene, an die Produktionsprozesse,

Verpackungsmaterialien sowie die Qualitatskontrolle
Anmerkung zuden ausgewiesenen Datenreihen der Produkte. Die Einhaltung dieser Normen, die primar
Das Verhalten von COLTENE ist nicht ausschliesslich auf die Sicherheit der Produkte und Patienten aus-

verantwortlich fir die in diesem Bericht ausgewiesenen  gerichtet ist, kann sich in variierendem Energie- und
umweltrelevanten Daten in den Jahren 2016-2018. Der ~ Wasserverbrauch niederschlagen.
Verbrauch der relevanten Inputfaktoren Ol, Gas und

Energie 2016 2017 2018 Energie - 2016 2017 2018 Total 2017/2018
Strom MWh 980 869 893 cO, t 961 854 872 iff
ol t 0,0 0,0 0,0 > > Recycling t 34,1 45,5 69,3 5127 MWh Strom
Gas m3 18,2 105,7 108,9 Abfall t 10,9 12,0 29,8 7871 MWh Strom
Wasser m3 1629 1280 1337 Abwasser m3 1629 1280 1337
Deutschland
44,58t 0l
ﬁtrom MWh 988 947 1127 CO, t 330 335 346 53, 74tO|
ol t 42,2 44,6 44,7 Recycling t 49,4 43,9 75,2
Gas m3 0,0 0,0 4,5 > 1 > Abfall t 63,8 67,4 90,1 A
Wasser m3 15228 10103 9248 Abwasser m3 15228 10103 9248
CHundFL T 215 m3 Gas
380 m:3Gas
Strom MWh 2767 2682 2702 Co; t 2017 2048 2103
ol t 0,0 0,0 0,0 Recycling t 57,5 55,2 51,2 6
Gas m3 75,6 106,6 121,1 Abfall t 7,3 28,9 17,0 16498 m3 Wasser
Wasser m3 4054 3086 4656 Abwasser m3 4054 3086 4656 27519 m3 Wasser
USA
itrom MWh 440 629 520 > 1 > co, t 134 189 158 ﬁGtCOZ
ol t 0,0 0,0 0,0 Recycling t 1,4 0,0 0,0 4410t CO,
Gas m3 2,1 2,4 2,6 Abfall t 18,8 20,7 24,5
Wasser m3 1826 2029 2034 Abwasser m3 1826 2029 2034 o
Brasilien L
144,6 t Recycling
Strom MWh n/a n/a 1521 Cco, t n/a n/a 378 226,5tRecycling
ol t n/a n/a 9,0 1 Recycling  t n/a n/a 8,0 -
Gas m3 n/a n/a 56,9 Abfall o n/a n/a 27,0 [ ]
Wasser m3 n/a n/a 1829 Abwasser  m3 n/a n/a 1829 129,0 t Abfall
Frankreich 429,2 t Abfall
Strom MWh n/a n/a 1109 Cco, o n/a n/a 552 %
ol t n/a n/a 0,0 > 1 > Recycling  t n/a n/a 22,8 16 498 m?* Abwasser
Gas m3 n/a n/a 86,2 Abfall o n/a n/a _ 240,8 27519 m? Abwasser
Wasser m3 n/a n/a 8 415 Abwasser  m3 n/a n/a 8415 |
Kanada
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Micro-Mega SA Seit iiber einem Jahrhundert entwickelt und produziert Micro-Mega
chirurgische Instrumente fiir Zahnarztinnen und Zahnarzte im Herzen von Besangon
der franzdsischen Hauptstadt der Uhrenindustrie und Mikrotechnik. Die erfahrenen
Spezialisten fertigen qualitativ hochwertige Feilen fiir Wurzelkanalbehandlungen.
Micro-Mega SA vertreibt seine Produkte hauptsachlichin Europaund Nordamerika.
Das Unternehmen beschaftigtin Besanconrund 180 Mitarbeitende.

«Technisches Know-how,
Innovationsfahigkeit unc
unser Qualitatsversprechen
zeichnen den Herstellungs-
prozess von Micro-Mega aus -
sie erlauben esuns,immer
einfachere, sicherere,schnellere
und wirksamere Wurzelkanal-
aufbereitungsmethoden

mit NiTi-Instrumenten zu
entwickeln.»

Gaelle Batista / Technical Support Logistics / Besancon, Frankreich



Corporate Governance
COLTENE Holding AG

The following chapter describes the principles of
corporate governance applied at Group and senior
managementlevel within the COLTENE Group. The
main elements are containedin the Articles of Incor-
poration and organizational regulations,and are
based on the “Guidelines concerning information on
corporate governance” published by SIX Swiss
Exchange as well as on the guidelines and recommen-
dations set out in the “Swiss Code of Best Practice
for Corporate Governance” published by economie-
suisse. The compensationreport is published sepa-
rately in this Annual Report on page 54 to page 61. All
informationis valid as at December 31,2018, unless
otherwise stated. Significant changes that have
occurred between that date and the publication date

of thisreport have also beenindicated as appropriate.

Whenever a reference is made in this Corporate
Governance report to the Articles of Incorporation,
they are available in German as well asinan
unofficial translation in English on the website at:
https://www.coltene.com/de/investoren-medien/
corporate-governance/ (German version) and
https://www.coltene.com/investor-relations/
corporate-governance/ (English version).

Group Structure and Shareholders

Group Structure

Operative Group Structure

COLTENE Group is targeting the markets for dental
consumables and small equipment for dental practices.
The Company evolved from the Health Care Division
of the former Gurit-Heberlein AG and was incorporat-
ed as per December 15,2005, under the formerly
name Medisize Holding AG and listed as an independ-
ent company on June 23,2006, on SIX Swiss Exchange.
Medisize was operating with two segments in the
dental and medical consumables markets. Effective as
at April 30,2008, the medical segment was sold to

the Finnish Medifiq Group and the Company name
was changed to COLTENE Holding AG. Since then,
COLTENE Group is active in the dental market only and
operates one segment in line with its management
structure, the organizational setup, the reporting and
the allocation of resources.
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Legal Structure of Subsidiaries

Of allthe companies consolidated, COLTENE Holding
AG (the COLTENE Group’s holding company) is the
only one listed. Itis headquartered in Altstaetten/SG,
Switzerland. COLTENE Holding AG’s registered shares
(security no. 2.534.325, ISIN CH0025343259, symbol
CLTN) are quoted on SIX Swiss Exchange. On Decem-
ber 31,2018, the market capitalization amounted to
CHF 503.7 million (prior year CHF 400.4 million). All
Group companies are ultimately owned at 100 % by the
Group’s holding company.

At the beginning of January 2018, COLTENE bought
and consolidated Kenda AG, Vaduz, Liechtenstein.
Kenda was established in1977 and is a specialized,
international manufacturer of diamond and silicone
polishing instruments for dentistry applications.

The additional annual turnover of Kenda is approx.
CHF 4 million.

October 9,2018,the COLTENE Group acquired SciCan
Ltd., headquartered in Toronto, Canada, and Dental-
Drives GmbH, domiciled in Leutkirch, Germany, with all
their respective subsidiaries. The SciCan Group with its
main subsidiaries in the USA and Germany offers infec-
tion control equipment and hygiene products. SciCan
has about 230 employees, is active worldwide and
claims a market-leader position in his domain in North
America. DentalDrives’ main subsidiary Micro-Mega SA,
located in Besancon, France, is focused primarily

on endodontic instruments and employs approx.

180 people. Most of its sales are generated in Europe
and North America. COLTENE intends to retain all man-
ufacturing and product expertise of SciCan and Micro-
Mega at the current sites of operation. Likewise, SciCan’s
and Micro-Mega’s products and brands with their
excellent market reputation will be retained under the
overarching COLTENE brand. The newly acquired com-
panies willincrease annual consolidated sales of the
COLTENE Group by approximately CHF 100.0 million.

In September 2018, Dentronix Inc., located in Cuyahoga
Falls, Ohio, USA, a small distributor for orthodontic
products, was merged with Colténe/Whaledent Inc,,
also located in Cuyahoga Falls.
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On April1, 2017, the Group acquired the business and
the assets of Diatech LLC, domiciled in Mount Pleasant,
South Carolina, USA. COLTENE integrated the business
into the newly established Diatech Inc., a subsidiary of
Colténe/Whaledent Inc., Cuyahoga Falls, Ohio, USA.
Diatech Inc.is a tele sales and online vendor, specializing
in diamond and carbide burs as well as orthodontic
products.

Information on the companies belonging to the
COLTENE Group, which are not listed, is shown on
page 95 of the Financial Report.

Major Shareholders

On December 31,2018, there were 2011 shareholders
(previous year 1743) entered in the share register

and the following shareholders held stakes equaling or
exceeding the legal disclosure threshold of 3% of the
voting stock of COLTENE Holding AG:

Huwa Finanz- und Beteiligungs AG, Heerbrugg, Switzerland,
held 1313176 registered shares. This equals voting
rights of 21.98 %. Huwa Finanz- und Beteiligungs AG is
representing the families of Ruedi Huber, Balgach,
Switzerland, Helene Huber, Heerbrugg, Switzerland, and
Nick Huber, Balgach, Switzerland. Further details are
available on the disclosure of shareholdings website of
SIX Swiss Exchange.

Arno Holding S.a.r.l., Luxemburg, Luxemburg, held
1027501 registered shares. This equals voting rights of
17.2%. Arno Holding S.a.r.l.is under 100 % control of
Arthur Zwingenberger, Lucerne, Switzerland, and for-
mer major shareholder of SciCan Ltd. and DentalDrives
GmbH that was sold to the COLTENE Group on Octo-
berg,2018.

Rdtikon Privatstiftung, Bludenz, Austria, held 598 493
registered shares. This equals voting rights of 10.02 %.
Ratikon Privatstiftung is under control of the family
of Franz Rauch, Laterns, Austria. Direct shareholder is
ESOLA Beteiligungsverwaltungs GmbH, Rankweil,
Austria.

Tweedy, Browne Company LLC, New York, USA, held
286 847 registered shares representing 4.80 % of the
voting rights.

Credit Suisse Funds AG, Zurich, Switzerland, held 223946
registered shares or 3.75 % of the voting rights.

UBS Fund Management (Switzerland) AG, Zurich, Switzer-
land, held 208 252 registered shares or 3.49 % of the
voting rights.

Robert Heberlein, Zumikon, Switzerland, held directly and
indirectly through Burix Holding AG, Zurich, which he
controls, 203 207 registered shares, representing 3.40 %
of the voting rights.

All other shareholders held a stake of 35.38 % of the
voting rights of COLTENE Holding AG.

The Company held treasury shares amounting to 0.05%
(0.00%) at the balance sheet date. Shares pending
registration of transfer amounted t0 29.20% (14.00%)
of the total as at December 31,2018.

Disclosure notifications pertaining to shareholdings
are published on the electronic publication platform of
SIX Swiss Exchange AG. The notifications can be
accessed via the following link to the database of the
disclosure office of SIX Swiss Exchange:
https://www.six-exchange-regulation.com/de/home/
publications/significant-shareholders.htm!

Lock-up Agreements

At the closing of this annual report the following lock-
up agreements were in place and running. By April 4,
2019, the date of publication of this annual report, all
lock-up agreements mentioned below with a period of
six months have expired.

The lock-up agreements relate to the acquisition of
the SciCan Group and the DentalDrives Group by the
COLTENE Group from Arno Holding S.a.r.l. and

Stefan Helsing (as the Sellers), which closed on Octo-
ber 9,2018 (the Acquisition). In the context of the
Acquisition, COLTENE Holding AG issued on Septem-
ber 14,2018, a Prospectus relating to (i) the offering of
up to 703167 registered shares with a nominal value of
CHF 0.10in COLTENE Holding AG (the Offer Shares)
(the Offering) and (ii) the listing of up to 1150 000 reg-
istered sharesin COLTENE Holding AG to be issued

to the Sellers as part of the consideration (the Consid-
eration Shares) in connection with the Acquisition.
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COLTENE Holding AG, the members of the Board of
Directors, and the members of the Group Management
entered into a lock-up undertaking ending six months
after September 28,2018 (the first day of trading of the
Offer Shares), subject to customary exceptions.

In connection with the Offering, Esola Beteiligungsver-
waltungs GmbH and Huwa Finanz- und Beteiligungs AG
eachindividually entered into a Shareholder Commit-
ment, which provides for,among other things, a lock-up
undertaking ending six months after September 28,
2018 (the first day of trading of the Offer Shares), sub-
jectto customary exceptions. For purposes of disclo-
sure of significant shareholders, Esola Beteiligungsver-
waltungs GmbH and Huwa Finanz- und Beteiligungs AG
formed a group due to their lock-up and other under-
takings under the Shareholder Commitments.

Under the terms of the transaction agreement regard-
ing the Acquisition, the Sellers and Arthur Zwingen-
berger have agreed to (i) a lock-up undertaking, begin-
ning on October 9,2018, the date of the completion of
the Acquisition and ending, subject to certain circum-
stances resulting in an earlier termination, twelve months
after the completion of the Acquisition, subject to
customary exceptions, and (ii) a standstill undertaking
according to which they will not, for a period of twelve
months following the completion of the Acquisition,
jointly or individually, directly or indirectly, cause,
arrange for or launch a public tender offer or any other
offer for shares in COLTENE Holding AG or share
options aiming at taking direct or indirect control over
COLTENE Holding AG.

For a detailed description of the above mentioned
lock-up agreements please see chapter “Offering and
Sale - Lock-up Agreements” on page 84 et seq. of the
Prospectus, available in English at Ziircher Kantonal-
bank, IHKT, P.O. Box, 8010 Zurich, Switzerland (e-mail:

prospectus@zkb.ch, phone: +4144 293 67 35).
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Cross-Shareholding
COLTENE Holding AG has no cross-shareholding
arrangements with other companies.

Structure of Group Operations

The COLTENE Group is operationally headed by the
Group Management. The COLTENE Group Manage-
ment, chaired by Martin Schaufelberger as CEO,
consists of Gerhard Mahrle, CFO, who acts also as
deputy CEO, Werner Mannschedel, Vice President
Quality Management and Regulatory Affairs, Werner
Barth, Vice President Marketing, and Christophe
Loretan, Vice President Sales. On November1,2018,
Stefan Helsing joined the Group Management as

COO (Chief Operating Officer) to lead the integration
of the new locations and product groups of SciCan
and Micro-Mega that were acquired by COLTENE on
October 9,2018, and to manage the overall opera-
tions of the COLTENE Group. Stefan Helsing was previ-
ously CEO of the Sanavis Group to which SciCan

and Micro-Mega belonged. The Group Management
isresponsible for the operational management of the
holding company and the COLTENE Group. The Group
is managed by the Board of Directors through the
Group Management. The Board of Directors and the
Group Management are assisted in their work by
central Group functions. The separation of responsibili-
ties between the Board of Directors and the Group
Management is explained on page 37.



Group structure and management organization of the COLTENE Group as per January1,2019:

Board of Directors
COLTENE Holding AG

Group Management

Martin Schaufelberger CEO

l

[ {

Operations Quality Mgt/RA'
Stefan Werner
—  SciCanLtd. Helsing Mannschedel

— Colténe/Whaledent Inc.

— Colténe/Whaledent AG

__ Colténe/Whaledent

GmbH + Co.KG

~— Micro-Mega SA
— Vigodent SA

—— KendaAG

Principal Participations

! Quality Management/Regulatory Affairs

Capital Structure

Information about the capital structure can be found
in COLTENE Holding AG’s Articles of Incorporation,

in the Financial Statements of COLTENE Holding AG as
well as in the Investor Relations section on page 2 of
this report.

Capital

Details on the capital are included in the COLTENE
Holding AG’s financial statements on pages 100 and
101.

{ { \

Marketing Sales CFO
Werner Christophe Gerhard
Barth Loretan Mabhrle

Group Functions

Authorized or Contingent Capital in Particular
According to §3 para. 9 of the Articles of Incorporation,
the Board of Directors shall be authorized to increase
the share capital of COLTENE Holding AG in an amount
not exceeding CHF 6842 (which corresponds to
approximately 114 % of the current share capital) at any
time until September 13,2020, by way of issuance of

up to 68 420 registered shares with a nominal value of
CHF 0.10 each to be fully paid in. Increases in partial
amounts shall be permitted. The registered shares to be
newly issued are subject to the registration restrictions
set forth in §4 of the Articles of Incorporation. The time
of issuance of the new shares, the issue price and sub-
scription price, the nature of contributions and the start-
ing date of dividend entitlement will be determined

by the Board of Directors. The authorized share capital
must be used exclusively for the acquisition of the
SciCan group of companies based in Toronto/Canada.
In doing so, the Board of Directors shall be authorized
to exclude the shareholders’ subscription rights and to
allocate these to the sellers of the SciCan group of
companies based in Toronto/Canada.

COLTENE Holding AG has no conditional capital.

Corporate Governance 33



Changesin Capital

The changesin equity of COLTENE Holding AG that
occurredduringthe lastthreefinancial years are shown
inthetable below. Treasury shares arerecognizedat
weightedaverage costand deductedfromshareholders’
equity atthetime of acquisition.

Changes in equity

InCHF 1000 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
Share capital 598 422 422
Statutory reserves 84 84 84
Capital contribution reserve 169784 ) 0
Reserves for treasury shares -303 ) _259
Netincome brought forward 30036 33785 38037
Total 200199 34291 38284

On September 27,2018, COLTENE Holding AG complet-
ed an ordinary capital increase as the first of two capital
increases to partially finance the acquisition of SciCan
Ltd. and DentalDrives GmbH. The Company issued
675000 shares with a par value of CHF 0.10 each as
part of arights offering “at market” to existing and new
shareholders at an offer price of CHF 104. COLTENE
Holding AG generatedgrossproceeds of CHF 70200 000.
This corresponds to net proceeds of CHF 69546 000.
The listing and first day of trading of the offer shares
were set to September 28,2018. The payment of the offer
price against delivery of offer shares was made on
October 2,2018. On the closing date of the transaction
on October 9, 2018, to further finance the transaction,
the Company issued 1081580 consideration shares
with a par value of CHF 0.10 each at anissue price of
CHF 94.29 to the sellers of SciCan Ltd. and Dental-
Drives GmbH against contribution in kind of all shares
in SciCan Ltd. in the course of a capital increase out

of authorized share capital. The transaction cost for this
second capital increase amounted to TCHF 1571. The
sellers (Arthur Zwingenberger’s Arno Holding S.a.r.l.
and Stefan Helsing) hold 18.1% of the total capital and
voting rights of COLTENE Holding AG after completion
of the transaction. These consideration shares are
locked-up for a period of twelve months, which started
on October g,2018. After the completion of both capi-
talincreases, the share capital of COLTENE Holding AG
amounts to CHF 597 558, divided into 5975 580
registered shares with a par value of CHF 0.10 each.
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Basedonthe Annual General Meeting’s decision on
March 28,2018,the Company distributed adividend of
CHF 3.00 (previous year CHF 2.70) per share toits
shareholders on April 6,2018. The totalamount paid was
TCHF12654 (previousyear TCHF11381).

Shares and Participation Certificates

The Company’s share capital consists of 5975580
(previous year 4219 000) registered shares with a par
value of CHF 0.10 each (previous year CHF 0.10). Al
shares are fully paid up and entitled to dividends. They
entitle the holder to one vote at the General Meeting.
The right to apply the special rules concerning treasury
shares held by the Company is reserved, particularly in
relation to the exemption from the entitlement to divi-
dends. Other than set out above, there is no additional
conditional or authorized capital.

The shares are traded in the International Reporting
Standard of SIX Swiss Exchange (security no. 2.534.325,
ISIN CH0025343259, symbol CLTN). COLTENE
Holding AG has not issued any participation certificates.

Profit-Sharing Certificates
COLTENE Holding AG has notissued any profit-sharing
certificates.

Restrictions on Transferability of Shares and
Nominee Registrations

Accordingto §4 of the Articles of Incorporation, only
individuals whoareregisteredinthe shareregister may
berecognizedasthe owners orbeneficiaries of traded
shares. Registration of ownership may be refused
onlyincaseswherethe purchaser does notexpressly
declarethathe hasacquiredthe shares for his orherown
account. The Board of Directors may cancelaregistra-
tionofashareholder ornomineeinthe shareregister,
afterhearingtherespective parties,ifthe entry was
made based onfalse declarations. Therelevant partyis
tobeimmediately informed of this cancellation. The
Board of Directors may define principles for the registra-
tion of fiduciaries ornominees andstipulate the neces-
saryrulestoguarantee compliance withthe aforemen-
tioned principles.



Convertible Bonds and Warrants/Options
COLTENE Holding AG has no outstanding convertible
bonds or options.

Board of Directors

Members of the Board of Directors

On December 31,2018, the Board of Directors of
COLTENE Holding AG consisted of seven members.
The Articles of Incorporation stipulate a minimum
of three.

The Extraordinary General Meeting of shareholders on
September 14,2018, expanded the Board’s know-how
by electing Allison Zwingenberger, a former board
member of SciCan Ltd., Toronto, Canada, specializingin
infection control in the dental industry with additional
experience in information technology and technology
in general. Allison Zwingenberger is Associate Professor
atthe Department of Veterinary Radiology at the Uni-
versity of California, Davis, USA, and the daughter of
Arthur Zwingenberger, the founder and former principal
owner of SciCan and Micro-Mega via Arno Holding
S.arl, Luxemburg.

The General Meeting of Shareholders elected at the
meeting of March 29, 2017, Astrid Waser as an addition-
al member of the Board for the first time. As of the 2017
General Meeting, Robert Heberlein stepped down as
member of the Board and Vice Chairman of the Board
of Directors of COLTENE Holding AG for reasons of
age.

All Board members are non-executive and have no
material business interest with the COLTENE Group.
They are independent in the sense of the Swiss Code of
Best Practice for Corporate Governance, and have not
served on either the management of COLTENE Holding
AG (holding company) or the management board of
any subsidiary during the past three years. In the year
under review, the law firm Lenz & Staehelin, Zurich,
where Robert Heberlein serves as a Counsel and Astrid
Waser is partner, received CHF 790 000 (previous year
CHF 66 000) for legal advice. Lenz & Staehelin acted

as an advisor to the Board of Directors and the Group
Management during the transaction (due diligence,
transaction agreement, capital increases, bank financing,
etc.) in regard of the acquisitions of Kenda, SciCan Ltd.
and DentalDrives GmbH.

The personal details together with the other activities
and vested interests of individual members of the actu-
al Board of Directors are listed on pages 39 to 43.

Election and Term of Office

The members of the Board of Directors are elected

by the shareholders for a period of one year. At the end
of their term of office, members may be re-elected.
There is no limit to the period of office or age of mem-
bers of the Board of Directors. The members of the
Board of Directors are elected person by person. The
Chairman of the Board of Directors is elected by the
shareholders for a period of one year. In the event of
incapacity of the Chairman, the Chairman of the Audit
and Corporate Governance Committee will tempo-
rarily assume the role of the Vice Chairman of the
Board of Directors.

Restrictions on Activities outside of COLTENE Group
Restrictions on activities outside of the COLTENE
Group of the members of the Board of Directors are
governed in §18 of the Articles of Incorporation.

Internal Organization

Allocation of Tasks within the Board of Directors

The Board of Directorsis ultimately responsible for the
management of the Company andthe supervision of
the personsin charge of the management. The Board of
Directors represents the Company andtakes care of
allmattersthatare not delegated by law, the Articles of
Incorporation, or the organizationalregulations to
anotherbody.

The Board of Directors’ main duties can be summarized

asfollows:

- determinationandformulation of the business
strategy

- purchase andsale of participations or establishment
and liquidation of Group companies

- approval ofinvestmentsin and divestments of fixed
assets exceeding CHF 200000 invalue

- approval ofintercompanyloansinexcess of CHF
400000 perfiscalyear per Group company

- definition of COLTENE Group’s finance strategy

- determination of financial accountingand reporting,
financial control,andfinancial planning

- definition of COLTENE Group’s organizational
structure
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- appointmentofthe personsin charge of the manage-
mentandtheir supervision

- approval of the Auditor’sreportand Annual Reportas
wellas preparation of the General Meeting of Share-
holders and the execution of its resolutions

Membership of the Committees of the Board of Directors,
their Duties and Responsibilities

The Board of Directors has delegated the operational
management to the Group Management headed by
the Chief Executive Officer (CEO). The Chairman of
the Board of Directors organizes and manages the
work of the Board of Directors.

The permanent committees of the Board of Directors
are composed as follows:

Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

Until the Annual General Meeting 2016, the Audit and
Corporate Governance Committee was headed

by the former Board member Robert Heberlein and all
other Board members were members of the Audit and
Corporate Governance Committee. Since then, the
Audit and Corporate Governance Committee has been
set up by the Board as follows:

Chairman: Erwin Locher

Members: Jirgen Rauch, Astrid Waser

All members of the Board of Directors normally attend
the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee
Meetings. The Board Members that are not members
of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee
attend the meetings as guests with no voting rights.

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

assists the Board of Directors in its supervisory duties

and has to perform the following main tasks and duties:

- approval of the auditing program and audit fees and
form a judgment of the effectiveness of the external
audits

- review,amendment and approval of the risk manage-
ment assessment and system as well as control of the
fulfillment of defined measures

- review and assessment of the functioning of the
internal control system and control of the fulfillment
of corrective actions
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- review of the consolidated financial statements as
well as interim statements intended for publication

- regular review of the principles concerning Corpo-
rate Governance

- proposals to the Board of Directors of amendments
to the Articles of Incorporation or internal regulations
if necessary

Nomination and Compensation Committee

The Nomination and Compensation Committee is
elected every year by the Annual General Meeting. Until
the Annual General Meeting 2016, the Nomination and
Compensation Committee was headed by Matthew
Robin and all other Board members were members of
the Nomination and Compensation Committee. Since
then, the Nomination and Compensation Committee
has been composed as follows:

Chairman: Matthew Robin

Members: Nick Huber, Roland Weiger

Allmembers of the Board of Directors normally attend
the Nomination and Compensation Committee
Meetings. The Board Members that are not members
of the Nomination and Compensation Committee
attend the meetings as guests with no voting rights.

The Nomination and Compensation Committee carries

out the following duties:

- recommendation of the remuneration of the mem-
bers of the Board of Directors

- definition of the principles for the remuneration of the
members of the Group Management and submission
of these to the Board of Directors for approval

- definition of principles for the selection of candidates
for election or re-election to the Board of Directors

- preparation of the selection and assessment of the
candidates for the position of the CEO

- approval of appointments of members of the senior
management

- approval of the remuneration to be paid to the senior
management

- approval of the general guidelines for the Human
Resources management of the Group

- yearly elaboration of the compensation report to be
presented tothe AGM



Working Methods of the Board of Directors

and its Committees

The Board of Directors meets annually for at least four
ordinary, mainly one-day meetings. Extraordinary meet-
ings may be held as necessary. Every member of the
Board of Directors is entitled to request an immediate
meeting, if he/she names its purpose. In 2018, the Board
of Directors met ten times (previous year eight times).
These meetings lasted in average four to eight hours. In
one meeting, the Board of Directors discussed the
Group Strategy together with the enlarged Group man-
agement during a two-day workshop. The Audit and
Corporate Governance Committee met twice (previ-
ous year three times) for atwo hours’ meeting. The
Nomination and Compensation Committee met also
twice (previous year three times) for a two hours’
meeting.

Meetings are summoned in writing by the Chairman.
Aninvitation together with a detailed agenda and
documentation is sent to all participants normally seven
daysin advance of the date set for the meeting.

As arule, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer attend meetings of the Board of Direc-
tors as well as meetings of the committees. In order to
ensure that the Board of Directors has sufficient infor-
mation to make decisions, other members of the Group
Management team or other members of staff or third
parties may also be invited to attend.

The Board of Directors is quorate if all members have
been duly invited and the majority of its members

take partin the decision-making process. Members
may participate in deliberations and the passing of
resolutions by telephone, by video conference, or other
suitable electronic media if all participants are in agree-
ment. The decisions of the Board of Directors are taken
on the basis of the votes submitted. In the event of
atie, the Chairman has the casting vote. Decisions may
also be made in writing.

Proposals may also be sent to all members and they are
regarded as passed if the majority of members agree
unconditionally and no member insists on discussion of
the issues in question in a formal meeting. Members

of the Board of Directors are obliged to leave meetings
whenissues are discussed that affect their own inter-
ests or the interests of persons close to them.

All proposals and decisions are entered in the minutes
to the meeting of the Board of Directors and its com-
mittees. The minutes also contain a summary of impor-
tant requests to speak and any deliberations.

Definition of Areas of Responsibility

The areas of responsibility between the Board of
Directors and the Group Management are defined in
COLTENE Holding AG’s organizational regulations

and can be summarized as follows: with the exception
of decisions which according to article 716a of the
Swiss Code of Obligations are part of its inalienable and
non-transferable duties, and those additional duties
listed on pages 34 to 37,the Board of Directors has del-
egated the executive control of COLTENE Group and,
with it, operational management of the entire COLTENE
Group, to the Group Management.

Information and Control Instruments vis-a-vis

the Group Management

As arule, the Group Management updates the Board of
Directors on operations and COLTENE Group’s finan-
cial position every month. In addition, the CEO and
CFO report on business and all matters of relevance to
the Board of Directors at each meeting of the Board of
Directors. Every member of the Board of Directors has
the right to ask any member of the Group Management
forinformation about matters within his remit, even
outside meetings. The Chairman of the Board of Direc-
torsis also informed by the CEO about all businesses
and issues of a fundamental nature or of special impor-
tance.
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Based on an approved Risk Management policy by the
Board of Directors, an extensive system for monitoring
and controlling the risks linked to the business activities
isin place. The Group Management is responsible for
the risk identification, analysis, controlling, reporting and
monitoring the implementation. The Board of Directors
reviews once a year the risk management and the results
of implemented corrective actions.

Based onan approved Internal Control System policy
by the Board of Directors, the internal control mecha-
nisms are reviewed and documented based on defined
requirements. At least once a year a member of the
audit committee reviews in detail the assessments
made and corrective actions implemented. These find-
ings are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors.

Regarding the management of financial risks, see the
notes to Group Financial Statements on pages 76 and
77

Set out below are the names, position, age, year of

first election and committee memberships of the Board
of Directors:

Membership of the Board of Directors

2018

Year of Audit and Nomination and
Members Function Bornin first election Compliance Committee Compensation Committee
Nick Huber Chairman 1964 2005 Member
Erwin Locher Member 1953 2009 Chairman
Jirgen Rauch Member 1967 2016 Member
Matthew Robin Member 1965 2006 Chairman
Astrid Waser Member 1971 2017 Member
Roland Weiger Member 1961 2013 Member
Allison Zwingenberger Member 1970 2018
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of COLTENE has committed itself to maintaining the highest standards
of integrity and transparency inits governance of the Company.

Matthew Allison Jurgen Nick Astrid Roland Erwin
Robin Zwingenberger Rauch Huber Waser Weiger Locher
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Nick Huber
- Chairman of the Board of Directors
(year of first election: 2005)
- Non-executive member
- Completion of the Stanford Executive Program
- Swiss citizen,bornin 1964

Professional background (main stages)

1990-1995 IBM (Switzerland) AG, Zurich, Account
Manager

1995-2005 SFS Unimarket AG, Heerbrugg, Divisional
Head

2005-2016 SFS Services AG, Heerbrugg, member of
the Executive Management

Other important activities and vested interests

- Member of the Board of Directors of SFS Group AG,
Heerbrugg

- Member of the Board of Directors of Gurit Holding
AG, Wattwil

- Member of the Board of Directors of Huwa Finanz-
und Beteiligungs AG, Heerbrugg

Key knowledge and experience

- International and strategic management - many
years of operational leadership experience in man-
agement positions in the SFS Group and longtime
experience as member of the board of international
companies

- Human resources - longtime operational respon-
sibility of the human resources department of the
SFS Group

- Marketing and sales - operational management
experience as divisional head of direct and indirect
consumables business
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Matthew Robin

- Member of the Board of Directors
(year of first election: 2006)

- Non-executive member

- M. Eng.in Chemical Engineering, Imperial College,
University of London

- British and Swiss citizen, bornin 1965

Professional background (main stages)

1987-1998 Lonza Fine Chemicals, Basle, various
functions in the USA and in Switzerland
(last function: Business Director US
Custom Manufacturing)

1998-2003 Disetronic, Burgdorf, various senior
management functions (last function:
Head Disetronic Injection Systems)

2003-2006 Ypsomed Holding AG, Burgdorf, CEO

2007-2011 Tecan Holding AG, Mannedorf, Divisional
Head Liquid Handling & Robotics
Since 2011 ELSA/Mifroma, Estavayer-le-Lac, CEO

Other important activities and vested interests
- President of the Qids Future Foundation

Key knowledge and experience

- International and strategic management - longtime
operational and strategic leadership and experience in
the medical device and other regulated international
businesses

- Manufacturing, innovation and human resources -
many years of experience as business director and
CEO of large producing companies



Erwin Locher

- Member of the Board of Directors
(year of first election: 2009)

- Non-executive member

- Economist, University of Basel, MBA, University
of Toronto (Rotman)/University of St. Gallen

- Swiss citizen, bornin1953

Professional background (main stages)

1979-1982 Sandoz AG, Basel, Internal Auditor

1982-1986 Mibelle AG, Buchs (subsidiary of Migros),
Head Logistics

1986-1987 Zellweger AG, Uster, Treasurer

1987-1991  Mibelle AG, Buchs (subsidiary of Migros),
Vice President Finance

1991-1996  Allo Pro AG, Baar (subsidiary of Sulzer
Medica), Vice President Finance, and then
President

1996-2004 Mathys Medical AG, Bettlach, CEO and
President Synthes Division

Other important activities and vested interests

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of
Thommen Medical AG, Grenchen

- Member of the Board of Directors of Mathys AG,
Bettlach

Key knowledge and experience

- International and strategic management, marketing
and sales - experience as former CEO of a global
medical device company

- Financial management, audit and compliance - many
years of experience as Vice President of finance in
anational and international company

- Dental industry - operational responsibility for the
COLTENE Group as CEO ad interim in 2011/2012

Roland Weiger
- Member of the Board of Directors
(year of first election: 2013)
- Non-executive member
- Prof. Dr. med. dent., University of Tiibingen, Germany
- German citizen,bornin 1961

Professional background (main stages)

2000-2002 University of Tiibingen, Professor of Endo-
dontology

Chairman of the Research Committee,
European Society of Endodontology (ESE)
University of Basel, Professor and Director,
Clinic of Periodontology, Endodontology
and Cariology

University of Basel, Director of the
Department of Dental Medicine
University Center of Dentistry (UZB),
Basel, Director of the University Dental
Clinics and member of the Executive
Board

2002-20TM

Since 2002

2012-2015

Since 2016

Other important activities and vested interests

- Member of the Expert Commission of the Swiss
Society for Preventative, Restorative and Esthetic
Dentistry (SSPRE)

- Member of the Board of the Swiss Society of
Periodontology (SSP)

- Appointed expert for the Swiss federal examinations
in dentistry

Key knowledge and experience

- Expertise in general dentistry and specialized conserv-
ative dentistry - longtime leadership experience
as chairman of a dental department and higher-level
clinical university institution

- Experience in dental technology and dental market -
profound expertise in research, teaching and clinical
procedures as professor in conservative dentistry and
professional competence as practicing dentist spe-
cialized in endodontology and restorative dentistry
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Jirgen Rauch
- Member of the Board of Directors
(year of first election: 2016)
- Non-executive member
- Business economist, University of Innsbruck
- Austrian citizen, bornin1967

Professional background (main stages)

1993-1994 Pittra Inc, New York, various management
functions

1994-2004 Rauch Hungaria Kft, Budapest, General
Manager

Since 2004 Rauch Fruchtsafte GmbH & Co OG,
Rankweil, CEO

Other important activities and vested interests
Jirgen Rauch has no other important activities and
vested interests.

Key knowledge and experience

- Production and distribution - long lasting experience
in building up and in general management of an inter-
national bottling company for liquid consumables

- Marketing and branding - many years of experience
in the positioning and marketing of an international
renowned brand in the consumables industry
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Astrid Waser
- Member of the Board of Directors
(year of first election: 2017)
- Non-executive member
- Dr.iur, attorney-at-law, LL.M., University of Lausanne
- Swiss citizen, bornin 1971

Professional background (main stages)

2002-2011 Lenz & Staehelin, Zurich, Associate
2004 Foreign Associate, Brussels
since 2012 Lenz & Staehelin, Zurich, Partner

Other important activities and vested interests
Astrid Waser has no other important activities and
vested interests.

Key knowledge and experience

- Legal affairs - proven expert in competition and
procurement law and long-standing experience in
counselling firms in the field of business law

- Compliance - proven expert particularly regarding
internal and regulatory investigations and compliance
matters



Allison Zwingenberger
- Member of the Board of Directors
(year of first election: 2018)
- Non-executive member
- DVM, University of Guelph
- Canadian and German citizen, bornin1970

Professional background (main stages)

Since 2005 University of California, Davis, Associate
Professor of Veterinary Radiology

2006-2018 SciCan Ltd., Toronto, Member of the Board
of Directors

2015-2017 American College of Veterinary Radiology
(ACVR), President CT/MRI Society

2016-2018 President, European College of Veterinary
Diagnostic Imaging (ECVDI)

Since 2018 University of California, Davis, Cancer
Center, Co-Director In Vivo Translational
Imaging Shared Resource

Other important activities and vested interests
Allison Zwingenberger has no other important activities
and vested interests.

Key knowledge and experience

- Experience as a Board member of SciCan Ltd,,
specializing in infection control in the dental industry,
experience in information technology and technology
ingeneral

- Associate Professor at a leading School of Veterinary
Medicine with experience in leadership, healthcare,
and education

- Experience in biomedical and clinical science as
aresearcherin translational imaging
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Group Management

The Group Management of COLTENE has committed itself to the highest principles of sustainability,
integrity and responsibility that build the foundation of COLTENE’s corporate culture.

T “"‘Q_‘M

Werner Werner Martin Gerhard Christophe Stefan
Barth Mannschedel Schaufelberger Mahrle Loretan Helsing
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Martin Schaufelberger

- Chief Executive Officer COLTENE Group
(since 2012)

- Electrical Engineer, Fachhochschule fiir Technik,
Rapperswil

- MBA Marketing, City University of Seattle,
Zurich and Seattle

- Swiss citizen,bornin 1964

Professional background (main stages)

1988-1998 Zellweger Uster AG, Uster, various
functions in Switzerland and Japan (last
function: General Manager Strategic
Marketing)

1998-2001 Kunststoff Schwanden AG, Schwanden,
Head Marketing and Sales

2001-2007 Kunststoff Schwanden AG, Schwanden,
Deputy CEO

2007-2012 Kunststoff Schwanden AG, Schwanden,
CEO

Other important activities and vested interests
- Zind Systemtechnik AG, Altstaetten, Chairman of
the Board of Directors

Gerhard Mahrle

- Chief Financial Officer COLTENE Group (since 2014,)
- lic. oec. HSG, University of St. Gallen

- Swiss citizen, bornin 1957

Professional background (main stages)

1985-1992 Various senior positions in finance at the
Galenica Group and the Hilti Group

1992-1998 Eugster/FrismagGroup, Romanshorn,
CFO

1998-2000 Batigroup Holding AG, Basel, CFO

2000-2009 sia Abrasives Holding AG, Frauenfeld, CFO

2009-2013 Kardex AG, Zurich, CFO

Other important activities and vested interests

Gerhard Mahrle has no other important activities and
vested interests.
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Stefan Helsing

- Chief Operating Officer (COO) of the COLTENE
Group

- Member of the Group Management since 2018

- lic. oec. HSG, University of St. Gallen

- Swiss citizen,bornin1958

Professional background (main stages)
1985-1994 Management Zentrum St. Gallen and
Indevo AB, Management Consultant
1994-2000 Swissair AG, Zurich, Network Manage-
ment and CEO Balair Airline
2000-2005 STA Travel Ltd., Zurich, CEO
2005-2008 Hotelplan Management AG, Glattbrugg,
Production Management
2008-2018 Sanavis Group, various functions
(last function: CEO)

Other important activities and vested interests

Stefan Helsing has no other important activities and
vested interests.
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Werner Mannschedel

- Vice President Quality Management and Regulatory
Affairs COLTENE Group

- Member of the Group Management since 2015

- Pharmacist and Biologist, University of Erlangen

- German citizen,bornin1956

Professional background (main stages)

1988-1992 ROEKO GmbH + Co.KG, Langenau,
Head Quality Control and Analytic

1992-1998 ROEKO GmbH + Co. KG, Langenau,
Head Operations

1998-2002 ROEKO GmbH + Co.KG, Langenau,
General Manager

2002-2007 COLTENE Group, Altstaetten,
Head European Operations (EMEA)

2007-2011 COLTENE Group, Altstaetten, President
European Operations (EMEA)

2011-2012 COLTENE Group, Altstaetten,
Head Global Operations
2012-2015 COLTENE Group, Head Global R&D and

Regulatory Manager and General Manager
Coltene/Whaledent GmbH + Co.KG,
Langenau

Other important activities and vested interests
Werner Mannschedel has no other important activities
and vested interests.



Werner Barth

- Vice President Marketing COLTENE Group

- Member of the Group Management since 2015
- Dr.sc.techn. ETH, Zurich/ZH

- Swiss citizen,bornin 1966

Professional background (main stages)

1999-2001
Medical Products

2001-2004 HMT High Medical Technologies AG,
Lengwil, Product manager and Sales
manager

2005-2006 Ziemer Ophthalmic Systems AG, Port,
Head Marketing & Sales

2006-2013 Ziemer Ophthalmic Systems AG
(Ziemer Group), Port, Vice President
Sales

2013-2015 Colténe/Whaledent AG, Altstaetten,
Global Director Marketing

Other important activities and vested interests
Werner Barth has no other important activities and
vested interests.

VOLPI AG, Schlieren, Head Business Unit

Christophe Loretan

Vice President Sales COLTENE Group
Member of the Group Management since 2015
Dipl. sc.nat. ETH Zurich

MBA University of Rochester, Bern

Swiss citizen, bornin 1970

Professional background (main stages)
1998-2002 Geistlich Pharma AG, Wolhusen, Market-

ing Manager and Area Sales Manager
Division Biomaterials

2002-2003 Tillotts Pharma AG, Ziefen, Business

Development Manager Pharma/
Gastroenterology

2003-2005 Novozymes Switzerland AG, Dittingen,

Global Marketing Manager

2006-2013 Novozymes Switzerland AG, Dittingen,
Customer Solutions Director EMEA
2013-2015 Novozymes Switzerland AG, Dittingen,

Technical Service and Sales Director
EMEA

Other important activities and vested interests
Christophe Loretan has no other important activities
and vested interests.
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Group Management

On December 31,2018, COLTENE Holding AG’s Group
Management consisted of six persons (previous year
five persons): the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Martin
Schaufelberger, the Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
Gerhard Mahrle, who also acts as deputy CEO, Stefan
Helsing, Chief Operating Officer (COO), Werner
Mannschedel, Vice President Quality Management and
Regulatory Affairs, Werner Barth, Vice President Mar-
keting, and Christophe Loretan, Vice President Sales.

Members of the Group Management

The personal details together with other activities and
vested interests of individual members of the actual
Group Management are listed on pages 44 to 47.

Management Contracts

No agreements pertaining to the provision of manage-
rial services exist between COLTENE Holding AG

and other companies or natural persons outside the
COLTENE Group.

Restrictions on Activities outside of COLTENE
Group

Restrictions on activities outside of the COLTENE
Group of the members of the Group Management are
governed in §18 of the Articles of Incorporation.

Principles on Compensation

Principles applicable to performance-related payments
andto the allocation of equity securities, convertible
rights and options, as well as the additional amount for
payments to members of the Group Management
appointed after the vote on the compensation at the
General Meeting of Shareholders are governed in §§22
et seqq. of the Articles of Incorporation.

Loans, credit facilities and post-employment benefits
for members of the Board of Directors and the Group
Management are governed in §28 of the Articles of
Incorporation.

Regulations on the vote of the General Meeting of
Shareholders on the compensation to members

of the Board of Directors and the Group Management
are governed in §§13.3and 21 et seqq. of the Articles
of Incorporation.
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Further information regarding the compensation of
the Board of Directors and the Group Management is
available in the section of the compensation report
on pages 54 to 61 of this Annual Report.

Shareholders’ Participation Rights

Details of shareholders’ participation rights can be
foundin the Articles of Incorporation. They are
available in German as well as in an unofficial transla-
tion in English on the website at:
https://www.coltene.com/de/investoren-medien/
corporate-governance/ (German version) and
https://www.coltene.com/investor-relations/
corporate-governance/ (English version).

Voting Right Restrictions and Representation

The Articles of Incorporation contain no restrictions

on voting rights. Every registered share represented at
the General Meeting is entitled to one vote. A share-
holder may vote his own shares or be represented at the
General Meeting by way of a written proxy. Since the
Annual General Meeting 2015, every shareholder can use
also the online platform of ShareCommService AG
(“Indirect Voting System - IDVS”) in order to grant the
independent proxy a power of attorney and to forward
his instructions to such independent proxy.

Statutory Quorums

Unless otherwise determined by law, a General
Meeting convened in accordance with the Articles of
Incorporation is quorate regardless of the number

of shareholders attending or the number of shares rep-
resented. To be valid and subject to legal or statutory
provisions, resolutions require an absolute majority of
the votes submitted.

Important decisions of the General Meeting as defined
in article 704 §1 of the Swiss Code of Obligations
require at least two thirds of the votes present and the
absolute majority of the par value of shares represented.


https://www.coltene.com/de/investoren-medien/corporate-governance
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https://www.coltene.com/investor-relations/corporate-governance
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Convocation of the General Meeting

of Shareholders

The ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders takes
place annually within six months of the end of the
Company’s financial year. Extraordinary General Meet-
ings can be called by decision of the General Meeting,
the Board of Directors, at the request of the auditors, or
if shareholders representing at least a tenth of the share
capital submit a request in writing, stating the purpose
to the Board of Directors.

The invitation to the General Meeting of Shareholders
is published in the Swiss Official Commercial Gazette.
All shareholders whose addresses are registered in the
share register are notified by a letter or by e-mail at
their choice.

Agenda

The Articles of Incorporation contain no regulations
relating to agendas that differ from those set forth by
the law.

Entries in the Share Register

Shareholders and/or beneficiaries of registered

shares are entitled to vote if they are registered in the
share register at the time of the General Meeting of
Shareholders. The Board of Directors shall determine
and indicate in the invitation to any General Meeting of
Shareholders the relevant cut-off date for registra-
tions in the share register that shall be relevant for the
eligibility of any shareholder to participate in and vote
at such General Meeting.

Changes of Control and Defense Measures

Public Purchase Offers

The Articles of Incorporation of COLTENE Holding AG
do not stipulate an alleviation or exemption for the
duty to submit a public offer according to articles 135
and 163 of the Swiss Federal Act on Financial Market
Infrastructures and Market Conduct in Securities and
Derivatives Trading (FMIA) (Bundesgesetz liber die
Finanzmarktinfrastrukturen und das Marktverhalten
im Effekten- und Derivatehandel, FinfraG).

Clauses on Changes of Control

No change of ownership clauses are in effect at
December 31,2018, at COLTENE Group and senior
management level.

Auditors

Duration of Mandate and Lead Auditor’s Term

of Office

Ernst & Young AG, St. Gallen (EY), has been elected as
COLTENE Holding AG’s statutory auditor the first time
at the Annual General Meeting of April 20, 2012, for
aone-year term. Since then, EY has been elected every
year again for a one-year period. EY also serves as
Group auditors. Rico Fehr has been the lead auditor
since that date. Fiscal year 2018 is the last year of
responsibility as lead auditor for Rico Fehr. He will be
replaced by Andreas Bodenmann due to the expiry of
the seven-year period where Rico Fehr was in charge.

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee
ensures that the lead auditor is rotated at least every
seven years.

Auditing Fees

The total sum charged for auditing services during the
year under review by EY in its capacity as COLTENE
Group’s statutory auditor amounted to CHF 479 000
(CHF 230000 in previous year). The significant
increase of the audit fees is owed to the additional
audits that were required for the capital increases of
COLTENE Holding AG in the course of the acquisition
of SciCan Ltd. and DentalDrives GmbH.

Audit services are defined as the standard audit
work performed each year in order to issue opinions
on the Group companies in scope and consolidated
financial statements of the Group, to issue opinions
relating to the existence of the Group’s internal
control system, and to issue reports on local statuto-
ry financial statements if required. Also included are
audit services that are only provided by the Group
auditor, such as auditing of non-recurring transactions
and implementation of new accounting policies, as
well as audits of accounting infrastructure system
controls.

Additional Fees

EY was also paid fees totaling CHF 408 oo0

(CHF 17000 in previous year) for other audit-related
services. The amount was mainly paid for services

in connection with the capital increases for the acquisi-
tion of SciCan Ltd. and DentalDrives GmbH.
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Supervisors and Control Instruments Pertaining

to the Auditors

As explained on page 36, the Board of Directors has
established an Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee to monitor the external auditors (statutory
and COLTENE Group auditors).

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee,
acting on behalf of the Board of Directors, is responsible
for overseeing the activities of EY and statutory audi-
tors. During 2018, the Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee held two meetings. At these meetings, the
Group auditors of EY participated during the discussion
of agenda items that dealt with accounting, financial
reporting or auditing matters and any other matters rel-
evant for their audit.

As part of its duties, the Audit and Corporate Govern-
ance Committee also assesses the services and fees
charged by the external auditors as well as their
independence from the entire Board of Directors and
COLTENE management. Criteria applied for the per-
formance assessmentinclude technical and operational
competence, independent and objective view, suffi-
cient resources employed, focus on areas of significant
risk to COLTENE Holding AG, willingness to probe

and challenge, ability to provide effective, practical
recommendations and open and effective communica-
tion and coordination with the Audit and Corporate
Governance Committee.

On an annual basis, the Audit and Corporate Gover-
nance Committee and EY discuss EY’s independence
from COLTENE Group and COLTENE management.

Based on the outcome of the performance of EY as well
as other criteria, the Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee decides on its recommendation to the
Board of Directors whether EY should be proposed to
the Annual General Meeting for re-election. Based

on the recommendation by the Audit and Corporate
Governance Committee, the Board of Directors
nominates an independent auditor for election at the
Annual General Meeting.

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

recommended to the Board of Directors the approval,
and the Board of Directors approved the Annual Report
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for the year ended December 31,2018, including the
audited financial statements.

Information Policy

COLTENE Holding AG provides its shareholders with
information in the form of the Annual Report and
Half-year Report. At the publication date of the annual
results, COLTENE informs at the annual press and
analysts conference and later at the Annual General
Meeting in detail about its business activity. At the pub-
lication date of the half-year results COLTENE informs
about the business activity by means of a conference
call. Important events are published immediately
through press releases and/or letters to shareholders.
Further information can be requested at the contact
address indicated on page 3 and page 108.

Internet

Shareholders and other interested parties can obtain
information about the COLTENE Group on the Internet
at www.coltene.com and subscribe to a news service.

AdHoc Publicity

COLTENE Holding AG maintains regular contact with the
financial world in general and with important inves-
tors. At the same time, it abides by the legally prescribed
principle of treating all parties equally as regards com-
munication. Relevant new facts are published openly and
are available to all interested parties. All press releases
and ad hoc publications can be found as follows:
https://www.coltene.com/investor-relations/media-
releases/

Financial Publications
https://www.coltene.com/investor-relations/
financial-publications/

Articles of Incorporation
https://www.coltene.com/investor-relations/
corporate-governance/

Corporate Communications and Investor Relations
COLTENE Holding AG

Corporate Communication/Investor Relation
Feldwiesenstrasse 20

9450 Altstaetten, Switzerland

+4171757554 37
investor@coltene.com


https://www.coltene.com/investor-relations/media- releases
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https://www.coltene.com/investor-relations/financial-publications
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Forimportant dates of publications this year, the follow-
ing year and contact addresses refer to page 3.

Non-applicability/negative statement

Itis explicitly declared that all statements that are not
included or mentioned in this report are considered

as either not applicable or negative statements according
to the directive on information relating to Corporate
Governance published by SIX Swiss Exchange AG or the
associated commentary.
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SciCanlInc.basedin Canonsburg, southwest of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, is responsible
forthe distribution of SciCan’s comprehensive range of dental hygiene products and
sterilization solutions inthe United States. In addition, the US office of SciCan Ltd., which
operates worldwide, includes arepair service and a large training center for the local

key market. SciCan Inc. employs approximately 50 employeesin Pittsburgh.

“Theregulatory require-
ments for hygiene in dental
practices are continuously
increasing. Our broad
training program aims to
enable dentists to make full
use of technical functions
such as automatic recording
of desinfection procedures.”

Eric Ozelski/ Product Manager North America / Pittsburgh, USA




Compensation Report

1 Introduction

This report provides an overview of COLTENE’s compen-
sation principles and practices. It provides information
on the compensation of Directors, Group Management
and Senior Management in 2017 and in 2018. It explains
the variable compensation systems and equity participa-
tion programs and discloses equity participations of
Directors and Management in the Company.

These principles and practices are designed to:

- align the interests of the leadership team and
employees with those of our shareholders

- support our attractiveness as a global employer, help-
ing us to retain and recruit an engaged workforce

- reward individuals according to clear targets

- encourage entrepreneurism, above-market perfor-
mance, accountability and value creation.

We believe that our scheme is balanced and in line with
current best practices.

1.1 Reporting Standards

This reportis in line with the “Swiss Code of Best Prac-
tice for Corporate Governance”. In accordance with
the IFRS financial reporting standards and Swiss law, the
compensation paid or granted to Directors and the
Group Management is presented in our audited Finan-
cial Report (see pages 94 and104,).

1.2 Management Structure

Annual General Meeting

Board of Directors / Nomination and Compensation Committee
Group Management

Senior Management

Employees

Fig.1: Management Structure
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The Chairman Nick Huber heads the Board of Directors
(BoD). The Extraordinary General Meeting of share-
holders on September 14,2018, expanded the Board’s
know-how by electing Allison Zwingenberger, a former
board member of SciCan Ltd., Toronto, Canada,
specializing in infection control in the dental industry
with additional experience in information technology
and technology in general. Allison Zwingenberger is
Associate Professor at the Department of Veterinary
Radiology at the University of California, Davis, USA.
Erwin Locher, chair of the Audit Committee, Matthew
Robin, chair of the Nomination and Compensation
Committee, Jiirgen Rauch, Roland Weiger and Astrid
Waser complete the Board of Directors. More informa-
tion regarding the members of the Board of Directors is
available on pages 39t0 43.

Since October 1,2015, the Group Management

(= Geschéftsleitung) is composed of the Group CEO
Martin Schaufelberger, the Group CFO Gerhard Mahrle,
the Vice President Quality Management and Regulato-
ry Affairs Werner Mannschedel, the Vice President
Marketing Werner Barth, and the Vice President Sales
Christophe Loretan. On November 1,2018, Stefan
Helsing joined the Group Management as COO (Chief
Operating Officer) to lead the integration of the new
locations and product groups of SciCan and Micro-Mega
that were acquired by COLTENE on October 9,2018,
and to manage the overall operations of the COLTENE
Group. Stefan Helsing was previously CEO of the San-
avis Group, to which SciCan and Micro-Mega belonged.
More information regarding the members of the Group
Management is available on pages 44 to 47.

1.3 Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors proposes candidates for the
Nomination and Compensation Committee (NCC) to
be elected annually by shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting (AGM). Since the AGM 2016, the
NCC is composed as follows:

Chairman: Matthew Robin

Members: Nick Huber, Roland Weiger

Allmembers of the Board normally attend NCC meet-
ings. The board members that were not elected as
members of the NCC attend the meetings as guests
with no voting rights.



The Board of Directors determines the NCC’s responsi-
bilities, and passes all resolutions on the Company’s
compensation system (see pages 55to 58). The NCC is
entrusted with the design of the compensation system
that applies to Directors, Group Management and
Senior Management. It reviews the principles and pro-
grams for compensation, and ensures that the com-
pensation paid by the Company is based on market-

and performance-related criteria. The NCC reports to
the Board of Directors on compensation practices

as well as on Management compensation at least once
ayear and proposes changes when necessary. Any
recommendations made to the Board of Directors by the
NCC are discussed, adjusted if required and formally
approved by the Board of Directors. Among others, the
NCC carries out the following duties:

- recommendation of the remuneration of the members
of the Board of Directors

- definition of the principles for the remuneration of
the members of the Group Management and submis-
sion of these to the Board of Directors for approval

- approval of the remuneration to be paid to the senior
management

- yearly elaboration of the compensation report to be
presented to the AGM

Recommendation and decision responsibilities
with regard to compensation

Recom-

Recipient mendation Decision Approval
Chairman of the

Board of Directors NCC BoD AGM
Other members of

the Board of Directors NCC BoD AGM
CEO NCC BoD AGM
Other members of

the Group Management CEO BoD AGM
Senior Management Group Group

Management Management

NCC:Nominationand Compensation Committee
BoD: Board of Directors

AGM: Annual General Meeting

CEO: Chief Executive Officer

This table describes the recommendation, decision and
approval process of the COLTENE Group with regard
to compensation to the Board of Directors, to the Group
Management and to the senior management level
(including the split in fixed and variable amounts and
the approval of the maximum payout). According to
the Ordinance Against Excessive Compensation in
Public Corporations (VegiiV), effective since 2014, and
the Articles of Incorporation of COLTENE Holding AG
of October 9,2018, the compensation to the Board

of Directors and to the Group Management has to be
approved by the Annual General Meeting (AGM).
COLTENE has chosen that the AGM approves the
compensation for subsequent fiscal year. While the
NCC recommends the remuneration packages, the
BoD decides on the compensation packages that are
submitted to the AGM for approval. The Group Man-
agement decides and approves the compensation for the
Senior Management within the guidelines set by the
NCC. For all other employees, the Group Management
is responsible for setting the guidelines for compensa-
tion, which is implemented by the Senior Management.

2 Compensation Principles

2.1 Driving Values through Compensation

We are convinced that a compensation system based on
value creation encourages sustainable performance,
loyalty and entrepreneurship and is thus in the interests
of management, employees and shareholders. We are
committed to compensating our staff, management
and Directors in a way that is competitive and rewards
sustainable, short-term and long-term performance
with the objective of driving value.

Itis COLTENE’s view that the success of a company

depends largely on the quality and engagement of its

people. A modern compensation system is an impor-

tantinstrument for attracting, retaining and motivating

talented people. COLTENE’s compensation system

takes these factors into accountin that it:

- offers competitive salaries

- fosters a high-performance culture that differentiates
and rewards above-average individual performance,
bothin the short and long term

- links variable long-term compensation to value
generated by the Company over the long term based
on shareholder expectations
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- is benchmarked with other companies in the
industry

- provides employees with benefits based
on good practices and regulations in local
markets.

The system is periodically reviewed by the NCC for
effectiveness and adjusted if required.

2.2 Comprehensive Benchmark

Our policy is to pay employees, management and
Directors a base compensation that is close to the medi-
an of comparable companies in the respective market.
The variable pay is set with the potential to move over-
all compensation toward the upper quartile for out-
standing performance. Itis Company policy to avoid
excessive compensation on all levels.

Benchmark reviews for the remuneration of the

Board of Directors, the Group Management, and the
Senior Management are conducted regularly by
COLTENE, including the use of independent specialists
and/or external studies if appropriate. Comparable
companies in similar industries are selected for the
benchmark applying the following criteria:

- comparable scope and business complexity

- similar geographic footprint and size

- competitiveness to attract talent

2.3 Ethical, Fair Standards

We are committed to fair and equal treatment of all
our employees and seek to be in full compliance with
the regional labor standards. Compensation is not
influenced by gender or by non-performance-related
criteria other than specific professional experience.
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3 Total Compensation and Compensation Elements
Total compensation for all employees including man-
agement and Directors can be found in the financial
section of the Annual Report on page 82. The compen-
sation of managers comprises fixed and variable com-
ponents, the mix of which is defined by role, profile,
location and strategic impact. For Group Management
and Senior Management, emphasis is placed on the
long-term variable component, in line with our strategic
goal of promoting ownership. The compensation mix
for Group Managementincludes a long-term variable
remuneration element, part of which is paid in shares
blocked for three years. Directors receive a fixed annual
cash fee and a fixed amount of money in shares, also
blocked for three years.

The split of the total maximum compensation is set as
follows:

Elements of the compensation

Board of Directors

100%

CEO

80% shortterm

0
Sl 20%longterm

50%

Other members of the Group Management

80% shortterm
60-100% o 20% long term
Senior Management
60-100% 0-40% 100% short term

M fixed base salary variable

Fig. 2: Display of the compensation

3.1 Fixed Compensation Elements

The fixed compensation elements include the following

components:

- base salary

- pension plans' (depending on local practices
and regulations)

- other benefits (depending on local practices and
regulations)

1 The Board of Directors is not entitled to a pension scheme according
to Swiss legislation (BVG).



Basesalary

Each COLTENE employee receives a base salary
based on:

- job profile

experience and skills

comparison with external benchmarks
location and local regulations

- strategic impact.

Other benefits

COLTENE’s benefit programs including local pension
schemes are an integral part of the total compensation
and are designed to enable the Company to compete
effectively for talent and retain it. Benefits are struc-
tured to support our overall business strategy, and are
aligned with local legislation and practices. Group
Management members and certain members of the
Senior Management, depending on their travel frequen-
cy, are entitled to a Company car.

3.2 Variable Components Elements

Variable compensation components included one or
more of the following:

- performance-related incentives

- short-term and long-term component

Performance-related incentives

The payout under the incentive scheme is based on
a combination of the following:

- company performance

- financial and functional target achievement

- individual performance

Performance indicators

Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) in combination
with revenue growth are the key performance indica-
tors for COLTENE and the performance targets are set
prior to the respective performance cycle. Targets for
EBIT margin and revenue are based on the medium-
term business plan and the relevant budget. The Board
of Directors in consultation with Group Management
sets these targets together with the focus area for indi-
vidual discretionary targets.

Weighting of performance criteria

The weighting of the different targets depends on the
role and responsibilities of the individual (see table

on page 55). Overall, there is a stronger focus on indi-
vidual targets as determined by Management, making
it possible to encourage and reward above-average
individual performance appropriately. The measure-
ment scale for the achievement of financial targets
(company performance and financial targets) extends
from 0% to a maximum of 120 % and is based on a

line joining three points as explained in the illustration.
The entitlement for a bonus based on financial targets
normally starts at 80 % fulfillment of the defined
target butit may start at a higher percentage than at
80 % of the defined target. The maximum bonus for
the achievement of a single financial target is 150 % of
the defined bonus for this single target.

Scale of variable compensation elements

Variable compensation
A

150 %~ — <o

00 R T

Target
> fulfillment

0 80% 100% 120%

Fig. 3: Scale of variable compensation (financial targets)
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The assessment scale for individual and functional
target achievement extends from 0% to 100 %. Partial
financial targets might be over 100 % fulfilled (up

to a maximum of 120 %); however, the total variable
compensation is capped at the maximum variable
compensation agreed with each member of the man-
agement and may not exceed the total fixed compen-
sation comprising all elements according to section 3.1.
Fixed Components Elements on pages 56 to 57.

Illustration target achievement

Functional/ Maximum

Financial discretionary variable

weight of weight of compensation

variable variable as % of fixed

Function comp t comp t base salary

CEO 60-80% 20-40% 100%

Other members of the 60-80% 20-40% 0-66%
Group Management

Senior Management 40-60% 40-60% 0-66%

Long-term component

For Group Management, 20 % of the variable compo-
nentis defined as long-term and is remunerated in

the form of shares, which are blocked for three years.
The calculation of the grant price for these shares is
based on the Swiss Performance Index (SPI) of the SIX
Swiss stock exchange. The free-float-adjusted SPl is
considered Switzerland’s overall stock market index. It
comprises practically all of the SIX Swiss Exchange-
traded equity securities of companies that are domiciled
in Switzerland or the Principality of Liechtenstein. The
shares are granted at an index price based on COLTENE’s
share price of that year. The index price is recalculated
every four years forming the base for the following
four-year period. Based on this index price the relative
year-on-year performance of the SPI is applied to
calculate the new grant price for COLTENE shares
during the following four-year period.
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The remuneration plan contractually agreed to by

all eligible employees dictates that all rights granted in
respect of a variable payment shall be immediately,
automatically, and definitively forfeited in the case of
termination for cause.

3.3 Contract Duration and Notice Period

Duration of term of office of the members of the Board
of Directors: each member of the Board of Directors

is elected every year at the AGM for one year of service
until the next AGM. Notice period for members of

the Group Management: no member of the Group
Management has a notice period that exceeds twelve
months.

3.4 Other Types of Payment

There are no severance payments, payments in
advance, and no specific payments for change-of-con-
trol events. In the event of a change of control the
Board of Directors decides whether there is full vesting
under the long-term component of variable compen-
sation or not.



4 Remuneration to Directors and
Group Management

The tables below show the compensation paid to the
members of the Board of Directors and to the Group

Management for the years 2017 and 2018.

Remuneration to the Board of Directors

In CHF Other
Base remuneration remuneration
Social
in cash in shares’2 security? Total
2017
Nick Huber 80000 20000 14363 114363
Robert Heberlein# 15000 2500 2512 20012
Erwin Locher 70000 10000 11443 91443
Jirgen Rauch 60000 10000 10023 80023
Matthew Robin 70000 10000 11443 91443
Astrid Waser> 45000 7500 6393 58893
Roland Weiger 60000 10000 10023 80023
Total 400000 70000 66200 536200
2018
Nick Huber 80000 20000 14363 114363
Erwin Locher 70000 10000 7665 87665
Jirgen Rauch 60000 10000 0 70000
Matthew Robin 70000 10000 11438 91438
Astrid Waser 60000 10000 9647 79647
Roland Weiger 60000 10000 10017 80017
Allison Zwingenberger® 15000 2500 2131 19631
Total 415000 72500 55261 542761
12017: The value of the number of shares granted is calculated on the weighted average share price of the month of March of the subsequent year.
22018: The value of the number of shares granted is calculated on the weighted average share price of the month of May of the subsequent year.
3 Company paid social security contributionincl. AHV, IV and ALV.
4 Onthe General Meeting, March 29,2017, Robert Heberlein stepped down as Board member for reasons of age.
5 Onthe General Meeting, March 29,2017, Astrid Waser was elected as anew Board member.
6 Onthe Extraordinary General Meeting, September 14,2018, Allison Zwingenberger was elected as a new Board member.
Remuneration to the Group Management
In CHF Base
remuneration Variable remuneration’ Other remuneration
Social Other
in cash in cash in shares? security? benefits Total
2017
Martin Schaufelberger 370000 292098 99676 147890 23022 932686
Other members 970082 293172 99971 269499 54235 1686959
Total 1340082 585270 199647 417 389 77 257 2619645
2018
MartinSchaufererger 370000 296 000 111276 148729 19212 945217
Other members 1037467 333568 125235 271604 48420 1816294
Total 1407 467 629568 236511 420333 67632 2761511

T The variable remuneration, which includes cash bonus and shares, is not paid out in the reporting period. Itis accrued for and paid out in the following year

based onthe decision of the Board of Directors.
2 The value of shares granted is calculated with the share price at closing of the grant date. For 2017, it was February 20,2018, and the share price was CHF 98.30.

For 2018, it was March 19,2019, and the share price was CHF 99.00.
3 Company paid social security contribution incl. pension funds payments, AHV, IV, ALV, NBU and KTG.
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Approved remuneration to the Board of Directors

and the Group Management by the AGM

OnMarch 29,2017,the AGM hadto approve the remu-
nerationforthe Board of Directors andthe Group
Management forthe financialyear 2018 based onthe
Ordinance Against Excessive Compensationin Public
Corporations (VegliV) and the Articles of Incorpora-
tion of COLTENE Holding AG of October 9,2018.

Approved remuneration to the Board of Directors for 2018
The AGM approved anaggregate remuneration
tothe members of the Board of Directors of

CHF 560 000 forthe financial year2018.Intotal,
the Board of Directors received as compensation
CHF 470261incashand CHF 72500 in shares.

Compensation to the Board of Directors in 2018 in CHF

Approved Actual

compensation  compensation

Total compensationin cash n/a 470261
Total compensationin shares n/a 72500
Overall compensation 560 000 542761

Theremunerationtothe Board of Directors for2018
was withinthe approved amount. The AGM approved
in2017 only the overall compensation 2018 for the
Board of Directors.

Approved remuneration to the Group Management for 2018
The AGM approvedanaggregate remunerationto
the Group Management of CHF 3100 000 for the
financialyear2018.Intotal,the Group Management
receivedas compensation CHF 2761511,

Compensation to the Group Management in 2018 in CHF

Approved Actual

compensation  compensation

Total fix compensationin cash 2100000 1895432
Total variable compensationin

cashandshares 1000000 866079

Overall compensation 3100000 2761511

The remuneration to the Group Management for 2018
was within the approved amounts.
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Compensation to the Board of Directors
and the Group Management

2017 2018
CHF 560000 » CHF 560000
Board of Directors o
CHF 536200 CHF 542761

CHF 2900000 ™ CHF 3100000

Group Management

CHF 2619645 CHF 2761 511

AGM 2017 Approved compensation Actual compensation

Loans

Inthe reporting period, no loans, advances, or credits
were granted to any member of the Board of Directors
or the Group Management.

Number of shares held by the Board of Directors

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Nick Huber 14297 4096
Erwin Locher 6162 5154
Jirgen Rauch 277 148
Matthew Robin 5235 4248
Astrid Waser, since AGM 2017 97 0
Roland Weiger 1198 898
Allison Zwingenberger,
since Extraordinary GM 2018 0 n/a
Total Board of Directors 27 266 14544
Number of shares held by the Group Management

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Martin Schaufelberger 10675 8137
Gerhard Mahrle 2509 1659
Werner Barth 1307 903
Stefan Helsing, since November1,2018 54079 n.a.
Werner Mannschedel 2262 1819
Christophe Loretan 396 232
Total Group Management 71228 12750

5 Approval of the Compensation Report

This compensation report provides comprehensive
transparency with regard to the Company’s general
compensation principles and in particular to the com-
pensation of the Group Management and the Board of
Directors. The Board of Directors will present this
report to the shareholders for consultative approval at
the Annual General Meeting on April 30,2019.



Report of the Statutory Auditor

Report of the Statutory Auditor to the General Meeting

of COLTENE Holding AG, Altstatten

Reportofthe Statutory Auditor onthe Compensation Report

We have audited the remuneration report of COLTENE
Holding AG for the year ended December 31,2018.
The audit was limited to the information according to
articles 14-16 of the Ordinance against Excessive
Compensation in Stock Exchange Listed Companies
(Ordinance) contained in the tables in chapter 4 on
pages 54 to 60 of the remuneration report.

Board of Directors’ Responsibility
The Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation and overall fair presentation of
the remuneration reportin accordance with
Swiss law and the Ordinance. The Board of
Directors is also responsible for designing the remuner-
ation system and defining individual remuneration
packages.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on the remuneration report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Swiss Auditing
Standards. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the remuneration report complies with Swiss law and
articles 14-16 of the Ordinance.

An auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence on the disclosures made in the remuner-
ation report with regard to compensation, loans and
credits in accordance with articles 14-16 of the Ordinance.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judg-
ment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatements in the remuneration report, whether
due to fraud or error. This audit also includes evaluating
the reasonableness of the methods applied to value
components of remuneration, as well as assessing the
overall presentation of the remuneration report.

EY

Building a better
working world

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the remuneration report
for the year ended December 31,2018, of
COLTENE Holding AG complies with Swiss
law and articles 14-16 of the Ordinance.

Ernst & Young Ltd

Fley

Rico Fehr
Licensed audit expert
(Auditorin charge)

pi

Ralf Truffer
Licensed audit expert

St.Gallen, April 2,2019
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Colténe/Whaledent AG The COLTENE Group modernizes and expands its headquarters

in Altstaetten, Switzerland, with a supplementary buildinginaugurated at the beginning

of 2018. The new building will allow production capacities to be expanded and cooperation
and knowledge exchange between the interdisciplinary teams to be improved. The

new premises offer the highly motivated development, marketing and sales specialists a
modern working environment. Productionis primarily focused on chemical processes

to manufacture high-precision dentalimpression materials, high-quality restorative products
andawiderange of adhesive and luting materials. COLTENE employs around 190 people

in Altstaetten.

“Quality management and
regulatory affairs are some
of today’s big challenges.
Itis nota question whether
we meet these challenges,
but how we tackle them.
Our experts and know-
how give us the confidence
to follow this path with
excellence.”

Jasmin Gaby, QM / Regulatory Affairs Office / Altstaetten, Switzerland
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Group Statement of Profit and Loss

InCHF 1000 Ref. 2018 2017
Net sales 1 203952 167990
Changes ininventories of finished goods and work in progress -4747 1613
Work performed and capitalized 26 32
Raw materialand consumables used 2 -56891 -47930
Personnel expenses 3 -70635 -58796
Other operating expenses 5 -40870 -31713
Depreciation and amortization 6 -7155 -5711
Operating profit (EBIT) 23680 25485
Financialincome 7 169 247
Financial expenses 7 -2413 -1220
Net profit before tax expenses 21436 24512
Tax expenses 8 -6525 -5452
Net profit for the period 10 14911 19060
Earnings per share 10 CHF 3.16 CHF 4.52
Diluted earnings per share 10 CHF3.16 CHF 4.52
The notes are part of COLTENE Group financial statements.
Group Statement

.
of Comprehensive Income
InCHF 1000 Ref. 2018 2017
Net profit for the period 14911 19060
Other comprehensive income (OCI)
OCltobereclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations -8115 -35
Net OCI to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods -8115 -35
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 4 194 1800
Income tax effect -28 -313
Net OCI not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 166 1487
OCl, net of tax -7949 1452
Total comprehensive income, net of tax 6962 20512

The notes are part of COLTENE Group financial statements.
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Group Statement of Financial Position

InCHF 1000 Ref. 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Cashand cash equivalents 20901 22040
Trade accounts receivable 11 56233 37068
Taxreceivables 570 174
Prepaid expenses 2816 900
Otherreceivables 12 4839 2341
Inventories 13 55552 31551
Current assets 140911 94074
Property, plant,and equipment 1,14 42452 28413
Financial assets 12 391 393
Intangible assets 1,15 234859 43191
Deferredtax assets 9 1609 1240
Non-current assets 279311 73237
Total assets 420222 167311
Financial liabilities 16 44991 8281
Trade accounts payable 18 12430 6506
Otheraccounts payable and accruals 19 28032 12103
Tax liabilities 3964 4119
Provisions 20 836 347
Current liabilities 90253 31356
Financial liabilities 16,17 5069 0
Deferred tax liabilities 9 20617 7236
Provisions 20 8113 7014
Non-current liabilities 33799 14250
Total liabilities 124052 45606
Share capital 598 422
Capitalreserves 180283 0
Treasury shares -303 0
Currency translation adjustments -39648 -31533
Retained earnings 155240 152816
Total equity 22 296170 121705
Total liabilities and equity 420222 167311

The notes are part of COLTENE Group financial statements.
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Group Cash Flow Statement

InCHF 1000 Ref. 2018 2017
Net profit for the period 14911 19060
Depreciation and amortization 6,14,15 7155 5711
Other non-cashitems 5980 4626
Change inaccounts receivable from deliveries and sales -5200 -3501
Changeininventories 5171 -943
Changeinother currentassets -2427 1030
Change in currentliabilities 7243 2396
Interest paid -479 -302
Interest received 28 27
Income tax paid -7752 -6209
Cash flow from operating activities 24630 21895
Purchase of property, plant,and equipment -12431 -4101
Proceeds from sale of property, plant,and equipment 232 192
Purchase of intangible assets -545 -297
Proceeds/purchase of financial assets net 257 -389
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash) -102949 -1275
Cash flow from investing activities -115436 -5870
Proceeds from first capital increase (net of transaction costs) 69546 0
Transaction costs of second capital increase -1571 0
Proceeds from loans and financial liabilities 43047 70
Repayments of loans and financial liabilities -7830 -4678
Dividends to shareholders 22 -12654 -11381
Proceeds/purchase of treasury shares -585 330
Cash flow from financing activities 89953 -15659
Exchange rate differences -285 104
Change in cash and cash equivalents -1139 470
Cashand cash equivalents at beginning of year 22040 21570
Cashand cash equivalents atend of year 20901 22040

The notes are part of COLTENE Group financial statements.

68  Financials COLTENE Group



Group Statement of Changes in Equity

InCHF 1000 Currency
Share Capital Treasury translation Retained

Ref. capital reserves shares adjustments earnings Total
01.01.2017 422 0 -258 -31498 143585 112251
Net profit of the period 0 0 0 0 19060 19060
Other comprehensive income 0 0 0 -35 1487 1452
Comprehensive income for the period 0 0 0 -35 20547 20512
Share-based payment transactions 3,23 0 0 284 0 0 284
Dividends 22 0 0 0 0 -11381 -11381
Change intreasury shares 0 0 39 0 0 39
Remeasurement treasury shares 0 0 -65 0 65 0
31.12.2017 422 0 0 -31533 152816 121705
Net profit of the period 0 0 0 0 14911 14911
Other comprehensive income 0 0 0 -8115 167 -7948
Comprehensive income for the period 0 0 0 -8115 15078 6963
Share-based payment transactions 3,23 0 0 282 0 282
Dividends 22 0 0 0 0 -12654 -12654
Change intreasury shares 0 0 -585 0 0 -585
First capitalincrease for cash 22 68 70132 0 0 0 70200
Transaction costs of first capital increase 0 -654 0 0 0 -654
Second capital increase consideration
shares 22 108 112376 0 0 0 112484
Transaction costs of second capitalincrease 0 -1571 0 0 0 -1571
31.12.2018 598 180283 -303 -39648 155240 296170

The notes are part of COLTENE Group financial statements.
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Notes to Group Financial Statements

Reporting Entity

COLTENE Holding AG, the holding company of the
COLTENE Group (“the Group”), is a stock corporation
according to Swiss Code of Obligations. The Com-
pany’s legal domicile is in Altstatten, Switzerland.
COLTENE Holding AG was founded on December 15,
2005 and has been listed on SIX Swiss Exchange

since June 23,2006. The Group is active in the dental
consumables and small dental equipment market.

Operating Segments and Products

The Group develops, manufactures, and sells mainly
via distribution channels a broad and comprehensive
range of disposables, tools and equipment for den-
tists and dental laboratories. The Group operates one
operating segment defined in line with management
structure, the organizational setup, the reporting and
allocation of resources by the chief decision maker
and the products of the Group. Internal and external
reporting are aligned.

Basis of Preparation

General Remarks

The Group financial statements were prepared in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as issued by the IASB. The figures
are based on the historical cost convention except for
certain financial assets and liabilities carried at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates which could
impact the assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities
atthe balance sheet date as well as income and expenses
of the reporting period. It also requires management

to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. If subsequently such
judgments and estimates made by management differ
from the actual circumstances, the original judgments
and estimates made are changed for the year in which
the respective circumstances have occurred.
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The accounting policies adopted in the preparation

of the consolidated financial statements are consistent
with those followed in the preparation of the Group’s
annual consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31,2017, except for the adoption

of new standards and interpretations effective as of
January 1,2018.

The Group financial statements are based on the indi-
vidual financial statements of the Group’s subsidiaries,
prepared in accordance with the Group’s accounting
principles as of December 31. Allamounts presented
are denominated in CHF thousand (except otherwise
noted). Swiss francs are the functional currency of the
holding company as well as the presentation currency
of the Group.

The COLTENE Holding AG Board of Directors author-
ized these financial statements on April 2, 2019, for issue.
The financial statements are subject to approval by

the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders scheduled
to take place on April 30,2019.

Announced Adoption of Swiss GAAP FER
Accounting Standards

The Board of Directors decided in February 2019 to
switch its accounting standards as of January 1, 2019,
from IFRS to Swiss GAAP FER. Swiss GAAP FER is a
recognized, comprehensive and straightforward set of
accounting standards which will allow the Group to
continue publishing high-quality and transparent finan-
cial reports in compliance with a true and fair presenta-
tion framework. The conversion from IFRS to Swiss
GAAP FER willimpact the consolidated financial state-
ments mainly in the following areas:

Goodwill identified in business combinations will be
offset directly with equity. Under IFRS, goodwill

was capitalized and not amortized but tested annually
forimpairment.



According to Swiss GAAP FER 16 “Pension benefit obli-
gations”, the existing economic obligations or benefits
relating to the Swiss, Liechtenstein and French pension
fund are measured based on the pension fund’s finan-
cial statements in accordance with Swiss GAAP FER 26
“Accounting of pension plans”. It will be a matter of
judgment to determine if an economic benefit or obliga-
tion exists. Under IFRS, defined benefit plans were
measured using the projected unit credit method and
recognized in accordance with IAS 19. The Swiss GAAP
FER restatement as of January 1,2018, will be published
in the Group’s half-year report as at June 30, 2019.

New and Amended Standards Adopted by the Group
The International Accounting Standard Board (1ASB)
and the IFRS Interpretation Committee (IFRIC) issued
the following new and amended IFRS interpretations

to be applied by the Group in financial year 2018:

- IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

- IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

- IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transac-
tions and Advance Considerations

- Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment
Property

- Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measure-
ment of Share-based Payment Transactions

Financial assets and liabilities
InCHF 1000

Classification and measurement as per

With the exception of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15, described
hereafter, these amendments had no impact on the
Group Financial Statements.

Adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Since January 1,2018, the Group applied IFRS g for the
first time. The main effects of the new standard are
the classification and measurement of financial assets
and impairments on financial assets.

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
Since January 1,2018, the Group has reclassified its
financial assets as “at fair value through profit or loss”,
or “atamortized cost”. Financial assets were previously
classified as “loans and receivables” or “at fair value
through profit or loss”.

The classification is based on the respective business
model for managing these financial assets in accord-
ance with the contractually specified cash flows and
with other relevant facts.

The application of IFRS g has no significant impact
and no adjustments were recorded due to the first time
application of IFRS g on January1,2018.

Classification and measurement as per

December 31,2017 January 1,2018 (IFRS 9)

Loansand  Atfair value through At fair value through
receivables profit or loss Amortized cost profit or loss Amortized cost
Trade accounts receivable 37068 37068
Financial assets 393 393
Total financial assets 37461 0 0 0 37461
Financial liabilities 8281 8281
Trade accounts payable 6506 6506
Other accounts payable
andaccruals 11951 11951
Forwards! 150 150
Total financial liabilities 0 150 26738 150 26738

1 Includedinlineitem “Other accounts payable and accruals” in the Group statement of financial position, see also note 19.
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Impairment on Financial Assets

Inaccordance with IFRS 9, the Group recognizes
impairments on financial assets based on expected
losses. The Group applies the simplified expected
credit loss model for its trade receivables, which pro-
vides for expected losses over all the remaining
lifetime, from the recognition date of the receivables.

The credit risk on accrued income and other receiva-
bles and financial assets is expected to be low. In this
case, IFRS g provides that losses recognized are expect-
ed to beincurred over the next twelve months.

In accordance with transitional requirements of IFRS 9,
the Group has not adjusted its previous-year figures.
Instead, the provision for bad debts on trade accounts
receivable and the provision on other receivables and
prepaid expenses were reassessed in accordance with
the new impairment model as of January 1,2018. The
impact on the provisions noted was not significant and
no adjustments were recorded in the opening balance
as atjanuary1,2018.

The changed approach of IFRS g had no impact on the
measurement of other receivables or financial assets.
Management has assessed the collectability of these
balances and concluded the probability of default to
be minimal.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction Contracts,
IAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and it
applies to all revenue arising from contracts with cus-
tomers, unless those contracts are in the scope of
other standards. The new standard establishes a five-
step model to account for revenue arising from con-
tracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recog-
nized at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled to in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer.

The standard requires entities to exercise judgement,
taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and
circumstances when applying each step of the model
to contracts with their customers. The standard also
specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of
obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to
fulfilling a contract. The Group has chosen the modified
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retrospective approach and has applied IFRS 15 on
January 1,2018.

All sales recorded in the period January 1to December 31,
2018, meet the criteria for revenue recognition at a
pointin time and there are no significant adjustments
due to the first time application of IFRS 15.

Volume rebates are applied retrospectively and

are accounted for as variable consideration. This is
because the final price of each good or service sold
depends on the customer’s total purchases subject to
the rebate program. The Group accounts for variable
consideration as a reduction to the transaction price.

A corresponding refund liability is recorded within other
accounts payable and accruals on the balance sheet
until the related payments to the customer are made.

Revenue informationis disclosed in note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Companies Consolidated

Group subsidiaries, controlled directly or indirectly by
COLTENE Holding AG, are fully consolidated. Sub-
sidiaries are fully consolidated as of the date on which
control is obtained. Subsidiaries are deconsolidated

as of the date on which control ceases. The companies
consolidated are shown in the summary provided

on page 95. Allintra-Group assets and liabilities,income
and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business Combination and Goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. Acquisition costs comprise the
consideration paid, including the proportion of the
purchase price retained for contractual representations
and warranties, and contingent consideration. The
latter is recognized at fair value on the transaction date.
Subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent
consideration are recognized in the income statement.
Transaction costs are recognized as operating expenses.



Net assets acquired comprise identifiable assets, liabili-
ties,and contingent liabilities and are recognized at

fair value. The difference between the acquisition costs
and the fair value of the proportionate interest in the
net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill. If the cost
of acquisition is less than the fair value of the identifi-
able net assets, the negative difference is accounted for
in the income statement.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months

or less. Bank overdrafts are shown in current liabilities
on the Group statement of financial position.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable in respect of deliveries and services
and other accounts receivable are generally due for
settlement within 30 days and therefore are all classified
as current. Trade receivables and other receivables are
recognized initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional. The Group holds the trade receivables
with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows
and therefore measures them subsequently at amor-
tized cost.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of weighted average
costand net realizable value. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises design costs, raw mate-
rial, direct labor, other direct costs, and related produc-
tion overheads (based on normal operating capacity).
It excludes borrowing costs. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses. Value adjust-
ments are made for obsolete and slow-moving items.

Property, Plant, Equipment
Property,plant,equipmentandfinance lease comprises:
- Machinery and equipment

- Land

- Buildings (including installations)

- Assets under construction

Machinery and equipment are stated at acquisition
cost less depreciation on a straight-line basis over the
useful life of normally five to ten years, 15 years in
exceptional cases. Buildings are stated at historical cost
less depreciation on a straight-line basis over the use-
ful life of 40 to 50 years. Land is stated at historical cost
andis not depreciated.

Leases in which the Company holds all significant risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as financial
leases. The respective assets are carried as property,
plant,and equipment and are depreciated. The corre-
sponding lease obligations are shown as financial liabili-
ties. Leasing installments are allocated accordingly to
capital repayments and interest expenses.

Financial Assets (Accounting Policies Applied

January1,2018)

Classification

From1January 2018 with the adoption of IFRS g, the

Group classifies its financial assets in the following

measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value
through profitand loss (FVTPL), and

- those to be measured at amortized cost.

For assets measured at FVTPL, gains and losses will be
recorded in profit and loss.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

Atinitial recognition (with the exception of trade
receivables), the Group measures a financial asset at its
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at

fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the finan-
cial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at FVTPL are expensed in profit and loss.
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Interest income from financial assets measured at cost
isincluded in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Gains or losses from foreign exchange
differences are presented in financial income/expenses.

Impairment

From 1January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward-
looking basis the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortized cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by IFRS g9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition
of the receivables, see note 11 for further details.

Financial Assets (Accounting Policies Applied
December31,2017)

Prior to the adoption of IFRS g the Group applied the
incurred loss model to determine its bad debt allowance.
Apart from this change, all financial assets and liabili-
ties previously measured at either amortized cost or fair
value through profit or loss continue to be measured

in the same way under IFRS g (refer to the explanation
on page 71), and therefore the Group does not repeat

in detail the previous IAS 39 accounting policies applied
until December 31,2017.

Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Goodwillis the difference of the costs of acquisition
over the Group’s share of the fair value of the identifia-
ble net assets acquired and represents the future eco-
nomic benefit, which cannot be recognized as a separate
asset. Goodwillis carried in the currency of the
acquired business and tested annually for impairment

and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible Assets Other Than Goodwill

Intangible assets contain patents, software, and others.
They are stated at historical costs less amortization

on a straight-line basis over the useful life normally not
exceeding seven years.

74 Financials COLTENE Group

Intangible assets resulting from purchase price alloca-
tions are amortized over the following periods:

- technology five years

- brandten years

- customer relations twelve years

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortization or depreciation and are tested annually
forimpairment. Assets that are subject to amortization
or depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Animpairment
loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and the value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are sepa-
rately identifiable cash inflows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
animpairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Loans and Other Financial Liabilities

Loans and other liabilities are recognized initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred. Loans and other
liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost;
any differences between the proceeds (net of transac-
tion costs) and the redemption amount is recognized

in the income statement over the period of the borrow-
ings using the effective interest method.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
eventand itis probable that an outflow of resources
which can be reliably estimated will be required to
settle the obligation. Such provisions are made to cover
assurance type warranties and liability claims. Provi-
sions for restructuring measures are made as soon as the
corresponding decision is taken and communicated.

Cash-out may differ from the amount provided for
asitis based on assumptions and estimates available at
thattime.



Post-Employment Benefits

The Group maintains various pension fund schemes
according to state law and other legal requirements
according to the respective local regulations. The non-
governmental pension plans are mostly organized

in the form of legally independent pension funds; con-
tributions are paid both by employer and employee.
Except for two legal entities in Switzerland, a legal entity
in Liechtenstein and one legal entity in France all pen-
sion plans are accounted for as defined contribution
plans. The Swiss, Liechtenstein and the France pension
plans are administrated by independent institutions
and accounted for as defined benefit plans according to
IAS 19. The pension liability resulting from defined bene-
fit plans is calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the “projected unit credit method”. Remeasure-
ments, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect
of the asset ceiling, excluding net interest and the
return on plan assets (excluding interest recognized in
profit and loss), are recognized immediately in other
comprehensive income with corresponding debit or
credit to the statement of financial position in the
period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The Group recognizes the following changes in the net
defined benefit obligation under personnel expenses
and financial expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs,
past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments
and settlements (personnel expenses)

- Netinterest expense or income (financial expenses)

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the

earlier of:

- the date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

- the date that the Group recognizes restructuring-
related costs

Net interestis calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Share-Based Payments

Allmembers of the Board of Directors receive a fixed
amountin shares with a blocking period of three years
without any vesting conditions. The Group Manage-
ment receives a variable remuneration. Part of the vari-
able remuneration is paid in shares with a blocking
period of three years without any vesting conditions.
The valuation of the shares takes place on the grant
date, the related expense is recognized immediately in
the income statement. For further details see pages 54
to 60 inthe Compensation Report.

Taxes

Alltaxes payable onincome for the financial year are
provided for in full at the reporting date and in compli-
ance with the applicable tax laws. According to the
liability method, deferred income tax on temporary dif-
ferences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Group finan-
cial statements at enacted or substantially enacted

tax rates on reporting date is provided in full. Deferred
tax assets are recognized to the extent that future
taxable profit will be available to use tax losses carried
forward and temporary differences.

Net Sales
The accounting policies for the Group’s revenue from
contracts with customers are explained in note 1.

Repair and Maintenance Costs

Repair and maintenance costs (included in other
operating expenses) are recognized in the income
statement when they occur.

Researchand Development

Research costs are expensed in other operating
expenses as incurred. Development costs are capital-
ized if they can be determined reliably and if it can

be safely assumed that the projectin question will be
completed successfully and resultin future benefits.
Development costs capitalized are amortized ona
straight-line basis over a maximum period of five years.
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Earnings per Share

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to shareholders of the Group by the weight-
ed average number of shares issued during the year
excluding shares purchased by the Group and held as
treasury shares.

Dividend and Capital Distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s sharehold-
ers is recognized as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders, until paid
out.

Foreign Currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (functional currency). Transactions conducted
in foreign currencies are converted into the functional
currency at the exchange rate applicable on the trans-
action date and re-translated at year-end, e.g. accounts
receivable and payable as well as loans in foreign
currencies are shown at the year-end exchange rates.
Gains and losses are reported in the income statement.

The statement of financial position and income
statement of foreign subsidiaries are converted into
Swiss francs (presentation currency) upon consoli-
dation at the rate applicable at year-end respectively
at the average exchange rate for the year. Differences
resulting from the conversion into the Group presenta-
tion currency are recognized in equity. In the event

of the sale of a subsidiary, foreign currency differenc-
es are takeninto account as part of the gain or loss
resulting from the sale. Goodwill from acquisition of
foreign companies and fair-value adjustments of assets
and liabilities in connection with acquisitions are also
converted at year-end rates.
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The mostimportant exchange rates are listed below:

The most important exchange rates

31.12.2018  ©2018 31.12.2017 ©2017
1USD 0.9842 0.9786 0.9757  0.9849
1EUR 11269 1.1550 11702 11116
1CAD 0.7221 0.7554 n/a n/a

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk management is ensured according to the
principles defined by Group Management. These
principles define how credit, interest, and currency risks
are to be managed. Additional rules governing the
management of liquidity and other financial assets
were also defined.

The subsidiaries manage their financial risk according to
the defined risk policy. If appropriate, derivative financial
instruments are used to hedge certain risk positions.
The Group does not apply hedge accounting. Derivative
financial instruments are only agreed upon with high-
quality counterparties (banks with rating A or better).

CreditRisk

There is no substantial credit risk concentration in the
Group. Management regularly assesses the credit risk of
all counterparties (especially key customers) on the
basis of historic experiences. If appropriate, management
also applies credit monitoring instruments, for example
credit limits or prepayments.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage ina
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to make
contractual payments for a period of greater than

120 days past due.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented
as netimpairment losses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the same line item. Refer to
note 11.



Liquidity Risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents, the availability

of funding through an adequate amount of bank credit
lines and the ability to close out market positions.
Group Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group’s liquidity reserve (comprises unused credit
lines [see note 16] and cash and cash equivalents) on
the basis of expected cash flows.

The table below summaries the maturity profile of
the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments:

Financial liabilities cash

outflows

InCHF 1000 Total <lyear 1-5years
2018

Financial liabilities 49064 44991 4073
Financial lease liabilities 996 0 996
Trade accounts payable 12430 12430 0
Otheraccounts payable and

accruals 28015 28015 0
Forwards?! 17 17 0
Total 90522 85453 5069
2017

Financial liabilities 8281 8281

Trade accounts payable 6506 6506 0
Otheraccounts payable and

accruals 11951 11951

Forwards?! 150 150

Total 26888 26888

T Includedinlineitem “Other accounts payable and accruals“in the Group statement
of financial position, see also note 19.

Interest Risk

Bank loans are subject to fixed as well as variable
interest rates, with management deciding upon
the interest rate risk to be taken on a case by basis.
For further details see note 16.

If the interest rates had been higher by 50 bps for 2018
with all other variables held constant, net profit for
the year would have been TCHF 89 (previous year
TCHF 42) lower, as aresult of higher interest expenses
on current bank loans. If the interest rates had been
lower by 50 bps for 2018 with all other variables held
constant, net profit for the year would have been
TCHF 89 (previous year TCHF 42) higher, as a result
of lower interest expenses on current bank loans.

Currency Risk

The Group is internationally active and thus exposed
to currency fluctuations mainly in Euro, US dollar and
Canada dollar. If possible and feasible, currency risk

is reduced by matching the currency in- and outflows.
The estimated exposure in the main currencies is
hedged by forwards.

Forwards are placed on arolling base at the end of
each quarter. For the actual quarter 40 % to 80 % of the
estimated exposure is hedged. For the next quarter
20% to 60 %, for the next to last quarter 0 % to 40 % and
for the last quarter 0% to 20 % is hedged. Hedges are
made by management based on approved guidelines
by the Board of Directors. Risk associated with the
translation of the foreign currency financial positions of
subsidiaries is not hedged.

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to
areasonably possible change of US dollar (USD), Euro
(EUR) and Canada dollar (CAD) exchange rates, with
all other variables held constant. The impact on the
Group’s net profit is due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities. Group’s exposure to
foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not
material.

Foreign currency sensitivity

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Effect of change in currency rate

on net profit

USD+5 % 132 -283
UsD -5 % -132 283
EUR+5 % 198 134
EUR-5 % -198 -134
CAD +5% 0 n/a
CAD-5% 0 n/a
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Categories of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets

InCHF 1000 Financial
assets at fair Carrying
Financial assets at value through amount Fair value
amortized cost profit and loss 31.12.2 level
2018
Cashand cash equivalents 20901 20901 n/a
Trade accounts receivable 56233 56233 n/a
Total 77134 0 77134
20174
Cash and cash equivalents 22040 22040 n/a
Trade accounts receivable 37068 37068 n/a
Total 59108 0 59108

Financial liabilities

InCHF 1000 Financial

Financial liabili- liabilities at fair Carrying

ties measured at value through amount Fair value

amortized cost profit and loss 31.12.2 level
2018
Financial liabilities 50060 50060 n/a
Trade accounts payable 12430 12430 n/a
Otheraccounts payable and accruals 28015 28015 n/a
Forwards?! 0 17 17 Level 23
Total 90505 17 90522
2017
Financial liabilities 8281 8281 n/a
Trade accounts payable 6506 6506 n/a
Other accounts payable and accruals 11951 11951 n/a
Forwards?! 0 150 150 Level 23
Total 26738 150 26888

1 Includedinlineitem “Other accounts payable and accruals” in the Group statement of financial position, see also note 19.
2 Carryingamountis a reasonable approximation for fair value.

3 Level2:financial instruments with directly observable market inputs.

4 Loansandreceivables.
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Capital Management

The Group’s objective when managing capital is to
assure the Group’s ability to continue as going concern,
to support the Group’s strategy, to provide attractive
returns to shareholders and to aim for an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
propose to adjust the dividend policy, to return capital
to shareholders orissue new shares. In line with industry
measures, the Group monitors the capital basis with
the two ratios interest-bearing debt divided by EBITDA
(leverage factor) and total equity divided by total
liabilities and equity (equity ratio). These ratios were

at December 31as follows:

Capital risk management

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Interest-bearing debt 50060 8281
EBITDA 30835 31196
Leverage factor 1.6 0.3
Equity ratioin % 70.5 % 72.7%

Targets for these ratios are for leverage factor below
3.0 and for equity ratio above 40 %. Group Manage-
ment would allow these ratios to be higher respectively
lower for a short period of time in case strong evidence
is given that the targets can again be achieved within a
reasonable time frame.

Significant Estimates and Judgments

The Group makes judgments and estimates concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates there-
fore may not correspond to the actual results. The esti-
mates and assumptions bearing a significant risk of
entailing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year

are discussed in the following section.

Goodwill

The Group’s goodwill is tested annually for impairment
using discounted cash flow projections. These calcula-
tions require the use of estimates regarding projected
sales, product prices and costs, interest rate as well as
tax rate (see note 15).

I1AS 19 Post-Employment Benefits

The status of defined benefit plans depends on long-
term actuarial assumptions that may differ from actual
future developments. The determination of the discount
rate, future changes in salaries/wages and mortality

are important assumptions in actuarial valuations (see
note 4).

Tax

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation
of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and
the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given
the wide range of international business relationships
and the differences arising between the actual results
and the assumptions made, or future changes to such
assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to
tax income and expense already recorded.

Tax liabilities comprise expected income tax payments
based on taxable profit of the year as well as pending tax
assessments. All tax credits from capitalized tax losses
are assessed annually. The assessments are based on
business plans. Underlying estimation and assumptions
are main sources of uncertainties.

Acquisitions

Kenda AG, Vaduz (FL)

On January 1,2018, COLTENE Holding AG acquired
100 % of the issued share capital of KENDA AG, an
unlisted company headquartered in Vaduz, Liechten-
stein. KENDA AG is a specialized, internationally
active manufacturer of silicone polishing instruments
for dentists. The acquisition has enhanced the Group’s
Rotary Instruments product portfolio, technology
knowhow and sales flows.

Purchase considerationin CHF 1000:
Cash paid:
Total purchase consideration:

9149
9149
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The assets and liabilities recognized as a result of the

acquisition are as follows:

InCHF 1000 Fair value recognised
on acquisition
Cash and cash equivalents 1376
Trade accounts receivable 141
Otherreceivables and prepaid expenses 45
Inventories 1768
Current assets 3330
Property, plant,and equipment 570
Intangible assets 3019
Non-current assets 3589
Total assets 6919
Trade accounts payable 56
Otheraccounts payable and accruals 187
Tax liabilities 79
Current liabilities 322
Deferred tax liabilities 480
Provisions 129
Non-current liabilities 609
Total liabilities 931
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 5988
Goodwill arising on acquisition 3161
Purchase consideration transferred 9149
Analysis of cash flow on acquisition
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary 1376
Cash paid -9149
Net cash flow on acquisition -7773

The goodwill is attributable to the unique production
technology and to the workforce of the acquired
business. It will not be deductible for tax purposes.

The acquired business contributed revenues of
TCHF 3614 and net profit before taxes of TCHF 198 to
the Group for the period from January 1to Decem-

ber 31,2018.

Acquisition-related cost of TCHF 233 are included in
other operating expenses in profit and loss and in
operating cash flows in the statement of cash flows.
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SciCanLtd., Toronto (CA) and DentalDrives GmbH,
Leutkirch (D)

On October 9,2018, COLTENE Holding AG acquired
100 % of the issued share capital of SciCan Ltd. and
DentalDrives GmbH, both unlisted companies head-
quartered in Toronto, Canada resp. Leutkirch, Germany.

The assets and liabilities recognized as a result of the
acquisition are as follows:

InCHF 1000 Fair value recognised

on acquisition
Cashand cash equivalents 5039
Trade accounts receivable 13901
Otherreceivables and prepaid expenses 3183
Inventories 28486
Current assets 50609
Property, plant,and equipment 6177
Intangible assets 59714
Deferredtax assets 1039
Non-current assets 66930
Total assets 117539
Trade accounts payable 3148
Other accounts payable and accruals 9373
Tax liabilities 950
Provisions 513
Current liabilities 13984
Deferredtax liabilities 14561
Financial liabilities 7490
Provisions 1000
Non-current liabilities 23051
Total liabilities 37035
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 80504
Goodwill arising on acquisition 135695
Purchase consideration transferred 216199

Analysis of purchase consideration
on acquisition

Cash paid 100215
Ordinary sharesissued 112484
Accrued consideration 3500
Total purchase consideration 216199

Analysis of cash flow on acquisition

Net cash acquired with the subsidiary 5039
Cash paid -100215
Net cash flow on acquisition -95176




For the acquisition, a purchase price of TCHF 100 215
was paidin cashand 1081580 of COLTENE ordinary
shares at a fair value of TCHF 104 per share have been
delivered to the sellers. The accrued consideration
was paid to the sellers on March 6,2019.

From the date of acquisition, SciCan Group and Dental-
Drives Group contributed TCHF 26 459 of net sales and
TCHF -768 to the net profit before tax from the con-
tinuing operations of the Group. If the acquisition had
taken place at the beginning of the year, revenue from
continuing operations would have been TCHF 102 426
and the net profit before tax from continuing operations
for the period would have been TCHF 3940.

The goodwill recognized is primarily attributed to the
expected synergies and other benefits from combining
the assets and activities of SciCan Group and Dental-
Drives Group with those of the Group.

Transaction costs have been expensed of which

TCHF 1293 are included within other operating expens-
es, TCHF 25 commitment fee are included within
financial expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

The above amounts represent the preliminary alloca-
tion of the purchase price. Due to the timing of the
acquisition, certain information required to complete
the final purchase price allocation remains outstand-
ing. The net assets recognized in the December 31,
2018, financial statements are based on a provisional
assessment of their fair values. While the Group has
obtained an independent valuation for the customer
relationships acquired in the business combination,
the valuation and allocation to legal entities of these
intangible assets as well as the assessment of the
related deferred taxes have not been completed by
the date the 2018 financial statements were approved
forissue by the Board of Directors. Additionally, the
purchase price of the transaction may be adjusted once
the final net working capital as at the acquisition date
has been determined. These and other items as well
as the resulting goodwill may therefore be subject

to change as the Group progresses with and finalizes
the purchasing accounting during the twelve-month
measurement period after the acquisition date.

1 Group-Wide Information

Net Sales from Contracts with Customers

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods
and services at a point in time in the following major
geographical regions and product lines:

Net sales by geographical regions

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
EMEA 85291 70145
North America 75905 58104
Latin America 16677 17509
Asia/Oceania 26079 22232
Net sales 203952 167990
Rounding differences from prior year are adjusted.

Net sales by geographical areas

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Switzerland 2648 2024
Germany, Austria 16503 15856
Great Britain, Ireland 8183 7128
France 10028 6882
Other Europe 31356 24816
Russia and other CIS 7022 6232
Middle Eastand Africa 9551 7207
Canada 10089 5110
USA 65816 52994
Brazil 6535 7507
Other South America 10141 10001
China 9004 6755
India 3970 4050
Other Far East, Oceania 13106 11428
Net sales 203952 167990
Rounding differences from prior year are adjusted.

Net sales by products and services

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Infection Control 29047 11142
Dental Preservation 73276 75977
Efficient Treatment 101629 80871
Net sales 203952 167990

Net sales of TCHF 41373 (previous year TCHF 33 647)
corresponding to 20.3% of Group net sales (previous
year 20.9%) were generated with one large distribution
group. No other major customers exist.
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Property, plant,and equipment and intangible assets by
geographical areas are as follows:

Property, plant, and equipment geographical areas

InCHF 1000 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Switzerland 20594 12774
Germany 3104 2096
France 3503 0
Other Europe 1156 271
China 34 113
India 134 67
USA 11206 11348
Canada 1204 0
Brazil 1517 1745
Property, plant, and equipment 42452 28414
Intangible assets by geographical areas

InCHF 1000 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Switzerland 5548 5640
Germany 33596 17830
France 2296 0
Other Europe 5960 99
China 11 10
India 10 8
USA 14835 14756
Canada 168511 0
Brazil 4092 4848
Intangible assets 234859 43191

2 Raw Materialand Consumables Used
Raw material and consumables used amounted to
27.9% (previous year 28.5%) of net sales.
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3 Personnel Expenses

The average workforce amounted to 1045 employees
(previous year 885). Detailed information on personnel
expenses:

Personnel expenses

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Wages and salaries 56615 46053
Expenses for defined benefit plans 1294 958
Expenses for defined contribution plans 1656 2959
Other personnel expenses 11070 8826
Total 70635 58796

Personnel expenses include TCHF 282 (previous year
TCHF 284) for share-based payment transactions with
the Board of Directors and Group Management. For
information on expenses for post-employment benefits
according to IAS 19, please refer to note 4.

4 Pension Liabilities

Employee Benefit Obligation

To complement the benefits provided by state-regulated
pension schemes, COLTENE maintains additional
employee pension plans for a number of subsidiaries.

In principle, these fall into the following categories:

Defined Contribution Pension Plans:

Some of the COLTENE subsidiaries operate defined
contribution pension plans. In these, employees and
employer regularly contribute to funds administered by
third parties. This does not give rise to any assets or
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans:

Defined benefit pension plans for management and staff
exist for Colténe/Whaledent AG in Switzerland. SciCan
Medtech AG in Switzerland, Kenda AG in Liechtenstein
and MicroMega SA in France.



Plan description (Switzerland)

Pension plans are regulated by the Swiss Federal Law on
Occupational Retirement, Survivors’ and Disability
Pension Plans (LPP/BVG). The pension solution adopted
for the Group’s Swiss companies is affiliated to legally
independent collective foundations or occupational
benefits solutions offered by insurance companies. Plan
participants are insured against the financial conse-
quences of old age, disability and death. The benefits are
financed through regular employer and employee con-
tributions. The most senior governing body of the pension
planis the Board of Trustees, which consists of an equal
number of employer and employee representatives.
The Board of Trustees is responsible for the investment
of the plan assets. All investment decisions made by

the Board of Trustees need to conform to the guidelines
set outin along-terminvestment strategy. This strategy
is based on legal requirements, expected future contri-
butions and expected future obligations. All governing
and administration bodies have an obligation to act

in the interests of the plan participants. The law grants
some minimum guarantees regarding occupational
benefits. Due to these minimum guarantees, the Swiss
plans are treated as defined benefit plans for the pur-
poses of these IFRS financial statements, although they
have many characteristics of defined contribution
plans. Retirement benefits are based on the individual
accumulated savings capital, which can either be drawn
as a lifelong pension or as a lump sum payment. The
pension is calculated by multiplying the balance of the
accumulated savings capital with the applicable con-
version rate. The plan is exposed to actuarial risks, such
as longevity risk, interest rate risk and capital market
risk. In case of an underfunding, the Board of Trustees is
required to take the necessary measures to ensure

that full funding can be expected to be restored within a
reasonable period. The measures may include increas-
ing employee and company contributions, lowering the
interest rate on retirement savings account balances

or reducing prospective benefits. The employees have
the opportunity to withdraw pension benefits in the
form of a lump sum.

Plan description (Principality of Liechtenstein)

The pension solution adopted for the Group’s Liechten-
stein company is affiliated to legally independent collec-
tive foundations or occupational benefits solutions
offered by insurance companies. Plan participants are
insured against the financial consequences of old age,
disability and death and the benefits are financed
through regular employer and employee contributions.

Plan description (France)

Pension plans are regulated by French Law on general
social security scheme (RGSS). The main post-employ-
ment defined benefit plans as adopted for the French
companies concern the retirement termination benefits.
Employee benefits for retirement bonuses and the
agreement are based on the rights accumulated at the
balance sheet date, according to the scale set out in the
collective agreement or the Company-wide agreement.

The calculated provision amount for future pension
liabilities includes the social charges to be paid by
the Company on the retirement date of the employees.

Inaccordance with local statutory requirements,

COLTENE has no obligations to these pension plans
beyond the regulatory contributions and any recapi-
talization contributions that may become necessary.
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Pension liabilities

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Pension costs

Current service cost 1294 958
Pastservice cost -1499 0
Interest expenses on defined benefit obligation (DBO) 226 189
Interestincome on plan assets -180 -136
Total -159 1011
Reconciliation of the present value of the DBO

DBO1.1. 28674 26224
Additions business combinations 4590 0
Currentservice cost 1294 958
Past service cost -1499 0
Ordinary contribution paid by employees 939 733
Interestexpenses on (DBO) 226 189
Benefits paid/transferred -1042 869
Actuarial (gain) and loss arising from changes in financial assumptions -937 -350
Actuarial (gain) and loss arising from experiences adjustments 723 51
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions 0 0
DBO 31.12. 32968 28674
Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets

Fairvalue1.1. 22296 18156
Additions business combinations 2827 0
Interestincome on plan assets 180 136
Ordinary contribution paid by employer 1135 902
Ordinary contribution paid by employees 939 733
Benefits paid/transferred -841 869
Return on plan assets excl. interestincome (gains/losses) -65 1500
Fair value 31.12. 26471 22296
Details to plan assets

Receivables frominsurance company 26471 22296
Total 26471 22296

No significant investments were made in COLTENE
Holding AG. For both periods, no short-term payables
against pension plans exist.

The past service cost of TCHF 1499 relatesto a

decrease of the conversion rates of the Swiss pension
planto 5.8% between 2019 and 2022.
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TCHF 31290 of the total DBO at December 31,2018,
and TCHF 25 672 of the total plan assets at Decem-

ber 31,2018, relate to Swiss pension funds.



Pension liabilities

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Net defined liability (asset)

Present value of the defined benefit obligation,31.12. 32968 28674
Fair value of planassets,31.12. -26471 -22296
Net defined benefit liability (asset) recognized in balance sheet! 6497 6378
Changes in net amount

Net defined benefit liability (asset), 1.1. 6377 8068
Additions business combinations 1763 0
Defined benefit cost recognized in profitand loss -315 1012
Defined benefit cost recognized in other comprehensive income -194 -1800
Ordinary contribution paid by employer -1135 -903
Balance 31.12. 6496 6377
Actuarial assumptions

Colténe/Whaledent AG, Kenda AG

Discountrate 0.90 % 0.70 %
Future salaryincrease 1.00 % 1.00%
Mortality (GT) Switzerland, Liechtenstein BVG2015GT BVG2015GT
SciCan Medtech AG

Discountrate 0.90% n/a
Future salaryincrease 1.50% n/a
Mortality (GT) Switzerland, Liechtenstein BVG2015GT n/a
MicroMega SA

Discountrate 1.57 % n/a
Future salaryincrease 1.19% n/a
Mortality (GT) France INSEE 2017 n/a
1The pension liabilities are reported in other long-term provisions.

Pension liabilities - Sensitivity analysis

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Sensitivity to discount rate assumptions

Discountrate+0.50 % - effecton DBO -2574 -2343
Discountrate-0.50 % - effecton DBO 2946 2693
Sensitivity to salary increase assumptions

Salaryincrease rate +0.50 % - effecton DBO 510 498
Salaryincrease rate-0.50 % - effecton DBO -515 -486
Sensitivity to mortality assumptions

+1 additional year - effecton DBO 726 687
-1 additional year - effecton DBO -629 -592

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined
based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
the defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of
the reporting period. The sensitivity analyses are based
on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all
other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analyses
may not be representative of an actual change in the
defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes
in assumptions would occur inisolation of one another.
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The following payments are expected contributions to
the defined benefit plan in future years:

Future expected contributions to the defined benefit plans

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Within the next 12 months (next annual

reporting period) 1157 1942
Between 2 and 5 years 4608 7895
Between 5and 10 years 5964 7192

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit
plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is
for Colténe/Whaledent AG 16.9 years, for Kenda AG
15.1years, for SciCan Medtech AG 17.4 years and for
MicroMega SA 13.0 years. (2017: Colténe/Whaledent
AG 17.6 years).

5 Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Energy 949 852
Rental 1873 1409
Repairand maintenance 2544 1965
Other production expenses 1643 1636
Freight and distribution 3178 2383
Marketing 9779 7811
Insurance 684 564
IT 1401 1082
Consulting 5167 2313
Travel 3543 3271
Vehicle 2174 1925
Other sellingand administration 7731 6510

Gain from sale of property, plant,
and equipment -34 -14
Loss from sale of property, plant,
and equipment 238 6
Total 40870 31713

In 2018, TCHF 8149 (previous year TCHF 5288) were
spentonresearch and development and recorded as
an expense in the income statement.

6 Depreciationand Amortization

Depreciation and amortization

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Depreciation on property, plant,

and equipment 4678 4423
Amortization of intangible assets 2477 1288
Total 7155 5711
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7 Financial Income and Expenses

Financial income and expenses

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Interestincome on cash

and cash equivalents 28 27
Exchange rate differences

and other financialincome 141 220
Total financial income 169 247
Interest expenses for bank overdrafts

andloans -476 -302
Exchange rate differences

and other financial expenses -1937 -918
Total financial expenses -2413 -1220
Total financial result (net) -2244 -973
8 Tax Expenses

Tax expenses comprise the following positions:

Tax expenses

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Currenttaxes 6957 7735
Deferredtaxes -432 -2283
Total 6525 5452
Tax expenses can be analyzed as follows:

Tax expenses

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Net profit before tax expenses 21436 24512
Tax expenses at applicable tax rate

0f21.8 % (30.3 %) 4658 7330
Effects of non-tax-deductible expenses 230 79
Effects of tax-exemptincome/

income taxed atanother rate 750 -1095
Effects of tax loss not capitalized

incurrentyear 597 236
Effects of tax loss used not capitalized

in prioryears -125 0
Effects of changeintaxrate

ondeferredtaxes 222 -1218
Tax adjustments prior years

by tax authorities 53 0
Otherimpacts 140 120
Actual tax expense 6525 5452
Effective taxratein % 30.4 % 222%

The applicable tax rate represents a weighted average
rate based on all Group companies. Compared to

last year the applicable tax rate decreased from 30.3%
t0 21.8 %. This decrease is mainly related to the reduc-
tion of the applicable tax rate in the US.



Tax expenses of TCHF 6525 represent an effective

tax rate of 30.4% (22.2%) of net profit before tax. For
2018 the difference between applicable and effective
tax rate relates to various items (e.g. not capitalized
tax losses, release of deferred taxes at a tax rate which
differs from the applicable tax rate, etc.).

The Group has the following tax-relevant losses to be

carried forward:

Tax losses

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Tax losses capitalized

Expiration between1 and 5 years 221 239
Expiration over 5 years 717 776
Total 938 1015
Deferred tax assets of capitalized tax

losses

Expiration between 1 and 5 years 51 164
Expiration over 5 years 166 234
Total 217 398
Tax losses not capitalized

Expiration between1 and 5 years 0 0
Expiration over 5 years 11114 11674
Total 11114 11674
Estimated tax effect of not capitalized

tax losses

Expiration between1 and 5 years 0 0
Expiration over 5 years 3779 3969
Total 3779 3969

Tax losses capitalized in 2018 are attributable to the
Group company in India. Tax losses not capitalized are
mainly attributable to Brazil. The tax losses of Brazil
asitis not probable that these losses can be utilized
were not capitalized in accordance with Group policy
as itis not probable that these losses can be utilized.

9 Deferred Taxes

Deferred tax assets

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
1.1. 1240 480
Additions - business combinations 1046 0
Additions 16 1106
Reversals -663 -358
Currency effects -30 12
31.12. 1609 1240
Deferred tax liabilities

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
1.1. 7236 8212
Additions - business combinations 15048 0
Additions 201 105
Reversals -1273 -1341
Currency effects -595 260
31.12. 20617 7236

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are based on the
valuation differences between Group valuation and tax
valuation in the following financial position items:

Deferred tax details

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
tax tax tax tax
assets liabilities assets liabilities
Receivables and
accruals 393 248 119 170
Inventories 1883 810 1763 404
Property, plant,and
equipment 0 2142 0 1702
Intangible assets 0 19340 10 7086
Provisions 1106 68 1129 54
Deferred taxes from
losses carried forward 217 0 399 0
Offset of deferred
assets and liabilities -1990 -1991 -2180 -2180
Total 1609 20617 1240 7236

10 Earningsper Share

Net profitamounts to TCHF 14 911 (previous year
TCHF 19 060). Earnings per share (EPS) are calculated

as follows:

Earnings per share

2018 2017
Weighted number of sharesissuedat31.12.) ~ 4713749 4217427
Earnings per share
(based on net profit for the period) CHF3.16 CHF4.52
Diluted earnings per share
(based on net profit for the period) CHF3.16 CHF4.52

T The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect
of changes intreasury share transactions and the capitalincrease during the year.
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11 Trade Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Trade accounts receivable (gross) 57516 38121
Allowance -1283 -1052
Total 56233 37069
Trade accounts receivable by currency

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
CHF 3053 3059
EUR 18971 10743
usD 25742 18378
CAD 3203 0
Other currencies 5264 4889
Total 56233 37069
Trade accounts receivable (gross) by maturity

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Not due 41315 30624
Past due 1 to 30 days 12516 4028
Past due 31 to 60 days 1262 731
Past due 61 to 90 days 245 1104
Past due 91 to 120 days 522 151
Past due over 120 days 1656 1483
Total 57516 38121
Trade accounts receivable by maturity

including allowance

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Not due 41185 30422
Past due 1 to 30 days 12466 4014
Past due 31 to 60 days 1239 726
Pastdue 61 to 90 days 244 1015
Past due 91 to 120 days 507 122
Past due over 120 days 592 770
Total 56233 37069

The closing loss allowances for trade accounts receiv-
ables as at December 31,2018, reconcile to the opening

loss allowances as follows:

Allowance trade receivables

InCHF 1000 31.12.2018  31.12.2017
December 31, 2018 - calculated

under IAS 39 1052 876
Openingloss allowances as atJanuary 1,

2018 - calculated under IFRS 9 1052 876
Increase in allowances recognized in profit

andloss during the year 338 250
Receivables written off during the year as

uncollectible -110 -59
Unused amounts reversed 0 0
Currency effects 3 -15
At 31 December 1283 1052
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The Group applies the IFRS g simplified approach to
measures expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receiv-
ables have been grouped based on shared credit risk

characteristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of sales over a period of 36 months before
December 31,2018, or January 1,2018, respectively and
the corresponding historical credit losses experi-
enced within this period. The historical loss rates are

adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking

information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

InCHF 1000 Gross carrying
Expected amounttrade Loss
loss rate receivables allowance
31.12.2018
Current 031% 41315 130
Pastdue1to 30 days 0.40 % 12516 50
Pastdue 31 to 60 days 1.82% 1262 23
Past due 61 to 90 days 0.41% 245 1
Pastdue 91 to 120 days 2.87% 522 15
Past due over 120 days 64.25% 1656 1064
Total 57516 1283

The amounts due are monitored on a monthly basis.
The carrying amount of receivables also represents the

maximum exposure to credit risk.

No collaterals exist in both reporting periods. The
change in the allowance due to addition or reversal is

included in other operating expenses.

As per December 31,2018, no trade accounts receivable

are pledged (previous year also none).



12 Other Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

Financial assets at amortized cost include the following
debtinvestments:

Other Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

In CHF 1000 2018 2017
Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
Loansto third parties 391 391 393 393
Otherreceivables 4856 4856 2358 2358
4856 391 5247 2358 393 2751
Less:loss allowance for debtinvestments
atamortized cost -17 -17 -17 -17
Total 4839 391 5230 2341 393 2734
See Note 1for the impact of the change in accounting 13 Inventories
policy following the adoption of IFRS g on the classifica-  Inventories are as follows:
tion of financial assets. Inventories (net)
In CHF 1000 2018 2017
Section Financial Risk Management sets out infor- Raw materials 17818 8857
mation about the Group’s exposure to credit risks Trade merchandise 8155 1808
(impairment of financial assets at amortized costasat ~ Workinprogress 10776 8631
December 31,2018: TCHF 17,as at December 31,2017: ?:tlsar;ed goods 1;?522 ﬁizi

TCHF17).

All of the financial assets at amortized cost are denomi-
nated in Swiss francs, Euro and Canadian dollar. As
aresult, there is no exposure to foreign currency risk.
There is also no exposure to price risk as the invest-
ments will be held to maturity.

No inventories are pledged neither at December 31,
2017, nor 2018.

Inventories (gross)

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Raw materials 19947 10739
Trade merchandise 8332 1934
Work in progress 12329 10036
Finished goods 20276 14731
Total 60884 37440
Change in allowance
InCHF 1000 2018 2017
1.1. 5889 4643
Additions 223 1123
Used 561 360
Reversals -1392 -161
Currency effects 51 -76
31.12. 5332 5889
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14 Property, Plant,and Equipment

Gross values

InCHF 1000 Machinery and Buildings Assets under

Equipment Land (incl. inst.) Construction Total
Value 31.12.2016 45029 3595 44744 2036 95404
Additions 714 0 1355 2504 4573
Disposals -936 0 -1655 -27 -2618
Currency effects -344 -54 -362 -46 -806
Reclassification 254 0 218 -1861 -1389
Value 31.12.2017 44717 3541 44300 2606 95164
Additions - business combinations 4441 661 1644 1 6747
Additions 1347 0 1372 9994 12713
Disposals -688 -1 -1045 -17 -1751
Currency effects -367 -16 -237 -3 -623
Reclassification 351 0 331 -688 -6
Value 31.12.2018 49801 4185 46 365 11893 112244
Accumulated depreciation
InCHF 1000 Machinery and Buildings Assets under

Equipment Land (incl. inst.) Construction Total
Value 31.12.2016 36064 795 28587 0 65446
Depreciation 2403 59 1961 0 4423
Disposals -872 0 -1562 0 -2434
Currency effects -145 -34 -138 0 -317
Reclassification -367 0 0 0 -367
Value 31.12.2017 37083 820 28848 0 66751
Depreciation 2498 52 2128 0 4678
Disposals -296 0 -1019 0 -1315
Currency effects -265 7 -64 0 -322
Reclassification 0 0 0 0 0
Value 31.12.2018 39020 879 29893 0 69792
Net values
InCHF 1000 Machinery and Buildings Assets under

Equipment Land (incl. Inst.) Construction Total
Value31.12.2017 7634 2721 15452 2606 28413
Value 31.12.2018 10781 3306 16472 11893 42452

Contractual Commitments

As per December 31,2018, contractual commitments to
acquire building, machinery, equipment and software of
TCHF 851 were entered into (previous year TCHF 561).

Finance Leases

The carrying value of plant and machinery held under
finance leases and hire purchase contracts at Decem-
ber 31,2018, was TCHF 996 . Additions from business
combinations during the year include TCHF 996 (2017:
TCHF 0) of plant and machinery under finance leases
and hire purchase contracts. Leased assets and assets
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under hire purchase contracts are pledged as security
for the related finance lease and hire purchase liabilities.

Pledged Assets
No other property, plant, and equipment was pledged
as of December 31,2018 and 2017.



15 Intangible Assets

Group Management monitors and tests the goodwiill
based on two cash-generating units (CGU). In 2017
all goodwill was tested in one CGU COLTENE Group
Level. This CGU has been renamed to “Dental Con-
sumables” and comprises the businesses of dental
consumables except the SciCan business. The CGU
“SciCan” comprises solely the entire business of
the SciCan Group. The impairment test for goodwill
is based on the discounted cash flow method and
on approved budgets and key business plan figures
(2020-2023).

Cash flow after this period is extrapolated by the
rates given on the following page. The value in use is
the basis to calculate the recoverable amount.

Following assumptions were made:

Goodwill carrying amount and assumptions

2018 2017
CGU Dental Consumables
Inflation rate 1.8% 23%
Growthrate 1.8% 2.6%
Pre-tax discount rate 12.2% 14.3%
Goodwill 54719 39763

The former CGU Group was renamed in CGU Dental Consumablesin2018.1n 2017 this
CGU comprisedthe entire COLTENE Group.In2018 the CGU Dental Consumables
consists of the old COLTENE Group asin 2017 plus the DentalDrives Group which was
acquiredin 2018.

Goodwill carrying amount and assumptions

2018 2017
CGU SciCan
Inflation rate 1.9% n/a
Growthrate 1.9% n/a
Pre-tax discountrate 121 % n/a
Goodwill 118049 n/a

A change in the basic data used, e.g. in the event of

a sustained deterioration in operating profit while

the balance sheet and cost structure remain the same,
would not resultin an impairment of goodwill. Even

if cash flow forecasts were based on zero growth, the
carrying amount would not exceed the recoverable
amount. Anincrease of 1 percentage pointin the
assumed discount rate would not alter the results of
the impairment test.

Gross values

InCHF 1000 Other
intangible
Goodwill assets Total
Value 31.12.2016 38078 12194 50272
Additions? 939 430 1369
Disposal 0 -175 -175
Currency effects 746 -178 568
Reclassification 0 1022 1022
Value 31.12.2017 39763 13293 53056
Additions - business
combinations 138856 62733 201589
Additions 0 661 661
Disposal 0 -261 -261
Currency effects -5851 -2337 -8188
Value 31.12.2018 172768 74089 246857
Accumulated amortization
InCHF 1000 Other
intangible
Goodwill assets Total
Value 31.12.2016 0o 8721 8721
Amortization 0 1287 1287
Disposal 0 -75 -75
Currency effects 0 -68 -68
Value 31.12.2017 0o 9865 9865
Amortization 0 2477 2477
Disposal 0 -160 -160
Currency effects 0 -184 -184
Value 31.12.2018 0 11998 11998
Net values
InCHF 1000 Other
intangible
Goodwill assets Total
Value31.12.2017 39763 3428 43191
Value 31.12.2018 172768 62091 234859

1 Acquistion Diatech

No impairment was recognized for the periods
presented.

As per December 31,2018 and 2017, there are no
contractual commitments to acquire intangible assets.
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16 Financial Liabilities

The following tables show details of current bank loans
as well as of non-current bank loans. Book values are
equal to fair values.

Bank loans

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Unsecured current bank loans 44991 8281
Unsecured non current bank loans 4073 0
Total 49064 8281

Total uncommitted credit lines amount to TCHF
150919 (previous year TCHF 71702) of which 30% are
used (previous year 10%). Covenants exist for selected
bank loans. Covenants were met for both periods.

Total committed credit lines amount to TCHF 75000
(previous year o) of which TCHF 34000 are used (pre-
vious year 0). Convenants were met for both periods.

The Group intends to repay the current bank loans of
TCHF 49 064 within less than twelve months and to
finance cash needs by renewing existing bank loans and
by additional bank loans out of existing credit lines.

17 FinanceLeases

The Group leases various plant and equipment with
a carrying amount of TCHF 1573 under finance leases
expiring within one to five years.

Some leases provide for the payment of incremental
contingent rentals based on changes in current market
rentals for comparable properties. Contingent rentals
paid during the year were TCHF o.

Finance lease liabilities

InCHF 1000 Present value
Minimum lease of minimum
payments Interest lease

31.12.2018
Lessthan1 year 0 0 0
l1to5years 1021 25 996
Total 1021 25 996
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18 Trade Accounts Payable

Trade accounts payable

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
CHF 2948 1450
EUR 4609 1933
usb 3155 2356
CAD 1095 0
Other currencies 623 767
Total 12430 6506

Allaccounts payable to suppliers fall due and will be
paid within 120 days.

19 Other Accounts Payable and Accruals

Other accounts payable and accruals

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Otheraccounts payable 14027 2904
Accruals 14005 9199
Total 28032 12103
Derivative financial instruments

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Currency-related instruments

Fair value (included in other accounts paya-

bleand accruals). -17 -166
Forward exchange rate contracts

by currencies

EUR 7212 7605
GBP -754 -792
usD 1773 1753

The tables show the contract or underlying principal
amounts and fair values of derivative financial instru-
ments analyzed by type of contract at December 31,2018
and 2017. The fair values are determined by reference
to market prices or standard pricing models that used
observable market inputs at December 31,2018 and
2017. TCHF 3901 (previous year o) are related to liabili-
ties from refund liabilities.



20 Provisions

The column “Legal & personnel-related” covers the

risk of litigation and employment contract termination
benefits. The next category “Pension plans & social
security” includes provisions for pension plans and other
social security as well as future pension claims and
age-related part-time work agreements, promised pen-
sion, or capital payments to the extent to which these
payables are not included or reinsured by a legally sepa-
rate fund. The remaining column “Guarantees & others”
mainly contains provisions for estimated guarantees
based on experience for guarantee claims that cannot
beinsured and are based on the assessment of specific
cases. A capital outflow from long-term provisions is
expected in the next one to five years with the exception
of pension plans where the outflow lasts more than
five years.

Provisions are as follows:

Provisions
InCHF 1000 Pension

Legal& plans & Guaran-

personnel- social tees &

related security others Total
31.12.2016 273 8192 255 8720
Additions 179 37 228 444
Reversals 0 0 -130 -130
Used 0 -1691 -2 -1693
Currency effects -6 7 19 20
31.12.2017 446 6545 370 7361
Additions - business
combinations 0 1846 1547 3393
Additions 49 31 271 351
Reversals -104 0 -259 -363
Used 0 -1705 -2 -1707
Currency effects -13 -23 -50 -86
31.12.2018 378 6694 1877 8949
Provision by maturity
InCHF 1000 Pension

Legal& plans & Guaran-

personnel- social tees &

related security others Total
31.12.2017
Short-term provisions 190 0 157 347
Long-term provisions 256 6544 214 7014
31.12.2018
Short-term provisions 165 0 671 836
Long-term provisions 213 6694 1206 8113

21 Operating Leasing
Operating leasing and rental commitments not recog-
nized in the balance sheet are as follows:

Leasing
InCHF 1000 Operating leasing
2018 2017
Not later than1 year 2751 1258
lto5years 7888 3526
Laterthan 5 years 4398 2726
Total 15037 7510
Total later than 1 year 12286 6252

For 2018, lease expenses amounted to TCHF 2467
(previous year TCHF 1912). Operating leasing contracts
for property, plant, and equipment exist.

22 Equity

The share capital represents the capital of COLTENE
Holding AG. Treasury stock on December 31,2018,
included 3265 shares (previous year 0).

On September 27,2018, COLTENE Holding AG com-
pleted the first capital increase to partially finance the
acquisition of SciCan Ltd. and DentalDrives GmbH.
The Company issued 675 000 shares with a par value
of CHF o.10 each as part of a rights offering “at market”
to existing and new shareholders at an offer price of
CHF 104.00. COLTENE Holding AG generated gross
proceeds of CHF 70200 000. This corresponds to net
proceeds of CHF 69546 000. The listing and first day

of trading of the offer shares were set to September 28,
2018. The payment of the offer price against delivery
of offer shares was made on October 2,2018. On the
closing date of the transaction, on October 9, 2018, to
further finance the transaction, the Company issued
1081580 consideration shares with a par value of

CHF o010 each at anissue price of CHF 104 to the sellers
of SciCan Ltd. and DentalDrives GmbH as part of

a contribution in kind capital increase (second capital
increase). At the fair value of CHF 104 the consideration
shares amount to TCHF 112484. The transaction cost
for this second capital increase amounted to TCHF 1571.
The sellers (Arthur Zwingenberger’s Arno Holding S.a.r.l.
and Stefan Helsing) hold thereafter 18.1% of the total
capital and voting rights of COLTENE Holding AG after
completion of the transaction. These consideration
shares are locked up for a period of twelve months.
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After the completion of both capital increases the share
capital of COLTENE Holding AG amounts to CHF
597558, divided into 5975580 registered shares with

a par value of CHF 0.10 each.

The outstanding capital consists of 5975580 (previous
year 4219 000) registered shares of CHF 0.10 (previous
year CHF 0.10) par value per share. All shares are issued
and fully paid; there is no additional conditional or
approved capital.

TCHF 2225 of equity issue costs have been deducted
from the proceeds of the capital increase and been
taken to capital reserves.

The distribution of CHF 3.00 per share will be proposed
to the General Meeting on April 30,2019.

Based on the General Meeting decision on March 28,
2018, the Company distributed a dividend of

CHF 3.00 (previous year CHF 2.70) per share to its
shareholders on April 6,2018. The total amount

paid was TCHF 12654 (previous year TCHF 11381).

94  Financials COLTENE Group

23 Transactions with Related Parties
Transactions with related parties are generally conduct-
ed based on usual market conditions.

Business relationships with Related Parties
Compensation to key management personnel (Board
of Directors and Group Management) as well as
business transactions with related companies are
summerized below:

InCHF 1000 2018 2017
Compensation to key management person-

nel 3284 3151
Rent of production and office buildings 202 n/a
Interest paid 29 n/a
Loanrepayments 120 n/a
Loan balance due atthe end

of the reporting period 4042 n/a
Payables (accrued consideration) 3500 n/a

24 Subsequent Events

As per the release date of this annual report, the Board
of Directors and the Executive Management were

not aware of any further important events subsequent
to the reporting date.



Major Group Companies

Company Group Group
Registered ownership ownership

Activity Currencies capital 2018 2017

Colténe/Whaledent AG, Altstitten CH 1 CHF 1600 000 100 % 100 %
Colténe/Whaledent Vertriebsservice und Marketing GmbH, Altstitten CH 2 CHF 20000 100 % 100 %
Colténe/Whaledent GmbH + Co.KG, Langenau DE 1 EUR 1850000 100 % 100 %
Dentalia Kft., Bicske HU 1 HUF 3000000 100 % 100 %
Colténe/Whaledent Ltd., Burgess Hill GB 3 GBP 200000 100 % 100 %
Colténe/WhaledentS.arl, Lezennes FR 3 EUR 503000 100 % 100 %
Colteneltaly S.r.l, Milano IT 3 EUR 10000 100 % 100 %
Colténe Iberia S.L., MadridES 3 EUR 10000 100 % 100 %
Coltene Turkey Dis Saghgi Uriinleri Ltd. Sti, Istanbul TR 3 TRY 20000 100 % 100 %
Coltene/Whaledent Dental Materials & Equipment Trading Co. Ltd, Beijing CN 3 CNY 10000000 100 % 100 %
Colténe/Whaledent Private Limited, Mumbai IN 3 INR 64800000 100 % 100 %
Coltene JapanLLC, Tokyo )P 3 JPY 1400000 100 % 100 %
Coltene Australia Pty Ltd., Sydney AU 3 AUD 15000 100 % 100 %
DentalDrives GmbH, Leutkirch DE 4 EUR 100000 100 % n/a
MicroMega International, Besancon FR 4 EUR 419700 100 % n/a
MicroMega SA,Besancon FR 1 EUR 2900000 100 % n/a
Colténe/Whaledent Inc., Cuyahoga Falls Us 1 usD 8400000 100 % 100 %
Diatech Inc., Mount Pleasant US 1 usbD 100000 100 % 100 %
Vigodent SA Industria e Comércio, Rio de Janeiro BR 1 BRL 54677752 100 % 100 %
Kenda AG, Vaduz LI 1 CHF 50000 100 % n/a
SciCan Ltd., Toronto CAN 1 CAD 729 100 % n/a
SciCan Medtech AG,Zug CH 3 CHF 100000 100 % n/a
SciCan Inc., Canonsburg PA 3 usD 100 100 % n/a
SciCan GmbH, Leutkirch DE 3 EUR 25564 100 % n/a

Entitiesin bold are 100% direct participations of COLTENE Holding AG.

1 Production and sales of dental specialities.

2 Sales services and marketing of dental specialities.
3 Sales of dental specialities.

4 Holding company
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Non-IFRS Measures as Defined

by COLTENE Group

COLTENE Group uses certain non-IFRS metrics when
measuring performance, especially when measuring
current-year results against prior periods, including
core results, constant currencies, free cash flow and net
debt. Despite the use of these measures by manage-
ment in setting goals and measuring the Group’s per-
formance, these are non-IFRS measures that have no
standardized meaning prescribed by IFRS. As aresult,
such measures have limits in their usefulness to inves-
tors. Because of their non-standardized definitions,

the non-IFRS measures (unlike IFRS measures) may not
be comparable to the calculation of similar measures
of other companies. These non-IFRS measures are pre-
sented solely to permit investors to more fully under-
stand how the Group’s management assesses underlying
performance. These non-IFRS measures are not, and
should not be viewed as, a substitute for IFRS measures.
As aninternal measure of Group performance, these
non-IFRS measures have limitations, and the Group’s
performance management process is not solely
restricted to these metrics.

Growth Rate Calculation

For ease of understanding, COLTENE Group uses a sign
convention for its growth rates such that a reduction

in operating expenses or losses compared to the prior
year is shown as a positive growth.

Free CashFlow

Free cash flow is presented as additional information
because management believes it is a useful supplemen-
tal indicator of the Group’s ability to operate without
reliance on additional borrowing or use of existing cash.
Free cash flow is a measure of the net cash generated
thatis available for debt repayment, investment in stra-
tegic opportunities and for returning to shareholders.
Free cash flow is a non-IFRS measure, which means it
should not be interpreted as a measure determined
under IFRS. Free cash flow is not intended to be a sub-
stitute measure for cash flow from operating activities
as determined under IFRS.

COLTENE Group defines free cash flow as cash flow
from operating activities and cash flow associated with
the purchase or sale of property, plant, and equipment,
as well asintangible, other non-current and financial
assets, excluding marketable securities. The definition
of free cash flow used by COLTENE Group does not
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include amounts related to changes in investments in
associated companies or related acquisitions or divest-
ments of subsidiaries.

Net Debt

Net debt is presented as additional information because
management believes itis a useful supplemental indica-
tor of the Group’s ability to pay dividends, to meet
financial commitments and to invest in new strategic
opportunities, including strengthening its balance
sheet. Net debt is a non-IFRS measure, which means it
should not be interpreted as a measure determined
under IFRS.

COLTENE Group defines net debt as current and non-
current financial debt less cash and cash equivalents,
current investments and derivative financial instruments.

EBITDA

COLTENE Group defines earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as operating
income from continuing operations excluding deprecia-
tion of property, plant, and equipment (including any
related impairment charges) and amortization of intan-
gible assets (including any related impairment charges).

Leverage Factor

The COLTENE Group relates interest-bearing debt to
EBITDA to determine the leverage factor. A leverage
ratio is any one of several financial measurements that
look at how much capital comes in the form of debt
(loans), or assesses the ability of a company to meet its
financial obligations. The leverage ratio is important
given that companies rely on a mixture of equity and
debt to finance their operations and knowing the
amount of debt held by a company is useful in evaluat-
ing whether it can pay its debts off as they come due.



Statutory Auditor’s Report

Statutory Auditor’s Report to the General Meeting
of COLTENE Holding AG, Altstitten

Statutory Auditor’s Report onthe Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial
statements of COLTENE Holding AG and
its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018 and the consolidated
statement of income, consolidated statement of com-
prehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements
(pages 66 to 95) give a true and fair view of the consoli-
dated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2018, and its consolidated financial performance and

its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and comply with Swiss law.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with
Swiss law, International Standards on Audit-
ing (ISAs) and Swiss Auditing Standards.
Our responsibilities under those provisions
and standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the provisions of Swiss law and the requirements of
the Swiss audit profession, as well as the IESBA Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

EY

Building a better
working world

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in
our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not pro-
vide a separate opinion on these matters. For each mat-
ter below, our description of how our audit addressed
the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond

to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Valuation of Inventory

Area of Focus

The total balances of inventory and inventory allowance
as of 31 December 2018 amount to CHF 61 million and
CHF 5 million, respectively. We focused on this position
because the gross inventory and related allowance are
material to the financial statements, involve a high level
of judgment and are subject to uncertainty due to
market demand changes.

See the “principles of valuation” to the financial state-

ments on page 73 and Note 13 “Inventories” to the
financial statements on page 89.
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Our Audit Response

We assessed the process, method and assumptions
used to identify slow moving, excess or obsolete items
and to calculate the related allowance. We completed
procedures to assess the amount of the allowance
including a comparison of management’s calculations
for consistency against those used in the prior year.

We tested the underlying data used by management

to calculate the inventory allowance, typically an aged
inventory analysis with the latest movements, by
re-performing the ageing calculation determined by the
ERP-system. We also tested the accuracy of the calcu-
lation by assessing the calculation criteria. Furthermore
we compared the net realizable value with the carrying
value for a sample of products.

Our audit procedures did not lead to any reservations
relating to the method and the assumptions used to
calculate the valuation of inventory.

Goodwill Impairment Testing

Area of Focus

The annual impairment test was significant to our
audit because the assessment process is complex and
the testimposes estimates. In performing the impair-
ment testing for goodwill, the Company used various
assumptions in respect of future market and economic
conditions, market share, revenue growth and margin
development.

See Note 15 “Intangible Assets” to the financial state-
ments on page 91.

Our Audit Response

We assessed and tested the assumptions, methodology,
the weighted average cost of capital and other data
used by the Company, by comparing them to external
data, such as expected inflation rates, external market
growth expectations and by analysing sensitivities in
COLTENE’s valuation model. We included in our team a
valuation specialist to assist us with these procedures.
We focused on the sensitivity in the available headroom,
evaluating whether a reasonably possible change in
assumptions could cause the carrying amount to exceed
its recoverable amount.
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We also assessed the historical accuracy of the Board
of Management’s estimates about those assumptions
to which the outcome of the impairment test is most
sensitive.

Our audit procedures did not lead to any reservations
relating to the used assumptions, the methodology
and the weighted average cost of capital and the other
data used.

Acquisition of SciCan and MicroMega

Area of Focus

As outlined in Section “Acquisitions”, COLTENE acquired
100 % of the issued share capital and control of SciCan
Group and Micro Mega Group. Both acquisitions were
significant to our audit due to the financial magnitude
and due to significant judgments and assumptions
involved in the recognition and measurement of the
acquired assets and assumed liabilities. As a result

of the transaction a goodwill of CHF 135.7 million and
other intangible assets of CHF 59.7 million were
recognized.

See Section “Acquisitions” to the financial statements
on page 80.

Our audit response

We audited the purchase price allocation (PPA) with
regard to the acquisition. This includes an analysis

of the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed supporting the purchase price allo-
cation as at the acquisition date. We assessed, amongst
others, the valuation and accounting of the purchase
consideration, audited the identification and valuation
of the assets and liabilities acquired, including the
underlying assumptions such as tax rates as well as dis-
count and growth rates. We involved our internal
valuation specialists to assist us with the evaluation of
the methods used and the assumptions made by the
management. Furthermore, we assessed the account-
ing treatment and the disclosures made.

Our audit procedures did not lead to any reservations
concerning the assumptions, the valuation and the
accounting of the transaction.



Other Informationin the Annual Report
The Board of Directors is responsible for the
other information in the annual report. The
other information comprises all information
included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements, the stand-
alone financial statements and our auditor’s reports
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information in the annual
report and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other infor-
mation in the annual report and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing

toreportin this regard.

Responsibility of the Board of Directors for
the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Board of Directors is responsible for
the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRS and the provisions
of Swiss law, and for such internal control as the Board
of Directors determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,

the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclos-
ing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error,and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Swiss law, ISAs and Swiss
Auditing Standards will always detect a material mis-
statement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
orinthe aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements is located
at the website of EXPERTSsuisse:
http://www.expertsuisse.ch/en/audit-report-for-
public-companies. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.

Reporton other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Inaccordance with article 728a para.1item 3
CO and the Swiss Auditing Standard 890,
we confirm that an internal control system
exists, which has been designed for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements accord-
ing to the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We recommend that the consolidated financial state-
ments submitted to you be approved.

Ernst & Young Ltd
Rico Fehr Ralf Truffer

Licensed audit expert
(Auditor in charge)

Licensed audit expert

St. Gallen, April 2,2019
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Income Statement COLTENE Holding AG

In CHF 2018 2017
Dividendincome 10921700 8272690
Other financialincome 293425 470073
Total income 11215125 8742763
Financial expenses -352199 -168920
Personnel expenses -621078 -578706
Other operating expenses -1335731 -866151
Total expenses -2309008 -1613777
Profit of the year 8906117 7128986
L]

Balance Sheet COLTENE Holding AG

In CHF 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Cash and cash equivalents 1873252 11811853
Otheraccounts receivable fromthird parties 84940 6059
Otheraccounts receivable from subsidiaries 749826 214781
Current assets 2708018 12032693
Long-term receivables from subsidiaries 33444137 12900935
Investments in subsidiaries 214622365 20343269
Non-current assets 248066 502 33244204
Total assets 250774520 45276897
Trade accounts payable to third parties 1057596 25187
Currentinterest-bearing liabilities to third parties 44446445 7903493
Other accounts payable to third parties 18564 24277
Otheraccounts payables from subsidiaries 3500000 2554714
Otheraccounts payables fromrelated parties 1249514 0
Accrued liabilities and deferred income to third parties 219677 477361
Current provision 83655 1200
Current liabilities 50575451 10986232
Share capital 597558 421900
Legal reserves fromretained earnings 84380 84380
Capital contributionreserves 169783747 0
Voluntary reserves from retained earnings 21130591 26655399
Treasury shares -303324 0
Profit of the year 8906117 7128986
Total equity 200199069 34290665
Total liabilities and equity 250774520 45276897
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Statements of Changes
in Equity COLTENE Holding AG

In CHF Capital Net income

Share Statutory contribution Treasury brought

capital reserves reserves shares forward Total
31.12.2016 421900 84380 1] -258945 38036503 38283838
Distribution to shareholders -11381104 -11381104
Change intreasury shares 258945 0 258945
Profit of the year 7128986 7128986
31.12.2017 421900 84380 1] 1] 33784385 34290665
Distribution to shareholders -12653793 -12653793
Capitalincrease 175658 169783747 169959404
Change intreasury shares -303324 0 -303324
Profit of the year 8906117 8906117
31.12.2018 597558 84380 169783747 -303324 30036709 200199069
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Notesto COLTENE Holding AG

Principals

These financial statements were prepared according
to the provisions of the Swiss Law on Accounting

and Financial Reporting (32nd title of the Swiss Code
of Obligations). Where not prescribed by law, the
significant accounting and valuation principles applied
are described below. It should be noted that to ensure
the Company’s going concern, the Company’s financial
statements may be influenced by the creation and
release of hidden reserves.

Financial Assets

Financial assets include long-term loans. Loans granted
in foreign currencies are translated at the rate at the
balance sheet date.

Treasury Shares

Treasury shares are recognized at weighted average
costand deducted from shareholders’ equity at the time
of acquisition. In case of are-sale, the gain or loss is
recognized through the income statement as financial
income or financial expenses.

Full-time equivalents
COLTENE Holding AG has no employees

Contingent liabilities

Investments

Investments include securities with a long-term holding
period and are valued individually at their acquisition
cost adjusted for impairment losses. Investments are
tested on an annual base for impairment needs.

Foregoing a Cash Flow Statement and Additional
Disclosuresinthe Notes

As COLTENE Holding AG has prepared its consolidated
financial statements in accordance with a recognized
accounting standard (IFRS), it has decided to forego
presenting additional information on interest-bearing
liabilities and audit fees in the notes as well as a cash
flow statement and a management report in accordance
with the law.

Investmentsin Subsidiaries
The major investments in subsidiaries are listed on
page 95 of this Annual Report.

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Jointand several liability from group taxation for current
and future value-added tax liabilities of Colténe /Whaledent AG and
Colténe/Whaledent Vertriebsservice und Marketing GmbH p.m. p.m.

Significantinvestments
Seelistonpage 95
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Treasury shares
Average rate of

transactions in CHF Quantity

Inventory as of 1.1.2017 3700
Acquisitions 83.06 8397
Sales 79.06 -12097
Inventory as of 31.12.2017 0
Acquisitions 94.36 6200
Sales 95.99 -2935
Inventory as of 31.12.2018 3265
Significant shareholders*

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Huwa Finanz-und Beteiligungs AG, Heerbrugg 21.98% 26.33%
Arno Holding S.a.r.l,, Luxembourg 17.20% 0.00%
Ritikon Privatstiftung, Bludenz/Austria 10.02% 11.45%
Tweedy, Browne Company LLC, New York/USA 4.80% 6.80%
Credit Suisse Asset Management Funds AG, Zirich 3.75% 5.59%
Robert Heberlein, Zumikon 3.40% 3.97%
UBS Fund Management (Switzerland) AG, Ziirich 3.49% 3.95%
* The Company is aware of the following registered shareholders who own over 3% of the shares. For more details see page 30.
Number of shares held by Board of Directors

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Nick Huber, Chairman 14297 4096
Erwin Locher, member 6162 5154
Jirgen Rauch, member 277 148
Matthew Robin, member 5235 4248
Astrid Waser, member 97 0
Roland Weiger, member 1198 898
Allison Zwingenberger,member?! 0 0
Total 27266 14544
Number of shares held by Executive Management

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Martin Schaufelberger, CEO 10675 8137
Gerhard Mahrle,CFO 2509 1659
Werner Barth, Vice President Marketing 1307 903
Stefan Helsing, COO 54079 0
Werner Mannschedel, Vice President QM & RA 2262 1819
Christophe Loretan, Vice President Sales 396 232
Total 71228 12750

1 Since extraordinary GM 2018.
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Remuneration to the Board of Directors

In CHF Other
Base remuneration remuneration
Social
in cash in shares’,2 security3 Total
2017
Nick Huber 80000 20000 14363 114363
Robert Heberlein* 15000 2500 2512 20012
Erwin Locher 70000 10000 11443 91443
Jurgen Rauch 60000 10000 10023 80023
Matthew Robin 70000 10000 11443 91443
Astrid Waser> 45000 7500 6393 58893
Roland Weiger 60000 10000 10023 80023
Total 400000 70000 66200 536200
2018
Nick Huber 80000 20000 14363 114363
Erwin Locher 70000 10000 7665 87665
Jirgen Rauch 60000 10000 0 70000
Matthew Robin 70000 10000 11438 91438
Astrid Waser 60000 10000 9647 79647
Roland Weiger 60000 10000 10017 80017
Allison Zwingenberger® 15000 2500 2131 19631
Total 415000 72500 55261 542761
12017: The value of the number of shares granted is calculated on the weighted average share price of the month of March of the subsequent year.
22018: The value of the number of shares granted is calculated on the weighted average share price of the month of May of the subsequent year.
3 Company paid social security contributionincl. AHV, IV and ALV.
4 Onthe General Meeting, March 29,2017, Robert Heberlein stepped down as Board member for reasons of age.
5 Onthe General Meeting, March 29,2017, Astrid Waser was elected as anew Board member.
6 Onthe Extraordinary General Meeting, September 14,2018, Allison Zwingenberger was elected as anew Board member.
Remuneration to the Group Management
In CHF Base
remuneration Variable remuneration’ Other remuneration
Social Other
in cash in cash in shares? security? benefits Total
2017
Martin Schaufelberger 370000 292098 99 676 147890 23022 932686
Other members 970082 293172 99971 269499 54235 1 686959
Total 1340082 585270 199 647 417 389 77 257 2619645
2018
Martin Schaufelberger 370000 296 000 111276 148729 19212 945217
Other members 1037467 333568 125235 271604 48420 1816294
Total 1407 467 629568 236511 420333 67632 2761511

1 The variable remuneration, which includes cash bonus and shares, is not paid out in the reporting period. Itis accrued for and paid out in the following year

based onthe decision of the Board of Directors.

2 The value of shares granted is calculated with the share price at closing of the grant date. For 2017, it was February 20,2018, and the share price was CHF 98.30.

For 2018, it was March 19,2019, and the share price was CHF 99.00.

3 Company paid social security contribution incl. pension funds payments, AHV, IV, ALV,NBU and KTG..

Subsequent Events

For more information refer to page 94 at the end of the

financial reporting about the COLTENE Group.
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Proposed Appropriation of Disposable
Profitand Dividend Distribution

In CHF 2018 2017
Allocation of the profit of the year

Netincome carried forward from prior year 21130591 26396453
Profit of the year 8906117 7128986
Transfer toreserves for treasury stocks -303324 258945
Total amount at the disposal of the AGM 29733384 33784384
Dividend distribution (CHF 3.00 per share) 0 -12653793
Balance to be carried forward 29733384 21130591
Distribution out of reserves from capital contributions

Available reserves from capital contributions 169783747 0
Distribution to shareholders of CHF 3.00 per share without treasury shares -17926741 0
Available capital contribution reserves after distribution 151857006 0

* Amount willbe adapted according to the amount of treasury shares.
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Reportof the Statutory Auditor

Report of the Statutory Auditor to the General Meeting

of COLTENE Holding AG, Altstatten

Reportofthe Statutory Auditor onthe Financial Statements

As statutory auditor, we have audited the financial
statements of COLTENE Holding AG, which comprise
the income statement, balance sheet, statement of
changes in equity and notes (pages 100 to 105), for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Board of Directors’ Responsibility
The Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements in
accordance with the requirements of Swiss
law and the company’s articles of incorpo-
ration. This responsibility includes designing, implement-
ing and maintaining an internal control system relevant
to the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. The Board of Directors is further responsible for
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the finan-
cial statements are free from material misstatement.

Anauditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial state-
ments, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers the internal con-
trol system relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures
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that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effective-
ness of the entity’s internal control system. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the account-
ing policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made, as well as evaluating the overall pre-
sentation of the financial statements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2018 comply
with Swiss law and the company’s articles of
incorporation.

Reporton Key Audit Matters Based on the Circular
1/2015 of the Federal Audit Oversight Authority
Key audit matters are those matters that,
in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities section of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures per-
formed to address the matters below, provide the basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.



Valuation of Investments

Area of Focus

The valuation of investments in accordance with the
provisions of the Swiss Code of Obligations is impor-
tant to our statutory audit as it represents a significant
judgment area. The investments balance represent
86.5% of the total assets of COLTENE Holding AG. The
company used the same valuation model as used for
the impairment testing of goodwill in the Group finan-
cial statements.

See Note to COLTENE Holding AG to the financial
statements on page 102.

Our Audit Response

Our audit procedures included an assessment and test
of the assumptions, methodology, the weighted aver-
age cost of capital and other data used by the company,
for example by comparing them to external data, such
as expected inflation rates, external market growth
expectations and by analysing sensitivities in COLTENE’s
valuation model. Furthermore, we included in our team

a valuation specialist to assist us with these procedures.
We specifically focused on the sensitivity by evaluating
whether a reasonably possible change in assumptions
could cause the carrying amount to exceed its recover-
able amount. We also assessed the historical accuracy
of the Board of Management’s estimates.

Our audit procedures did not lead to any reservations
relating to the used assumptions, the methodology
and the weighted average cost of capital and the other
data used.

Reporton other Legal Requirements
We confirm that we meet the legal require-
ments on licensing according to the Auditor
Oversight Act (AOA) and independence
(article 728 CO and article 11 AOA) and that
there are no circumstances incompatible with our inde-
pendence.

Inaccordance with article 728a para.1item 3 CO and
Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm that an inter-
nal control system exists, which has been designed

for the preparation of financial statements according to
the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We further confirm that the proposed appropriation of
available earnings complies with Swiss law and the com-
pany’s articles of incorporation. We recommend that
the financial statements submitted to you be approved.

Ernst & Young Ltd
Rico Fehr Ralf Truffer

Licensed audit expert
(Auditor in charge)

Licensed audit expert

St. Gallen, April 2,2019
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Important Addresses

COLTENE Holding AG
Feldwiesenstrasse 20
9450 Altstatten
Switzerland

Phone +41 (0)71757 5380
Telefax +41(0)71757 5301
www.coltene.com
info@coltene.com

Colténe/Whaledent Inc.
235 Ascot Parkway
Cuyahoga Falls, Ohio 44223
USA

Phone +1330 916 8800
Telefax +1330 916 7077

Colténe/Whaledent AG
Feldwiesenstrasse 20
9450 Altstatten
Switzerland

Phone +41 (0)71757 5300
Telefax +41(0)71757 5301

Colténe/Whaledent GmbH + Co. KG

Raiffeisenstrasse 30
P.©.Box 1150

89122 Langenau
Germany

Phone +49 7345 8050
Telefax +49 7345 805 201

Vigodent SA Indistria e Comércio
Rua Pesqueira 26 Bonsucesso

Rio de Janeiro CEP 21041-150

Brazil

Phone +55213865-5600

Telefax +55212280-8411
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SciCanLtd.

1440 Don Mills Road
Toronto, Ontario
Canada M3B 3Pg
Pohne +1 416 4451600
Telefax +1 416 445 2727

Micro-Mega S.A.
12 rue du Tunnel
25000 Besancon
France

Phone +3338154 4242
Telefax+333 8154 4230
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Disclaimer

Theinformation made availablein this annual report may include
forward-looking statements thatreflectintentions, beliefs or
current expectations and projections of the COLTENE Group
about future results of operations, financial conditions, liquidity,
performance and similar circumstances. Such statements are
made on the basis of assumptions and expectations which may
provetobeerroneous,although the COLTENE Group believes
themto bereasonable at this time.

The extract of thereporting section of the Annual Report 2018
in Germanis the governing text.





